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Reports to Shareholders:

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the company's Board of Directors, the Chairman and the entire management
team, we would like to express our gratitude to every one of our shareholders for your
long-term support of Dimerco Express Group during our promising developments and for

sparing your time to participate in the 2023 shareholders meeting.

As per the KPMG audited Dimerco Express Group 2022 Financial Statement, the consolidated
sales revenue in 2022 was NTD41,174 billion, an increase of 5.6% compared with the
previous year. The net profit after tax reached NTD2.53 billion, an increase of 9.9% compared
with the previous year. The earnings per share (EPS) after tax is NTD18.71, an increase of
10.2% compared with the previous year. With the efforts of all employees, the sales revenue,

net profit after tax, and earnings per share (EPS) after tax have all reached historical highs.

In 2022, the international transportation and logistics market was facing severe challenges.
The global economy has been affected by factors such as inflation, US Federal Reserve
balance sheet reduction and interest rate hike, China's lockdown by zero-Covid policy, and the
Russian invasion of Ukraine. Moreover, there were negative factors, such as pandemic-related
global supply chain disruptions. The operational challenges faced by international logistics
service providers were extremely severe. Despite this, Dimerco Express Group has achieved
excellent revenue and profit performance and repeatedly set new records. This is mainly due
to Dimerco's global network of forwarding and logistics locations and our cloud-based SCM
international logistics service platform. With clear market positioning and effective digital

marketing to attract customers, Dimerco Express Group has been able to deliver solid results.

Dimerco's 150+ service locations have been established in important niche markets
globally, providing customers with a one-stop solution for consistent international
transportation and logistics services. Based on excellent operational performance across the

network, our services have gained popularity and good reviews.

Dimerco Express Group’s cloud-based international logistics service platform and digital tools
play a key role in enhancing the company’s competitive edge.
e Through big data analysis, we gain a deeper understanding of customer needs.
e Through our Cloud Networking SCM Platform — the Dimerco Value Plus System (with
Information Security Certification including ISO27001:2013 BSI Certification NO. IS



743553) — we can adapt quickly to market change and provide diverse and localized
service to satisfy customers’ supply chain management needs.
e We continue to digitalize processes, including our use of Robotic Process
Automation (RPA) to enhance efficiency, reduce operating costs and increase profits.
e Our MyDimerco portal provides customers a one-stop resource for freight tracking
and performance — anywhere, anytime, from any device. Customers appreciate this

mobile intelligence capability, which greatly enhances our customer service.

Looking to the future, Dimerco is well prepared to face the coming challenges in the global
transportation and logistics market. The international economic outlook is still weak, inventory
needs to be reduced and/or adjusted, and the US-China rivalry and the Russia-Ukraine conflict
continue. The US interest rate hikes have caused a crisis of confidence and credit in the
banking system. Although inflation is slowing down, it still poses potential threat. Demand for
international transportation remains weak, and a third-quarter improvement is uncertain.
However, we will leverage our established resources, digital capabilities, and strong
management team to adapt to the market volatility and utilize our Dimerco Value Plus System
to provide diverse and localized solutions to meet our customers' needs and achieve our
business goals. Those goals, as always, are to satisfy our customers, to achieve our business
management objectives in compliance with our ESG standard, to support and to reward our
productive and valued employees who contribute to the growth of the company, and to deliver

a fair return to all our shareholders.

Thank you for your continued support!

Dimerco Express Corporation

Dimerco Express Group

Executive Management Board

June 6, 2023



Other Business information for year 2022:

(1) Results of Business plan implementation

Unit: NTD'000
Item IFRS IFRS Growth rate %
2021 2022
Operating Revenue 38,986,916 41,174,810 5.6%
Income after Tax 2,310,477 2,538,625 9.9%

(2) Status of Budget Accomplishment

The Company was not obligated to prepare financial forecast for year 2022 in

accordance with the “Standards on Treatment Guidelines for Disclosure of Financial

Forecast Information on Public Companies”.

(3) Analysis on financial balances and profitability

Unit: NTD’000
Year IFRS IFRS
Item 2021 2022
Operating Revenue 38,986,916 41,174,810
Financial
Balances o
Net operating income 2,690,971 2,574,757
Income after tax 2,310,477 2,538,625
Return on stockholders'
L 54% 42%
equity %
Income after tax to paid-in
Profitability Lo 170% 187%
capital %
Earnings per shares (NT$) 16.98 18.71




4)

Status of Research and Development:

Dimerco’s digital marketing starts with understanding customer needs and insights
into the market to drive all marketing activities. It leverages technology support
through data, automation, and analysis, and accelerates decision-making through
the agility of a flattened organization structure. Digital marketing works closely with
our global sales and marketing team, investing significant and optimal resources to
attract, convert, and engage customers through a seamless integration of online
and offline services.

Customer expectations for service quality continue to evolve with the rapid
development of digital technology and diversified shipping options. The importance
of digital strategy will continue to increase during and after the COVID-19 period.
Our company has increased its efforts in digital marketing and launched a brand
new global website in 2021. The website clearly communicates our value
proposition and reflects the company's strengths and management capabilities
across the Asia-Pacific region's supply chain.

In terms of digitalization, our company introduced the Dimerco Value Plus System®
(Web 2.0), a self-developed value-added messaging system, on August 1, 2009.
The system created a unified platform for sales, operations, and financial
management, and enabled effective management through a real-time information
system. The CYM (Consolidation Yield Management) and Data Synchronization
Method used in the Dimerco Value Plus System® were respectively awarded patent
certifications in the United States and Taiwan in 2014, marking the official transition
of our company from the digitization stage to the digitalization stage of technology in
2009.

During the stage of digitalization, our company focused on three main directions -
cloudification, mobilization, and intelligence - to optimize our internal and external
processes through digital technology.

In the area of cloudification, our company incorporated cloud technology in 2017 by
migrating the Dimerco Value Plus System® to a public cloud and establishing a
hybrid cloud architecture in conjunction with the construction of a private cloud. This
approach provided a balance between stability, flexibility, and cost-effectiveness.

In 2018, we established a mobile technology team to develop mobile applications
and complemented this with RPA robot technology to extend our service coverage.
In the latter half of 2021, we completed the renovation of our external digital portal,
offering a one-stop information service that includes online inquiries, booking, cargo
tracking, and goods receipt and delivery. This development enables us to offer
comprehensive digital services to our customers.

In terms of intelligentization, our company accumulates data in a private
cloud-based big data database and utilizes business intelligence technology for
analysis, providing real-time and flexible information support. Since 2018, we have
also begun to introduce artificial intelligence and machine learning, developing
real-time recommendations to give operational processes more intelligence and
improve accuracy and efficiency.

Regarding information security issues, given the increasing frequency of security
incidents, our company started investing in information security management
system in 2017 to ensure the security of our customers' valuable data assets. We
approached it from three aspects: People, Process, and Technology, to enhance
the overall security resilience. In early 2021, we successfully passed the BSI audit
and obtained the 1ISO 27001:2013 (IS 743553) certification. Later that same year,
we also passed the NIST CSF (Cybersecurity Framework) NIST 759307
verification.

Through our self-developed technology, we tightly integrate data/information flows
with our information security management system, and further combine with our
strategic partners to serve our customers, strengthen service quality, create added
value, and effectively help our customers enhance the overall efficiency of supply
chain management.



Feature Highlights
®  Supply Chain Orientation:

Integrate sales activity, operations, accounting, and financial management
across the Supply Chain in the transportation and logistics industry for
management efficiency and customer service excellence.

® Web 3.0 based collaboration on Cloud Networking with Applications:

Eases deployment, connectivity, accessibility, ensures high performance
and service reliability, as well as reduces carbon footprint by taking
advantage of energy efficient technology.

®  Resilience in information security:

Equipped with a complete information security management system
mechanism, ensuring the high availability of system services.

®  Business intelligence:

Centralizes the data control mechanism to improve data quality, with
dynamic and flexible analysis reporting tool for customizable reports.

®  Automation:

Preserves natural resources by reducing paperwork through the
automation of integrated work flow and processes across the Supply
Chain.

®  Customer Focused:

Collaboration Service Platform as well as Data Integration capabilities for
seamless connectivity with our esteemed customers.

Dimerco’s integrated e-commerce service platform and global real-time information
system (Dimerco Value Plus System® -15861), currently (1) Integrated System
consists of (5) Platforms, (8) Operation Modules, (6) Supplementary Functions and
(1) Big Data Bank. Such systems may not only upgrade the Company’s operating
performance but also help customers manage supply chains so as to cut customers’
operating cost and enhance their efficiency.

1 System
Dimerco Value Plus System® - One Integrated Transportation & Logistics Service
Management System

5 Platforms
Operating platform, service form, cloud networking platform, network safety
platform and information development platform

8 Operation Modules
eSAM - Sales Activities Management System

eCall Freight System® - Trucking Management System
eAMS - Air Freight Management System

eOMS - Ocean Freight Management System

-5-



eWMS - Logistics Warehouse Management System

eDAS - Domestic Air Freight Management System

eRMS - Railway Freight Management System for Cross-Border Train
Freight (CBTF)

® eFMS - Finance & Accounting Management System

6 Supplementary Functions

® cRate - Rate Query System

CYM® - Consolidation Yield Management System® (Patent No. | 505230
(TW) & Patent No. US 8,694,440 B2)

DYM - De-Consolidation Yield Management System

3PS - Triangle Trade & 3rd Party Billing Management System
CBS - Customs Brokerage Management System
ACS - Automated Centralized Settlement

1 Big Data Bank
Enabled By Data Synchronization Method (Patent No. | 439873 (TW) & Patent No.
US 8,850,074 B2 )



Company Profile

Dimerco, the first domestically established international logistics company approved for listing in
Taiwan, has been pursuing excellence for over 50 years since its establishment in 1971. Built on
the ethical values and corporate culture of Dimerco, the company is dedicated to creating the
most competitive international transportation and logistics service provider. Dimerco's growth
strategy revolves around global channelization, product diversification, operational optimization,
digitalization of systems, and localization of operations, with a focus on network-based services.
By seamlessly integrating physical and virtual channels, Dimerco aims to achieve a globally

accessible international logistics service.

Since October 1, 2019, the group has implemented an organizational transformation centered
around "organizational change, specialized division of labor, team leadership, and intelligent
utilization." It has established the Executive Management Board (EMB) to drive innovation and
leverage the expertise of its Business Intelligence Technology (BIT) department, which has
enhanced its commercial intelligence technology through information technology. Through the
self-developed Web 3.0 cloud logistics platform and its mobile intelligent logistics system,
Dimerco supports the group's three business units, namely air freight, ocean freight, and contract
logistics, to provide comprehensive services to customers as their "Mobile Intelligent Logistics

Service Partner."

Following the organizational transformation, Dimerco faced the global COVID-19 crisis in 2020.
Leveraging its mobile intelligent platform, fostering team collaboration, and responding rapidly to
market changes, Dimerco employed crisis management measures such as multimodal transport
and charter flights to provide individualized international transport and logistics solutions to
customers. Despite challenges, Dimerco achieved better revenue and profitability in 2020 than in

previous years, demonstrating the effectiveness of its organizational transformation.

Entering 2021, Dimerco continues to drive organizational transformation 2.0, with a focus on
intelligent utilization starting from March. By emphasizing specialized division of labor, attention
to detail, and horizontal connections, the company is implementing a flatter organizational
structure. The regional management centers for North America, mainland China and Hong Kong,
Southeast Asia, Europe, and Northeast Asia are being integrated into the Central Service Center.
This transformation aims to enhance internal management efficiency and strengthen marketing,

rapid response, and intelligent adaptation capabilities externally.

Currently, the group's global marketing service network spans over 150 locations, strategically
covering key markets such as Taiwan, China, Hong Kong in Greater China; South Korea, Japan

in Northeast Asia; Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Philippines, Indonesia, Vietnam in Southeast



Asia; India in South Asia; Australia in Oceania; the United States, Canada in North America; and
the United Kingdom, the Netherlands, Germany in Western Europe. In addition to expanding its

network of owned marketing service points, Dimerco also establishes strategic alliances through
joint ventures in North America, Southeast Asia, China, and Europe to increase service channels

and cater to important markets worldwide.

With a focus on diversification, Dimerco offers a range of service products, including air freight
contracting, ocean freight contracting, and an emphasis on the development of contract logistics.
The company integrates multimodal transport, comprehensive logistics warehousing and
distribution services, cargo insurance services, import/export customs clearance, domestic
transportation in China, cross-border land transportation, and other auxiliary and customized

services to enhance its overall service capabilities and value proposition.

Since entering the mainland China market in 1991, Dimerco has deeply cultivated the market and
currently operates nearly 80 marketing service points. It has also been awarded the "China
Famous Trademark" by the State Administration for Industry and Commerce Trademark Office.
With over 50 years of experience in the international logistics industry, Dimerco has maintained
close partnerships with top international airlines. It recognizes the environmental burden caused
by the emissions of greenhouse gases from traditional transportation tools using fossil fuels. In
2022, Dimerco achieved ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certifications in China. Its Taiwan-based
parent company, Dimerco International Logistics Co., Ltd., completed an internal greenhouse gas
inventory and successfully obtained the highest level of certification, "reasonable assurance
level," in greenhouse gas verification according to ISO 14064-1:2018 through DNV GL, an

accredited verification body recognized by the Environmental Protection Administration.

Moreover, Dimerco has received numerous recognitions, including being named "Airfreight
Forwarder of the Year" by Air Cargo Week (ACW), nominations for annual logistics awards
hosted by the British International Freight Association (BIFA) and Lloyd's Loading List, and being
listed in the Inbound Logistics (IL) Top 3PL List and G75: Green Supply Chain Partners by the US
logistics media. It was also awarded the 2022 list of 100 Great Supply Chain Partners by Supply
Chain Brain. Dimerco has been highly recognized by the Great Place to Work® Institute in the
United States, Singapore, Vietnam, China, Hong Kong, Taiwan, and Thailand, demonstrating the

company's commitment to its extensive human resources as a best practice.

In the era of mobile communications and the Internet of Things, with the rapid evolution of
artificial intelligence technology, the trend of big data and the application of semi-automation
technology, Dimerco has repositioned itself and strives to become a "Mobile Smart-Logistics

Service Partner" for its customers. It promises to leverage its self-developed Web 3.0 cloud



logistics platform (Cloud Networking) and the Dimerco Value Plus System®, a digital logistics
real-time information system, to enhance business intelligence technology (BIT) and application
development, making use of its Information Technology-enhanced BIT department's expertise.
By incorporating relevant mobile technologies into the system, the aim is to make automation
systems mobile, and to achieve product diversification, service optimization, operational
excellence, and management efficiency. This not only strengthens internal information integration
to improve the group's operational management performance but also provides customers with
real-time information required for supply chain management through diversified website
interactive features and integrated databases, thereby assisting customers in enhancing their

competitive capabilities in the market.

Dimerco's self-developed Dimerco Value Plus System® continues to innovate and currently
holds two patents in Taiwan and the United States:

(1)Consolidation Yield Management System and Method® (CYM): This system saves
manpower and time, optimizing operations, improving efficiency, and reducing learning
curves. It integrates and strengthens the ability for consolidation and shipping across
multiple sites (hubs and satellite cities). It also enables pre-planning of consolidation and
enhances the efficiency of consolidation before shipment.

(2)Data Synchronization Method®: This method effectively combines data uploaded from
subsidiary servers worldwide and stores it in a central database. With the use of business
intelligence analytics tools, it provides accurate data reporting, enabling global customers to

obtain the required data in real-time.

The MyDimerco online system of this platform connects upstream and downstream vendors and
customers. Through the concept and capabilities of a virtual office and intelligent mobile
technology, it provides customers with efficient services anytime, anywhere. Systems such as the
eSAM (Sales Management System) and eCall Freight System® (Delivery Truck Management
System) offer seamless and efficient services. The Purchase Order Management System (POMS)
helps customers reduce operating costs and improve efficiency, successfully establishing an
integrated mobile smart logistics capability that combines the virtual and the real, and is

boundless in its reach.

2.1 Date of Incorporation:

August 2, 1985



2.2 Company History

The company restructured its departments to independently set up the Air Freights

Aug 1985 Forwarder Department as Dimerco Air Freight Forwarder Co. Ltd.
Aug 1994 Cash replenishment for NTD 15 millions, shareholder’s capital be NTD 25 millions.
Feb 1995 | Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1994” by China Airlines and EVA Airways.
Mar 1995 Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1994” by American Northwest Airlines.
Apr 1995 Acquired the ISO 9002 Certification.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1995” by Singapore Airlines and EVA
Feb 1996 )
Airways.
Feb 1997 Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1996” by EVA Airways.
Mar 1997 Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1996” by Singapore Airlines.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Customer Broker” by Taipei Customs Bureau of the Ministry|
Aug 1997 )
of Finance.
Cash and earnings surplus replenishment for NTD 50 millions, shareholder’s capital be
Aug 1997 o
NTD 75 millions.
Oct 1997 Reinvested in subsidiaries at Hong Kong, Singapore, US and UK.
Nov 1997 Cash replenishment for NTD 115 millions, shareholder’s capital be NTD 190 millions.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1997” by Singapore Airlines and EVA
Feb 1998 )
Airways.
Mar 1998 Prepared for public offering.
Cash and earnings surplus replenishment for NTD 70.5 millions, shareholder’s capital be
Jun 1998 -
NTD 260.5 millions.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Customer Broker” by Taipei Customs Bureau of the Ministry|
Aug 1998 )
of Finance.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1998” by Hong Kong Cathay Pacific
Feb 1999 )
Airways.
Mar 1999 Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1998” by American Northwest Airlines,
United Parcel Service of America, Inc. (UPS), China Airlines and EVA Airways.
Aug 1999 Earnings surplus and capital surplus replenishment for NTD 56.5 millions.
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Oct 1999

Established a central billing center.

Reinvested in Dimerco Express Holding Company Limited, Diversified Freight System

Dec 1999 Corp.
Jan 2000 Cash replenishment for NTD 56 millions, paid-in capital reached to NTD 373 millions.
Feb 2000 Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 1999” by Hong Kong Cathay Pacific
Airways, China Airlines and EVA Airways.
Aug 2000 Earnings Surplus and Capital Surplus replenishment for NTD 52 millions, paid-in capital
9 reached NTD 425 millions.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 2000” by Hong Kong Cathay Pacific
Feb 2001 ) . - .
Airways, China Airlines and Dragonair.
Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 2000” by American Northwest Airlines, EVA|
May 2001 )
Airways.
Approved for public listing over-the-counter, became the first Taiwan Internal Forwarding
Jun 2001 - .
Company to be granted for stock listing.
Sep 2001 Dimerco Thailand branch to obtain customer brokerage license.
Oct 2001 Dimerco Express (Taiwan) Company was officially public listed over-the-counter.
Nov 2001 Dimerco obtained the first grade freight forwarding license in Mainland China.
Nov 2001 Earnings surplus and capital surplus for NTD 65 millions, paid-in capital reached NTD 490
millions.
Dimerco extended its territories in Europe and founded the joint ventures companies in
Dec 2001
Ireland and UK.
Mar 2002 Signed with Nortel Network on a service level agreement for logistics and distribution
warehouse services.
Mar 2002 Established office at Zhu Hai City.
Marketing service network in Mainland China of Dimerco extended to Southwest (Cheng
Apr 2002 .
Du, Chong Qing).
Jun 2002 Five branches of Dimerco obtained NVOCC licenses in Mainland China.
Aug 2002 Earnings surplus and capital surplus replenishment for NTD 70 millions, paid-in capital
9 reached NTD 560 millions.
Sep 2002 Logistic centre at Tao Yuan officially established and opened its bonded warehouse.
Nov 2002 Dimerco Mainland China branches Beijing, Tianjin, Shanghai, Fuzhou, Xiamen were

granted for customer brokers licenses.

-11 -




Jan 2003

Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 2002” by American Northwest Airlines.

Awarded as the “Outstanding Vendor for year 2002” by Hong Kong Cathay Pacific

Feb 2003 | Airways, China Airlines.

Feb 2003 Approved by Ministry of Finance of the Securities and Futures Commission to collect and
issue convertible bonds for USD 10 millions.

Mar 2003 Established Chengdu office.

Apr 2003 Established Nanjing and Ningbo offices.

Jun 2003 Established Dallas office.

Jul 2003 Established Dalian and Yenta offices.
Dimerco and Uni-Group Worldwide UTS formed strategic alliances — Type goods

Aug 2003 .
transportation.

Aug 2003 Earnings surplus and capital surplus replenishment for NTD 100 millions, paid-in capital

9 reached NTD 660 millions.

Feb 2004 Dimerco Beijing Subsidiary was awarded second in year 2003 International Sales Agent.
Dimerco Mainland China Subsidiary was awarded by Beijing Finance Bureau for

Mar 2004 “Excellent Enterprise Award for Foreign Investment Enterprise Financial Reporting in year|
2002".

Jul 2004 Earnings surplus and capital surplus replenishment for NTD 65 millions, paid-in capital
reached NTD 725 millions.

Nov 2004 Established Wuhan, Kunshan, Wuxi, Hangzhou and Xi’an offices.

Jan 2005 Established Yiwu and Chongqing offices.

Feb 2005 Dimerco Mainland China Subsidiary was awarded “Excellent Enterprise Award for
Foreign Investment Enterprise Financial Reporting in year 2003”.

Feb 2005 Established San Francisco (Logistics) office.

Apr 2005 Established Huizhou office.
Subsidiary of Dimerco awarded top 30th in ranking for “China Hundred Companies in year|

Jun 2005 W
2004".

Jun 2005 Established Shijiazhuang office.

Jul 2005 Dimerco acquired the approval on Domestic Air Transport Sales Agency Businesses etc

on Mainland China.
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Awarded 667th ranking for Public Listing among Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan

Jul2005 15 ear 2004.
Earnings surplus and capital surplus replenishment for NTD 85 millions, paid-in capital

Aug 2005 reached NTD 810 millions, capital raised to be used for expansion of worldwide sales
network.
Creditors of convertible bonds requested to convert USD 500 thousands of convertible
bonds, and use its own funds and other

Sep 2005 related intermediation of funds from the open market to repurchase USD 950 thousands
of convertible bonds. Paid-in capital amounted to NTD 122,384 thousands (Including
2,000 thousands shares of treasury stocks).

Oct 2005 Established US Hartford office.
To align with the future strategic development of the company, the company transferred its|
long-term investments including Dimerco Express Corp., Dimerco Express (U.K.) Ltd.,

Dec 2005 Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte. Ltd and Dimerco Air Forwarders (H.K.) Ltd and other
subsidiaries through equity swap to its 100% holding subsidiary Dimerco International
Logistics Corporation.

Dec 2005 Established Shunde office.

Jan 2006 Established Nantong office.
Dimerco Beijing Company was awarded as the Best Freight Forwarding Agent by Cathay

Mar 2006 N -
Pacific Airways and Dragonair.

May 2006 | Awarded the top 586th in ranking for Best 1000 services in year 2005.

Jun 2006 Established Chuan Zhou Office.

Jun 2006 Dimerco acquired the Insurance Agency qualification in Mainland China.

Jun 2006 Distribution of inland transportation service network in China — Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Fuzhou, Xiamen, Tianjin and Qingdao

Jun 2006 Established Jinan and Songjiang offices.

Jun 2006 Dimerco joint venture capital with Vietnamese company commenced its operation.
Dimerco International Transportation Co. Ltd was elected as “China Logistics Enterprise

Jun 2006 . o
with Integrity”.

Jun 2006 Diversified Transportation (China) Co. Ltd was officially opened in mid-July.

Aug 2006 Established Fuging office.

Sep 2006 Established Shenzhen (Logistics) and Shenyang offices.
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Dec 2006

Established Harbin and Langfang offices.

Jan 2007 Established Japan (Tokyo) representative office.
Feb 2007 | Established Rizhao office.
Mar 2007 Established India (Guinea) representative office.
Mar 2007 Awarded as the “Best Freight Forwarder” by Cathay Pacific Airways and Dragonair.
Apr 2007 Established Taicang office.
Apr 2007 Dimerco’s operation sites were officially over than 100 offices.
May 2007 Established Lianyungang, Qingpu, Jiading and Hsiangan offices.
May 2007 Dimerco Group was elected by the Commonwealth Magazine as the top 79th in ranking
Y for “Taiwan Best 500 Services” in year 2006
Dimerco Group was elected by Business Week as top 662th in ranking for public listing
May 2007 among Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, top 27th in ranking for its transportation
business.
Dimerco Group sponsored Mr. Cheng Wenchang on participation in France 1,200 km bike
Aug 2007
challenge.
Apr 2008 Dimerco Group established its 126th service site at Australia Lisbon.
May 2008 Dimerco donated to relief earthquake disaster at Sichuan.
Dimerco was elected by Commonwealth Magazine as top 71th in ranking for “Taiwan Best|
May 2008 i oma® §
500 Services” in year 2007.
Dimerco International Transportation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and Dimerco International
Transportation Co. Ltd were awarded for AAA grade credit rating enterprise recognition;
May 2008 Dimerco International Transportation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., which was mainly responsible
for Maritime business was also be awarded for AA grade credit rating enterprise
recognition.
China International Freight Forwarders Associations conducted the best 100 ranking
surveys of Year 2007 Annual China International Freight Forwarders Logistics Services
which were revealed on 21st May 2008; of which the best 100 ranking for Year 2007
Annual China International Freight Forwarding Logistics : Dimerco International
Transportation Co., Ltd., was ranked at top 29th; the best 50 ranking for Year 2007 Annual
May 2008 China Air Freight Forwarding Logistics : Dimerco International Transportation Co., Ltd.,

was ranked at top 12th; the best 50 ranking for Year 2007 Annual China Air Freight
Forwarding Logistics : Dimerco International Transportation (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd., was
ranked at top 24th; the top 50 ranking with cutting-edge services within the best 100
ranking for Year 2007 Annual China International Freight Forwarding Logistics : Dimerco
International Transportation (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd., was ranked at top 5th; the top 50
ranking with cutting-edge services within the best 100 ranking for Year 2007 Annual China
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International Freight Forwarding Logistics : Diversified International Transportation
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd., was ranked at top 11th; for more specific details, please visit the
website of China International Freight Forwarders.

Jul 2008

Business site at China Henan, Zhengzhou was officially in operation on 1st Aug 2008.

Jul 2008

Business site at Jiangsu Province, Changshu was officially in operation on 1st Aug 2008.

Aug 2008

Hsinchu business site was officially in operation on 26th Jul 2008, providing maritime
services.

Aug 2008

Dimerco Express (USA)Corp — Charlotte business site was officially in operation on 15th
Aug 2008.

Aug 2008

On 1st Sep 2008 commenced the business site at China Tianjin to provide Maritime
transportation services.

Sep 2008

Dimerco Express (USA)Corp —Milwaukee business site was officially in operation on 15th
Sep 2008.

Oct 2008

Hanoi business site of Dimerco Vietfracht (JV) Co., Ltd was officially in operation on 1st
Oct 2008.

Oct 2008

We are very honored to announce that the Dimerco International Logistics Group was
awarded by the Department of Commerce for Excellent recognition on “Year 2008 Best
Business Services Award” (http://www.tier.org.tw/). With this award, Dimerco so achieved
the eligibility to participate in FL Asia (Franchising & Licensing Asia), this exhibition will be|
held from 16th to 18th of October 2008 in Singapore.

Oct 2008

Dimerco Express (USA)Corp —Huston business site was officially in operation on 15th Oct|
2008.

Nov 2008

Taiwan Yilan business site of Dimerco Air Freight Forwarder Co., Ltd., was officially in
operation on 1st Nov 2008.

Nov 2008

Dimerco Express (USA)Corp —San Diego business site was officially in operation on 15th
Nov 2008.

Dec 2008

China Jiangsi Province, Nanchang office; this office was Dimerco International Logistic
Group 139th office.

Feb 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at Taiwan Changhua office;
this office be 140th office of the Group.

Feb 2009

Year 2009 Annual Conference Meeting of Dimerco International Logistic Group was held
from 9th to 10th Feb at Taipei Regent Hotel; in this two-day conference, other than the
participation of the company top management, we also invited major overseas agents to
participate in this meeting, in hope to create and provide better services to our customers
through mutual discussions. Agents cooperated with Dimerco for sales revenues of USD
1 million and above.

Mar 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at Thailand Chiang Mai; this
office be 141th office of the Group.

Jul 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at China Guangdong
province, Shantou city; this office be 142nd office of the Group.
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Jul 2009

China International Freight Forwarders Association (CIFA) surveyed the list of top 100
China International Freight Forwarders of year 2008, and the result was released on 1st
July 2009. Dimerco International Freight Forwarder was awarded the top 100 China
International Freight Forwarders of year 2008.

Aug 2009

Dimerco successfully developed Web2.0 as its platform for global timely information
system, and deployed at various global sites, to effectively integrated customer
management, customer services, logistics operations, financial accounting control and
other modules.

Aug 2009

Dimerco value-added information system was officially launched on 1st Aug 2009.

Sep 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at China Beijing Economic
and Technological Development District; this office be 143rd office of the Group.

Sep 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at China Beijing Haidian;
this office be 144th office of the Group.

Oct 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at US Raleigh New
Kaliduoni; this office be 145th office of the Group.

Nov 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at US Indianapolis, the
capital of Indiana; this office be 146th office of the Group.

Nov 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at US Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania; this office be 147th office of the Group.

Nov 2009

In response to environmental protection, energy saving and carbon reduction, Dimerco
International Logistic Group Taiwan branch — Dimerco Air Freight Forwarder Co., Ltd.,
actively cooperated with domestic major airline companies such as EVA Airways, China
Airlines, Cathay Pacific Airways and Dragonair, and participated in the “International
Electronic Air Cargo (e-freight)” program promoted by the International Air Transportation
Association (IATA).

Nov 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at Mainland China,
Longgang, Shenzhen; this office be 148th office of the Group.

Nov 2009

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at Vietham, Haiphong; this
office be 149th office of the Group.

Jan 2010

The warehouse management operation module of the Dimerco value-added information
system was officially launched.

Jan 2010

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at China, Guangdong
province, Panyu; this office be 150th office of the Group.

Jan 2010

Year 2009 Annual China Cargo Account Settlement System (CASS) Agent ranking was
officially announced. The ranking was ranged from highest to lowest amount based on the
settlement amount of each agent company with CASS during year 2009. Dimerco
International Transportation Agency Co., Ltd., under Dimerco International Logistic Group|
was awarded top 20th in ranking.

Apr 2010

Dimerco Shanghai branch was awarded A class regulatory warehouse.

May 2010

Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at Southern Thailand, Hat
Yai; this office be 151th office of the Group.

-16 -




Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at China Hebei Province,

May 2010 Tangshan City; this office be 152nd office of the Group.
May 2010 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site at US Utah, Salt Lake City;
Y this office be 153rd office of the Group.
Aug. 2010 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Luoyang, Henan
9. Province, China; this office be 154rd office of the Group.
Sep. 2010 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Yinchuan, Ningxia, China;
P: this office be 155rd office of the Group.
Oct. 2010 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Taizhou, Zhejiang, China;
’ this office be 156rd office of the Group.
Nov. 2010 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Danang City, Vietnam;
’ this office be 157rd office of the Group.
Dec. 2010 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Fenggang, Guangdong,
. China; this office be 158rd office of the Group.
Feb. 2011 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Springfield
) Massachusetts, U.S.A; this office be 159rd office of the Group.
Mar 2011 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Changping, Guangdong
Province, China; this office be 160rd office of the Group.
Mar 2011 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province, China; this office be 163rd office of the Group.
Apr 2011 Dimerco named "2010 China Advanced Logistics Providers Award".
Mav 2011 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in San Jose, CA, U.S.A;
Y this office be 164rd office of the Group.
Jun 2011 Dimerco Express (Taiwan) Corporation Determined to Apply for Double Certification of
AEO and ISO 28000.
July 2011 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Huangpu,
Y Guangzhou, China; this office be 165rd office of the Group.
July 2011 Dimerco awarded as Y2010 Top 500 companies in Service Industry in Taiwan and Top
Y 1000 Enterprises of China, Hong Kong, and Taiwan by Common Wealth.
Aug. 2011 Dimerco Named “Top 20 Global Airfreight Forwarders » in A&A Report.
Sep. 2011 Dimerco Named CIFA honors and Beijing Office Celebrates 15th Anniversary.
Oct. 2011 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Ho Chi Minh City,
' Vietnam; this office be 165rd office of the Group.
Jan. 2012 Dimerco Receives AEO Certification in Taiwan.
Jan. 2012 Dimerco acquires a US based customs brokerage service company, MYK Global

Services Inc.
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Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Taoyuan, Taiwan; this

Feb. 2012 office be 165rd office of the Group.
Dimerco Customs Brokerage Services Co. Ltd. provides customs brokerage service in
Mar 2012 USA
July 2012 Dimerco becomes first UKAS ISO28000 Certified Company in Taiwan.
Aug. 2012 Dimerco Customs Brokerage Services in Los Angeles starts operation on Aug.15.
Dimerco's India JV starts operation & Company renamed as Dimerco Express
Oct. 2012 :
Corporation on Oct 1.
Dimerco Receives Green Sustainability Award and Dimerco Netherlands is officially AEO
Feb. 2013 o
Certified.
Mar 2013 Dimerco Malaysia receives TAPA Class-A FSR Certification.
Apr 2013 Dimerco launches new Less-Than-Truckload (LTL) services in early May.
Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Wuhu, Anhui Province ;
Aug. 2013 .
The operation day was Aug.1 .
Sep. 2013 | Dimerco Receives "Best ACSC SCM Achievement" Award.
Dimerco founder & Chairman Mr. Paul Chien names Mr. Edward Lin as CEO to represent
Mar 2014 . . .
inheritance by generation.
Aor 2014 Dimerco Ranked Top by Taipei Customs Administration with Customs Declaration
P Submission thru Electronic XML.
Dimerco Consolidation Yield Management System® (CYM) and successfully filed for a
May 2014
US patent.
May 2014 Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Hefei, Anhui Province,
Y China; The operation day was May 30.
July 2014 Dimerco Announces Cambodia JV Operation and Full ownership of Australia offices.
Dimerco Launches its "China Plus - China Integrated Value+ Services" and Image Video
Oct. 2014
globally.
Nov. 2014 | Dimerco Receives 2014 China Advanced Logistics Company Award.
Dec. 2014 | Dimerco Accredited with China Well-Known Trademark.
Dimerco International Logistic Group established its new site in Changsha, Hunan
Dec. 2014 . L .
Province, China; The operation day was Jan. 1.
Jan. 2015 | Dimerco Received "NETGEAR Best Logistics Partner Runner-Up 7 .
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Apr 2015

Dimerco Singapore Receives TAPA Class-A FSR Certification

Jun 2015 Dimerco ranked on 2014's Largest Forwarders by Air Freight Metric Tonnes
Jun 2015 Dimerco Received the 2015 AFLAS Award
Aug 2015 New 3rd tier office set up in Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, China
Aug 2015 One and Only Taiwanese Company: Dimerco’s Subsidiaries Both Honorably Named in
9 CIFA 2014 Top 100 and Air Cargo Top 50 Logistics Listings
Sept 2015 | New office set up in Changzhou Jiangsu Province, China
Sept 2015 | New office set up in Rotterdam, Netherlands
Sept 2015 | Dimerco Opens New Rotterdam Office in September
Sept 2015 | New office set up in Jia Xing, Zhejiang Province, China
Oct 2015 Dimerco New Office Set Up in Walnut Creek, CA, U.S.A.
Nov 2015 New office set up in Yinchuan, Ningxia, China
Nov 2015 New office set up in Zhuhai, Guangdong, China
Feb 2016 Dimerco named Top 5 freight forwarders of Chennai Air Cargo Complex
Dimerco sponsored the Mid-Peninsula Boys & Girls Club (MPBGC) Invitational Golf
Apr 2016
Tournament
From vision to reality - Dimerco is recognized as one of the most competitive global
Apr 2016 ) L : ) .
transportation & logistics service providers, integrators & consultants
Dimerco celebrates the success of its debut on Air Cargo News’ latest Top 25 Global
May 2016 Freight Forwarders List, as well as being ranked by Transport Topics’ 2016 as a Top
Ocean Freight Forwarder among leading competitors.
Jun 2016 Diversified Freight System (DFS) Corporation, was granted the Authorized Economic
Operator (AEO) certification by Taiwan’s Keelung Customs Office
Jun 2016 New office set up in Ahmedabad, India
Jun 2016 Dimerco is Awarded as “Airfreight Forwarder of the Year 2016” by Air Cargo Week
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Dimerco Zhongjing International Express Co., Ltd. and Dimerco International
Transportation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. are both ranked in the Top 100 International Freight

July 2016 Forwarders and Top 50 Air International Freight Forwarders lists by China International
Freight Forwarders Association (CIFA) at the Y2015 Top Lists annual award ceremony
held in Dalian, China on July 28, 2016.

Aug 2016 New office set up in Hyderabad, India

Aug 2016 Dimerco impresses in India with another industry award

Sep 2016 HJN operating vessel tracking information - HIN / YML / EMC website

Sep 2016 Dimerco celebrates success in China.

Oct 2016 New office set up in Shunde, Guangdong, China

Oct 2016 New office set up in Guangzhou, Guangdong, China

Nov 2016 New office set up in Guangzhou, Guangdong, China and Mumbai, India.

Dec 2016 New office set up in Qingdao, Shandong, China

Dec 2016 New office set up in Xiamen, Fujian, China

Feb 2017 Dimerco was ranked as the best employee welfare among the forwarding industry by
Wealth Magazine in Taiwan. [February 2017- 522 edition]

Apr 2017 Dimerco new office set up in Portland, OR, U.S.A

M Dimerco celebrates Its Strong Growth in Ocean Freight with Recognition by Transport

ay 2017 )

Topic.
Dimerco approved Tax Credit by Taiwan Government first time for the IT innovation on its

May 2017
R&D Investment.

May 2017 Dimerco wins Air freight Forward of the Year 2017.

Apr 2018 New office set up in Wuhan, Hubei, China.

Apr 2018 Dimerco Express Group rolls out latest technology to keep ahead of the curve.

Apr 2018 New office set up in Linyi, Shandong, China.

May 2018 Dimerco New Office Set Up in Irvine, CA, U.S.A. on May 08,2018
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May 2018 Dimerco crowned Airfreight Forwarder of the Year for third time.
Jul 2018 MTO accreditation opens growth opportunity for Dimerco in India
Aug 2018 New office set up in Shanghai, China
Strengthening owned customs brokerage service, Dimerco's new India JV starts
Aug 2018 )
operation on August 1st
Sep 2018 Dimerco named as awards finalist for second year by Lloyd’s Loading List
Oct 2018 New office set up in Suzhou, China (Ocean Freight)
Oct 2018 New office set up in Hefei, China (Ocean Freight)
Dimerco Highlighted China and ASEAN Inbound Logistics Capability at China
Nov 2018 -
International Import Expo
Dec 2018 Supporting developmentally disabled children in Taiwan, Dimerco provides 100 lunch
boxes with love at its Annual Friendship Golf Tournament
Jan 2019 New office set up in Singapore (Ocean Freight)
Jan 2019 Dimerco carries out dual-brand strategy with dedicated ocean freight service team in
Singapore
Dimerco highlights its historical milestone with corporate value and strength at Annual
Feb 2019 .
Management Meeting
Mar 2019 Dimerco delivers urgent Aerospace cargo from US to China in 5 days
Apr 2019 New office set up in Seattle, U.S.A.
Apr 2019 Dimerco expands North American network with new Seattle office
Jun 2019 New office set up in Nanjing, China
Jun 2019 New office set up in Chongging, China
Sep 2019 New office set up in Mianyang, China
Sep 2019 New office set up in Nansha, China
Oct 2019 Dimerco Express Group has restructured to set up an Executive Management Board

(EMB)
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Dec 2019

Dimerco collaborates with strategic Mexico partner to facilitate logistics for Villanueva

Jan 2020 Dimerco and Elanders enter joint venture for air and sea freight forwarding business
Apr 2020 Dimerco achieves recognition of AEO accreditation across China
Sep 2020 New office set up in Shenzhen, China
Aor 2021 Dimerco achieved the internationally recognized ISO 27001 certification for Dimerco
p Value Plus System® by BSI (British Standards Institute)
Jul 2021 Dimerco Hosts 2021 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
Dimerco celebrates 50-year milestone and has marked the milestone with the unveiling of]
a dynamic new website, which is linked to the company’s market leading Dimerco Value
Jul 2021 ) S
Plus System® via a range of new features, and a commemorative video that reflects
Dimerco’s impressive growth and many accolades over the years.
Oct 2021 New Sales Office Set Up in New Jersey
Dec 2021 Dimerco Locks in Cyber Security with NIST CSF Certification
Mar 2022 Dimerco Expands to Phoenix, AZ USA — Joint Venture with BC Logistics
Mar 2022 New office set up in Savannah, U.S.A.
May 2022 Dimerco become the first in China to obtain ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 certifications.
Jun 2022 Dimerco holds 111th annual shareholders' meeting.
Dimerco is once again listed in the Top 3PL List by Inbound Logistics, a US logistics
Jul 2022 authority, and was recognized as a Green Supply Chain Partner G75: Green Supply
Chain Partners 2022.
Set up a new maritime subsidiary, Diversified Freight System Philippines Corporation, in
Aug 2022 I
the Philippines on August 1.
Aug 2022 Dimerco was honored as one of the "2022 list of 100 Great Supply Chain Partners" by the
9 well-known American media, Supply Chain Brain, for the first time.
Oct 2022 Dimerco was certified in Thailand by the Great Place to Work® Institute after being
recognized in the US, Singapore, Vietnam, China, Hong Kong, and Taiwan in 2021.
Dimerco became the first in Taiwan to obtain the ISO 14064-1:2018 certification and
Nov 2022 ) . )
declared its goal to strengthen its green supply chain.
Dimerco recently held its "2023 Global Managers Conference" in Singapore to celebrate
Feb 2023 ) h
its record-breaking revenue for the year.
Dimerco continues to strengthen supply chain cargo security and customs clearance
efficiency. Its Singapore subsidiary has been awarded the international certifications of
Feb 2023 "Good Distribution Practice for Medical Devices (GDPMDS)" and "Secure Trade

Partnership (STP) - STP-Plus" for its excellent distribution practices and commitment to
trade security.
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Corporate Governance Report

3.1 Organization

Our company is engaged in international transportation and logistics services, possessing dense global marketing
serves network, its business-invested enterprises cover Sea and Air Freight Forwarders, Sea/Air, Air/Sea Joint
Transportation, Customers Declaration/Inspections, Truck Transportation, China Inland Transportation,
Warehousing, Real Estate Investment and Supply Chain Management services and consulting businesses.

In 2022, the company continued to expand its global footprint by establishing new shipping operation centers in
Savannah Port, USA, and the Philippines. Additionally, it formed a joint venture subsidiary in Phoenix, Arizona,
USA. These initiatives aim to strengthen its core competitiveness and position the company as the preferred
logistics partner for high-tech industry clients in the North American region.

1. Company Organizational Chart: please refer to page 25

2. Group Organizational Chart: please refer to page 26
3. The business operations of each major department are as follows:
(1)Executive Management Board(EMB)&Group Headquarters:

Responsible for formulating the overall business strategy and plans for the group, overseeing operations,
research and development, as well as managing legal and public relations affairs.

Department
Business Intelligence
Technology Department(BIT)

Digital Division (DIG)

Job Functions and Descriptions
Responsible for the planning and execution of the network and
information connection of the group's subsidiaries
Responsible for the group's digital technology development and digital
marketing planning and execution.
Responsible for operation planning and integration of internal
coordination and communication, expansion of the service network and
maintenance & development of agent relationship.
Responsible for the group's global marketing and business planning and
execution.
In charge of investment and investor relation maintenance
Responsible for group’s finance & accounting related matters.
To develop Human resources planning and implementation.
To review company contracts, assist on resolving overseas and
domestic litigation cases, insurance related matters, and
compilation of regulation.
Assist the staffs of the group subsidiaries to fulfill their responsibilities
and determine the accuracy of their work to improve the effectiveness of|
entire organization.
Responsible for shareholder’s related services

Business Development &
Coordination

Global Sales & Marketing

Investment
Finance
Human Resources

Legal

Internal Audit

Stockholders Service

(2) Dimerco Express Corporation Taiwan Branch:
Responsible for the operation, integration, and related business activities in Taiwan region.

Department Job Functions and Descriptions
Responsible for the planning and execution of the network and
information connection of the group's subsidiaries

Responsible for work environment and employee safety protection

General Manager's Office

Occupational Safety and Health

matters.

Human Resources Management
(including Quality Assurance)

Responsible for human resources planning and execution, as well as
handling planning and providing management-level reports.

Business Intelligence
Technology

Responsible for computer and network maintenance, system
development, and related business activities.

Finance and Accounting

Responsible for finance, treasury, cash budgeting, accounting
operations, tax reporting, and cost calculation.

Contract Logistics

Responsible for logistics and warehousing services.

Air Freight Operations

Responsible for airport import and export customer service, operations
and freight forwarding services, customs clearance, vehicle dispatch,
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airport customs declaration, customs clearance, and cargo
consolidation.

Northern Taiwan Business Office

Responsible for domestic and international operations, marketing,
import and export, and business activities in Northern Taiwan.

Central Taiwan Business Office

Responsible for domestic and international operations, marketing,
import and export, and business activities in Hsinchu and Taichung.

Southern Taiwan Business
Office

Responsible for domestic and international operations, marketing,
import and export, and business activities in Tainan and Kaohsiung.

Sales and Marketing

Responsible for integrated and strategic planning in Taiwan region.
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IV. Capital Overview

4.1 Capital and Shares

4.1.1 Source of Capital
A. Issued Shares

Unit: Share/NT$
Authorized Capital Paid-in Capital Remark
Par Capital
Month/
Value Amount Amount . Increased by
Year (NT$) Shares (NT$ thousands) Shares (NT$ thousands) Sources of Capital Assets Other Other
than Cash
Aug1985 | 10 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 Establishment of Company Nil
Aug1994 | 10 2,500,000 25,000,000 2,500,000 25,000,000 Capial Replenishment by Cash Nil
Capital Replenishment by Earnings -
Aug1997 | 10 20,000,000 200,000,000 7,500,000 75,000,000 Cap"asl‘,;'s")'::ngfrgg;ggg Cash Nil
45,000,000
Nov1997 | 10 | 20,000,000 200,000,000 19000000 190000000 Captzl Rﬁﬂ";g‘;g”ggg’ by Cash Nil
Capital Replenishment by Earnings Remark
Surplus 20,500,000 " 1
Jun 1998 10 30,000,000 300,000,000 26500000 260500000 Copita Foplarishonantby Gash Nil
50,000,000
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Aug 1999 10 35,000,000 350,000,000 31,700000 317,000,000 surplus and capital reserves Nil 2
56,500,000
Jan2000 | 10 | 44,000,000 440,000,000 37300000 373000000 Capial Replonishment by Cash il Remark
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Aug 2000 10 44,000,000 440,000,000 42,500,000 425000000 surplus and capital reserves Nil
52,000,000
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Nov 2001 10 62,000,000 620,000,000 49,000,000 490,000,000 surplus and capital reserves Nil 5
65,000,000
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Aug 2002 10 110,000,000 1,100,000,000 56,000000 560,000,000 surplus and capital reserves Nil 6
70,000,000
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Aug 2003 10 110,000,000 1,100,000,000 66,000,000 660,000,000 surplus and capital Nil 7
reserves 100,000,000
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Jul 2004 10 118,000,000 1,180,000,000 72,500,000 725000000 surplus and capital reserves Nil 8
65,000,000
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Aug 2005 10 120,500,000 1,205,000000 81,000000 810,000,000 surplus and capital reserves Nil 9
85,000,000
First time conversion of overseas Remark
Sep2005 | 10 1238417 12384170 82238417 oz | Usecured negotiable convertible Nil 10
1,238,417 shares
Capital Replenishment by earnings Remark
Oct 2006 10 120,500,000 1,205,000,000 91,900,000 919,000,000 surplus and capital reserves Nil 11
96,615,830
Oct 2007 10 120500000 1205000000 100200000 1002000000 | CaPital gﬁféfgs'sggnggé %Voga'”'”gs Nil Re;“;”‘
Oct 2008 10 138000000 1380000000 16000000 1160000000 | Capital g;‘;'ﬁ’s"ﬁ';rg%’&bgo?rn'"95 Nil Re:”;'k
Oct 2009 10 138000000 1,380,000,000 123000000 1230000000 | Capital gﬁfﬁ;‘:;‘g‘ggé %{)gami"gs Nil Req’frk
July2010 | 10 | 138,000,000 | 1,380,000,000 | 131,000,000 | 1,310,000,000 |C@Ptal gﬁfﬁjfgg”ggé %{)gam'”gs Nil Re:’g"k
July 2011 10 138000000 1380000000 135000000 1350000000 | CaPital 23?;?::25" 585 %{)E amings Nil Reﬂfrk
Mar2014 | 10 138000000 1380000000 133000000 1330000000 Write-off Treasury Stock Nil Remark
June 2014 | 10 138000000 1,380000000 13100000 1310000000 Write-cff Treasury Stock Nl Remark
Oct20t4 | 10 | 138000000 1380000000 129000000 1290000000 Write-off Trsasury Stock ni | Remark
Sep2018 | 10 138000000 1380000000 126000000 1260000000 Write-oft Treasury Stock Nil Remark
Sep 2021 10 168000000 1,680,000000 136,080,000 1360800000 | Capital gﬁfmsls%nggé %%gam'"gs Nil Re;ark

2: Approval no.:(1999)Tai Sai Zheng (one)No. 63675
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Remark 3: Approval no.:(1999)Tai Sai Zheng (one)No. 110263
Remark 4: Approval no.:(2000)Tai Sai Zheng (one)No. 58288
Remark 5: Approval no.:(2001)Tai Sai Zheng (one)No. 166245
Remark 6: Approval no.: Tai Sai Zheng (one)No. 0910143800
Remark 7: Approval no.: Tai Sai Zheng (one)No. 0920131682
Remark 8: Approval no.: Jing Guan Zheng (one)No. 09301314198
Remark 9: Approval no.: Jing Guan Zheng (one)No. 0940132104
Zheng Gui Jian (one)No. 0940201622
Zheng Gui Jian (one)No. 0950027470
Zheng Gui Jian (one)No. 0960203341

Remark 10: Approval no.:
Remark 11: Approval no.:
Remark 12: Approval no.:
Remark 13: Approval no.
Remark 14: Approval no.
Remark 15: Approval no.:

.. Jing Guan Zheng (one)No.

: Zheng Gui Jian (one)No. 0970202178
: Zheng Gui Jian (one)No. 0980202178
heng Gui Jian (one)No. 0990035003

1000032276

.. Jing Shou Shang No. 10301040870

Remark 18: Approval no.:
Remark 19: Approval no.:
Remark 20: Approval no.:
Remark 21: Approval no.:

B. Type of Stock

Jing Guan Zheng (one)No.
Jing Guan Zheng (one)No.

10301109420
10301219720

Jing Shou Shang No. 107011111150
Jing Shou Shang No. 11001164720

Unit: Thousand Shares

Authorized Capital
Share Type Remarks
Issued Shares Un-issued Shares Total Shares
Registered
Common Stock 136,080 31,920 168,000
Overall reporting system and related information: None
C. Information for Shelf Registration: N/A
4.1.2 Status of Shareholders April 8, 2023
X . Other . Foreign
Government Financial - Domestic P
Item . S Juridical Institutions & Total
Agencies Institutions Persons Natural Persons Natural Persons
Number of
Shareholders 0 0 191 34,134 171 34,496
Shareholding (shares) 0 0 26,706,455 85,829,954 23,543,591 136,080,000
Percentage 0.00% 0.00% 19.62% 63.08% 17.30% 100.00%

-79-




4.1.3 Shareholding Distribution Status

A. Common Shares

April 7, 2023
Class of Shareholding (Unit: Share) SE‘:QE;LZ; Sh(asrﬁzgelgi)ng Percentage
1~999 18,263 1,182,051 0.89%
1,000 ~ 5,000 13,772 24,964,953 18.76%
5,001 ~ 10,000 1,379 9,829,361 7.39%
10,001 ~ 15,000 469 5,589,622 4.2%
15,001 ~ 20,000 165 2,929,348 2.2%
20,001 ~ 30,000 156 3,848,686 2.89%
30,001 ~ 40,000 66 2,304,324 1.73%
40,001 ~ 50,000 47 2,139,003 1.61%
50,001 ~ 100,000 71 4,956,034 3.72%
100,001 ~ 200,000 37 5,106,833 3.84%
200,001 ~ 400,000 24 6,891,664 5.18%
400,001 ~ 600,000 15 7,557,227 5.68%
600,001 ~ 800,000 4 2,696,042 2.03%
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 1 984,000 0.74%
1,000,001 or over 27 53,100,852 39.14%
Total 34,496 136,080,000* 100%

B. Preferred Shares: None

4.1.4 List of Major Shareholders

*exclude 3,000,000 shares of treasury stock

Shareholding
Shareholder's Name
Shares Percentage
MEC Electronics Corporation 7,279,243 5.47%
Chien, Yao-Huai 5,042,085 3.79%
Universal Consulting Ltd. 3,522,960 2.65%
Mo Hsin Investment Ltd. 2,874,960 2.16%
Ruei Cheng Investment Ltd. 2,680,880 2.01%
AGM INVESTMENT LTD 2,362,000 1.77%
Su, Yu-Shin 2,307,607 1.73%
Deng Fu Ltd. 1,759,693 1.32%
Chien, Wen-Li 1,756,821 1.32%
Chien, Wen-Yi 1,724,887 1.30%
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4.1.5 Market Price, Net Worth, Earnings, and Dividends per Share
Unit: NT$/share; thousand share

Items 2021 2022 01/01/2023 - 3/31/2023

Market Price per Share

Highest Market Price 160.00 115.50 85.80
Lowest Market Price 55.40 57.60 77.60
Average Market Price 92.65 85.67 82.24

Net Worth per Share

Before Distribution 31.66 441 34.77

After Distribution Note 8 Note 8 Note 8

Earnings per Share

Weighted Average Shares

(thousand shares) 136,080 136,080 136,080
Diluted Earnings Per Share 16.98 18.71 1.95
Dividends per Share
Cash Dividends 10.2 10.7 -
Stock Dividends
¢ Dividends from Retained Earnings - - -
¢ Dividends from Capital Surplus - - -
Accumulated Undistributed Dividends 5,695 20,665 1,476,487
Return on Investment
Price / Earnings Ratio (Note 1) 5.46 4.58 -
Price / Dividend Ratio (Note 2) 9.08 8.01 -
Cash Dividend Yield Rate (Note 3) 11.01 12.49 -

x If there is capital increase by retained earning or capital surplus, company should disclose information about market value adjustment by the
issued shares and information about cash dividends.

Note 1 : Show the highest and lowest market value of common stock, in addition, use sales price and sales volume to calculate the annual
average market value.

Note 2 : Please use the ending outstanding shares and fill the amount followed by next year’s board committee.

Note 3 : Before-and-after distribution of EPS should be disclosed if there is any situation of no charge dividends which should be adjustment to
past period.

Note 4 : If the requirement of equity securities rules that the dividend payable should be accumulated and have to pay when the company has
profit. The amount of accumulated dividend payable should be disclosed.

Note 5 : Price / Earnings Ratio = Average Market Price / Earnings per Share

Note 6 : Price / Dividend Ratio = Average Market Price / Cash Dividends per Share

Note 7 : Cash Dividend Yield Rate = Cash Dividends per Share / Average Market Price

Note 8 : Net Worth per Share and Earnings per Share amount should be showed by the nearest quarter which audited and certified by CPA.

Note 9 : Use IFRS information that CPA audited and certified.
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4.1.6 Dividend Policy and Implementation Status
A. Dividend Policy

If earnings are available for distribution at the end of a fiscal year, 10% of net earnings — that is, after
offsetting any loss from prior year(s) and paying all taxes and dues — shall be set aside as legal reserve
and appropriated in accordance with the Securities Exchange Law. The remaining net earnings can be
distributed along with prior accumulated unappropriated retained earnings. The Board of Directors will
consider the above-mentioned factors when making the dividend distribution proposal. Dividends will
be distributed in accordance with the resolution approved by the Board of Directors and at the annual
shareholders’ meeting. The remaining balances will be distributed in the following manner:

B. Proposed Distribution of Dividend

15™ Mar. 2023, after set aside NTD 254,674,637 as legal reserve according Company Law and the
Atrticles of Incorporation, Board of Directors proposed to distribute NTD 42,071,058 as remuneration for
directors and supervisors, NTD 147,500,761 as remuneration for employees. Cash dividends for
shareholders NTD 1,456,056,000 and Stock dividends for shareholders NTD 68,040,000 will be
proposed in the annual shareholders’ meeting for resolution.

4.1.7 The proposed free stock distribution at this shareholders' meeting and its impact on the
company's operating performance and earnings per share:

In the fiscal year 111, the portion of shareholder dividends from the earnings distribution will be
distributed in the form of cash dividends.

4.1.8 Employee and Directors' and Supervisors' Remuneration
A. Information Relating to Employee and Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration in the Articles of Incorporation

If earnings are available for distribution at the end of a fiscal year, 10% of net earnings — that is, after offsetting any
loss from prior year(s) and paying all taxes and dues — shall be set aside as legal reserve and appropriated in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Law. The remaining net earnings can be distributed along with prior
accumulated unappropriated retained earnings. The Board of Directors will consider the above-mentioned factors
when making the dividend distribution proposal.

The Atrticles of Incorporation prescribes the following for the employee and compensation for directors and
supervisors:

1. No less than 5% as a remuneration for employees;

2. No more than 5 % as remuneration for directors and supervisors;

If the above-mentioned remuneration for employees is in the form of a stock bonus, it may also be distributed to
employees of subsidiary companies. The Board of Directors is authorized to work out the conditions and procedures
of making such distribution.

The estimated remuneration for employees is NTD 147,501 thousand, remuneration for directors and supervisors is
NTD42,071 thousand as of 2022.

B. Profit Distribution for employees and Directors’ and Supervisors’ remuneration:

(1) Distribution of cash dividends to employees and remuneration for directors and supervisors:

In 2022, it is proposed to distribute employee remuneration in the amount of NT$147,501 thousand and
remuneration for directors and supervisors in the amount of NT$42,071 thousand. The proposed amounts for cash
dividends to employees and remuneration for directors and supervisors are consistent with the estimated amounts in
the company's consolidated financial statements for 2022.

(2) Starting from 2008, the implementation of employee profit sharing and the recognition of remuneration for
directors and supervisors as expenses, any differences between the estimated employee remuneration and
remuneration for directors and supervisors in the financial statements for 2022 will be recorded as income or
expenses for 2022.

(3) Taking into consideration the proposed employee remuneration and remuneration for directors and supervisors

for 2022 as expenses attributed to the earnings of the year, the calculated after-tax basic earnings per share would
increase from NTD 16.98 to NTD18.71, an increase of NTD1.73.
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C. Distribution of Earnings for Employee Compensation and Director/Supervisor Remuneration in the Previous Year:
The resolution for the distribution of earnings for the fiscal year 2021 was approved by the Board of Directors on March
17, 2022, and the distribution report was presented at the shareholders' meeting on June 8, 2022
4.1.9 Buyback of Treasury Stock:

A. On October 12, 2022, a board meeting was held, and it was resolved to repurchase 3,000,000 treasury
shares and transfer the shares to employees.

B.The repurchase of company shares from the Taiwan Stock Exchange centralized market was completed on
December 8, 2022. A total of 3,000,000 treasury shares were repurchased, accounting for 2.2% of the total issued
shares of the company. The average repurchase price per share was NT$67.

4.1.10 According to the "Guidelines for the Disclosure of Annual Report Information by Publicly Issued
Companies,"” Appendix 15, the names, acquisitions, and subscription details of the top ten
managers who have obtained employee stock options certificates and whose subscription amount
exceeds NT$30 million up to the date of the annual report's printing are as follows: Not application

4.2 Bonds: Not application

4.3 Preferred Stock:Not application

4.4 Global Depository Receipts: Not application

4.5 Employee Stock Options: Not application

4.6 Restricted Stock: Not application

4.7 Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: Not application

4.8 Financing Plans and Implementation: Not application
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V. Operational Highlights
5.1 Business Activities

Dimerco provides a comprehensive range of logistics services to capture changing market trends and
builds stable relationships and matures together with customers and partners. Driven by our
customer-oriented culture, we enjoy exploring the supply chain needs of our customers, helping them
find the best logistics solution through mutual cooperation, business intelligence technology capability,
and a professional and flexible service team.
(I) Business area
Thorough logistics services
sInternational air freight including charter flight services
eInternational sea freight
*Multimodal transport, including Sea/Air freight, Air/Sea freight, and cross-border road freight
(truck, railway)
*Contract logistics
Local logistics in China
*Customs declaration/commodity inspection
*Cargo insurance service
*Global logistics management consulting
Business Intelligence Technology
The Dimerco Value Plus System® was successfully upgraded and the latest Web.3.0 Cloud
Networking and intelligent mobile applications were introduced in 2017-2019. With the concept and
the capability of a virtual office, the Company provides customers high quality services anytime and
anywhere using smart devices.
*MyDimerco cooperative service platform
With a more optimized interactive interface system or mobile version, the Company helps the
customer learn the whole transportation management process. It includes the process of
sending the raw materials to the factory and the process of sending finished products that are
processed and packaged to the market distribution centers around the world. In addition to cargo
tracking, the Company also provide customers with understanding of shipment volume and price
analysis, real-time online reporting, and other services to quickly and effectively analyze and
achieve customer critical performance indicators.
*POMS, Purchase Order Management System
In 2017, Dimerco demonstrated its IT capability by launching an intelligent management
platform POMS (Purchase Order Management System), dedicated to enhancing the overall
efficiency of our supply chain management focused on our customers’ orders. Not only does
POMS connect with customers’ purchase order management systems, and synchronize with the
Dimerco Value Plus System® for online booking, but it also enables customers to keep track of
real-time information on sales, shipping, purchasing and warehousing.
*Cross-Border eCommerce EDI Integration
Cross border e-commerce has advanced from a stage of rapid rise to booming development in
recent years. Dimerco has reinforced its organizational power to develop new business by
forming an action team, integrating sales and customer services around the world, and
continued to win over a number of multinational companies and cross border e-commerce
companies. lts self-developed Dimerco Value Plus System® allies customers, international
logistics providers (referring to Dimerco) and local couriers, performing electronic data
interchange (EDI) to help customers synchronize all logistics information with local couriers.
Ultimately, the Company successfully achieves the fastest delivery of goods from warehouses
to customers within their required timeframe.
*eCallFreight® System — an intelligent logistics front end system
To integrate the door-to-door services of international transportation and mobile logistics
system, Dimerco launched the development of a truck dispatch management system called the
“eCallFreight® System” at the beginning of 2015, strengthening the connections between truck
dispatch, pickup and distribution services in the front-end and back-end of international
logistics. By implementing this solution, the Company cooperated with local logistics partners
by using loT (Internet of Things) to unify data streams and information flows to achieve
digitalization. Meanwhile, the Company established a substantial database to improve the
safety of cargo freight, and maximize operational efficiency and quality of service.
*Value+ Mobile Assistance APP(VMA): Provide field personnel with more convenient, faster, and
easier access of import and export goods shipment data at any time and any place. Update
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relevant milestones and upload photograph. In addition, it is also equipped with the Vendor Mode, a
real-time feedback function for cargo Proof of Delivery information developed specifically for field or
outsourced truck drivers by Dimerco, allowing customers to receive more timely cargo information.

«eWMS APP: Through the mobile phone APP coupled with a handheld scanning device,
warehouse managers may engage in simpler and more intuitive operations according to
customers’ different needs. The actual operations and system updates are integrated to
accelerate and ensure smoother operating processes and reduce operational errors.

*Miles Do APP: In order to prevent problems with air import and export and enhance operational
speed, this APP all-in-one features, including data cross-checking, printing label, and milestone |
order to provide service contents with higher quality.

*Dimerco MFA (Multi-Factor Authentication): In order to ensure ERP system login security. The
Dimerco MFA has been self-developed. Verification codes can be obtained via the APP or e-mail
in order to ensure the identity of the user at login and reduce information security risks.

*DimBot: By integrating Machine Learning and Al, the computer will be able to assist the primary
user in completing daily operations, obtain correct flight information from Airline websites,
automatically update the ERP system, and automatically send notifications in the event of
abnormal situations. In order to reducing users’ usual work, the efficiency of information
acquisition can also be obtained, thereby providing higher quality and faster services.

*MyHome Plus App:To provide customers with better service, Dimerco has developed the
MyHome Plus App for its employees, allowing them to easily and quickly access important
company information and communication through their mobile phones. The app includes
functions such as important company activity messages, internal news releases, Freight Market
Forecast, eAWB Monitor, contact information for major branches, holiday and attendance status
inquiries, etc. Through these functions, employees can quickly understand the current market
situation, provide customers with a better pricing foundation, and assist customers in making
more suitable arrangements for their cargo and services.

*RPA (Robotic Process Automation) Process Automation: With years of cultivating digital
capabilities, Dimerco has positioned 2023 as the year of digital transformation and established an
RPA seed team to conduct in-depth research on global logistics service processes. By utilizing
RPA software, the team has achieved unified and digitalized information, enhancing operational
and management efficiency, as well as service levels.

Industries that main customers are in

The Company'’s revenue distribution 2022 are categorized into High-tech Electronics, Computers

& Peripherals 26.6%, Semiconductors 20.3%, Transportation 11.9%, Machine Tools 7.2%, Raw

Materials 4.1%, Medical Equipment 3.7%, Communications 4.0%,Apparel &Textiles,3.5%,Retail
3.2% and Personal Products 2.5%.

New project development and promoted service

® In view of the increasing importance of the ability to maintain customer information security
and protection, an application of the “Plan to improve and upgrade the security of logistics
loT information” at the Department of Commerce, MOEA in 2020. The dual certification of
1SO27001:2013 and NIST CSF was completed in 2021. And planning to complete the
preparation and requirements related to the new version of 1ISO27001:2022 by 2023 and
expect to obtain the verification of the new version of ISO27001:2022 by January 2024.

® In the era of cellular loT, with the wide use of smart wearables, augmented reality, big data
and cloud computing, the demand for intelligent mobile applications is expected to rise
exponentially. Not only has Dimerco continuously advanced its business intelligence
technologies to meet the changing environment, but also integrated and utilized mobile
technologies, business intelligence, and RPA (Robotic Process Automation) to provide
customers management and service solutions with greater efficiency.

® To facilitate the development of contract logistics, Dimerco continues to cultivate and
enhance outreach of its integrated logistics services in China, Hong Kong, Singapore,
Taiwan, the United States and Germany.

®  Strengthening the expansion of cross-border trucking service between Southeast Asia and
mainland China. Published an image video to promote the Company’s technology capability
in 2020, integrated the door-to-door services of international transportation and mobile
logistics system by utilizing its self-developed truck dispatch management system called the
“eCallFreight® System,” and published a customized cross-border trucking service video in
2021, hoping to effectively increase the transportation flexibility for customers.

®  Moving towards diversified all-rounded logistic services, in addition international transport
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services, contract logistics, and cross-domain truck products, Dimerco shall continue to
strengthen the promotion of cross-domain railway transport between China and Europe.
The plan for air transport transfer to truck logistics from China to Mexico with a transit stop in
the United States has been developed to effectively solve the problem of direct flights and
cabin seat shortages.

®  The Company utilizes its business intelligence technology and resources within the Group
to strengthen the promotion of logistics services such as long-haul international Sea/Air LCL,
and customized charter flights for large precision instruments.

®  Dimerco continues to actively carry out business development and
investment related activities in North America, Mainland China, Europe,
India and Southeast Asia.

[ ] Dimerco continues to cooperate with airlines on the IATA eAWB program.

®  The Company performs research and development on its business intelligence technology
logistics platform and continuously optimizes its operation. In the era of digitalization, the
Company utilizes the functions of the information system to provide more diversified
value-added services to our customers through in-depth internal and external supply chain
integration.

®  Through the update of Dimerco website (www.dimerco.com) with market trends, real-time
tracking of air and sea cargos are provided for global customers, the MyDimerco platform
offers value-added services to customers, including customer logistics statistical reports,
global logistics distribution solutions, etc. In 2021, the platform was redesigned. Through
technological integration, customers’ digital experiences in terms of real-time market
information, network price inquiry, and logistic knowledge sharing was strengthened.

®  Dimerco builds a professional services team to expand its services to more customers in
other major industries, such as aerospace, apparel & textiles, auto components, consumer
electronics, cross border e-commerce, medical equipment, oil & gas, and semiconductors
and solar energy equipment.

Industry Overview:

[Change in the logistics industry and the arrangement of the Group]

Although the main business of the Company is air and ocean freight forwarding, under the global
logistics operation structure it is closely linked to industries such as road freight, warehousing, import
and export customs clearance, distribution, supply chain management, finance, and information
services. The Company will strengthen its contract logistics services by the end of 2019. Besides
setting up corresponding departments for the above industries to handle the operation and invest in
related businesses, Dimerco cooperates with companies around the world to form a complete global
logistics and transport network. All processes from the acquisition of raw materials to the delivery to
the required end can be provided by Dimerco under the arrangement of the Company. We provide
our customers with the most effective and efficient time, cost, human resources and cargo control
mechanisms from production to sale.

Relationship with the upstream, mid-stream and downstream industries: As a transport company,
Dimerco mainly provides air freight services. The service is largely provided to companies that deal
with import/export business. The upstream suppliers, manufacturers and exporters ask the forwarder
to book a flight from the airline company. When the supply of empty flight room is greater than the
demand, the transportation fee drops. On the contrary, when the demand of empty flight room is
greater than the supply, the transportation fee increases. When a flight is arranged, the road
transport company will deliver the cargo to be exported to the air freight container yard. The
Company that handles the customs declaration business will report the import/export information to
customs. After the cargo customs clearance is complete, the cargo will be delivered to the
destination through air transportation. Based on different requirements, different distribution and
sales methods will be arranged. A local truck transport company will then deliver the cargo to the
downstream manufacturers, importers or locations designated by the end customer. This way, the
whole air freight transportation process is complete.

From 2017 to 2019, in view of the rapid change of artificial intelligence, the application of big data
and semi-automation in the era of cellular IoT, Dimerco has repositioned itself and strived to become
a “Mobile Intelligence Logistics Service Provider” of customers. The Company is committed to using
its self-developed Dimerco Value Plus System®, an intelligent logistics real-time information platform
on Web 3.0 cloud network, to develop more competitive BIT (Business Intelligence Technology) and
applications. Through the expertise of its Business Intelligence Technology (BIT) division enhanced
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by Information Technology, the Company has deployed relevant mobile technologies in its system,
and mobilized its automated system, moving towards product diversification, service excellence,
operational optimization, and increased management efficiency. Faced with the COVID-19 pandemic
in 2020 affecting global trade operations, Dimerco’s crisis contingency plan has shown remarkable
effectiveness. Diversified and flexible customized charter flights and multimodal logistics related
solutions have been launched, which complimented by professional technological strength has led to
the ability to achieve virtual-real integration and far-reaching mobile smart logistics integration. And
will complete the comprehensive revamp of MyDimerco in 2022, providing customers with a more
interactive and user-friendly collaborative service platform.

Dimerco has been established for more than half a century. With smart applications as the basic
spirit and focus, and through professional division of labor, attention to detail, and horizontal
connection as the basis, in addition to continuously promoting organizational reform 2.0,
organizational flattening transformation has also been carried out. In response to changes in
post-pandemic global logistics models and consumption habits, the group and supply chain
collaborators and customers were disclosed to jointly embrace the trend of digital logistics and
moving toward the new milestone hand in hand. Furthermore, in view of the logistics industry faced
with the increasingly complex information security risks and rampant hacker events, Dimerco is
committed to providing customers with stringent and trustworthy information security management
services in line with the industrial practices. In 2022, Dimerco successfully passed the ISO
27001:2013 certification for information security management accredited by the British Standards
Institute (BSI), and continues to improve. We are expected to upgrade to the new 1SO27001:2022
information security management certification in the re-certification review by 2024.

Stepping into 2022, in response to the trend of green logistics market, Dimerco conducted its first
greenhouse gas inventory and successfully passed the highest level of ISO 14064-1:2018
greenhouse gas verification standard. Based on the year 2021 as a reference, the company has set
a target to reduce the total emissions of Category 1 and Category 2 by 18% by 2030. Moreover, the
company has set a vision to achieve 100% renewable energy use for its external electricity
procurement by 2050.

[Global economy and industry development]

Looking back at 2022, the pandemic caused major disruptions in the global supply chain, while the
conflict between Russia and Ukraine led to shortages of energy and raw materials. The trend of
globalization began to reverse as a result of geopolitical tensions, and it is possible that economic
blocs with clear barriers could replace the current system, with countries reducing their reliance on
other countries with different ideologies for key materials.

China's dynamic "zero-Covid" policy has already dealt a heavy blow to the domestic economy, and
other factors such as geopolitical tensions have caused multinational companies to gradually
withdraw from China and shift production to other countries, leading to a more diversified supply
chain. For example, in late October 2022, a large number of employees left Foxconn's iPhone
assembly plant in Zhengzhou, Henan Province, causing significant damage to both Apple and
Foxconn. Foxconn plans to significantly expand the workforce at its Indian iPhone assembly plant
within two years, and will shift more of the iPhone supply chain to India in the future.

In 2022, the continued growth of domestic demand in most emerging Asian countries benefited from
the relaxation of epidemic prevention measures and the reduction of the negative impact of the
epidemic, but high inflation suppressed private consumption, and export performance weakened in
the second half of the year due to the cooling of the economy in the United States and Europe.
Interest rate hikes and weakened external demand also suppressed the performance of the
manufacturing industry.

The US government's measures to incentivize the reshoring of manufacturing and prevent China
from acquiring advanced technology are viewed as further undermining the current stable global
trade system. Many factors have forced companies to restructure their supply chains, with a high
concentration of industries in a few countries and productivity impacted, increasing the downside risk
of a global economic recession. According to The Economist's analysis, from 2008 to 2019, world
trade relative to global GDP fell by about 5 percentage points. Direct investment between the United
States and China also decreased from nearly $30 billion in 2015 to around $5 billion in 2022.

-87 -



Looking ahead to 2023, the global economic outlook still faces many risks, such as the possibility
that the global economic slowdown trend will continue in 2023, possibly leading to a mild recession,
especially in the United States, where the risk of economic recession is increasing due to the lagging
effects of the Federal Reserve's radical interest rate hikes, increasing downward pressure on labor
market demand, and insufficient consumption momentum. The continued impact of the energy crisis,
declining external demand, and tightening monetary policy may even cause the European economy
to stagnate in 2023.

As the epidemic prevention and control policies shift, the driving role of consumer demand in
economic growth has increased. Although China's economy will recover, factors such as a sluggish
real estate market, aging population, and insufficient external demand will to some extent affect its
economic growth. The economic growth of most emerging Asian countries will slow down due to the
rising interest rates and weakening demand from the US and Europe, but the positive spill-over
effect of China's epidemic prevention policy shift will help regional economic performance. The IMF
expects that half of the emerging countries will have a lower economic growth rate in 2023 than in
2022. The main downside risks include the uncertain impact of the Russia-Ukraine war on the global
economic outlook, negative inflation-related news that could cause severe financial market volatility,
and global financial tightening that could push up debt pressures.

In addition, the impact of the US-China dispute has led the US to implement chip export controls on
China, and actively ally with the international community to confront China. In March 2022, the US
proposed the Chip 4 Alliance as part of a wider plan to enhance semiconductor supply chain security
and flexibility, including reducing the world's reliance on China's chip manufacturing. As the
US-China technology war intensifies, the US Department of Commerce updated its export control list
for China in October 2022, targeting high-end chips, advanced process wafer factories, and
higher-end memory. In the future, US companies must stop exporting advanced chips and related
manufacturing equipment to China unless they obtain government approval, and cannot provide
chips manufactured using US technology in other countries. This will impact globalization
development, coupled with major countries continuously promoting the localization and
regionalization of critical material supply chains. The US and Europe have successively launched
chip acts to strengthen their semiconductor supply chain security, which will continue to affect the
global supply chain layout

[Air freight market]

In 2022, the global air cargo peak season was impacted by economic obstacles and a series of
interconnected problems. The results were significantly lower than expected. Since the beginning of
the year, news of China's inland lockdown and an impending strike at West Coast ports in the US
have caused suppliers to increase inventory due to concerns about potential supply chain
disruptions. By the second half of the year, a significant amount of inventory had accumulated.
However, consumers were worried about rising living costs, coupled with inflation and rising interest
rates, leading to a decrease in demand. As both supply and demand were under pressure, demand
only occasionally spiked due to e-commerce promotion events. Overall, demand for air cargo was
expected to decrease by around 6% compared to 2019. However, due to reduced cargo space on
passenger planes, airport congestion, and labor shortages, air cargo prices remained supported,
with rates still about 80% higher than before the pandemic.

In the 2021-2022 air cargo market, several significant trends emerged, including airline fleet mergers
during the pandemic, shipping giant Maersk's investment in the air cargo sector, the peak in cargo
aircraft conversion, and the growth of new cargo plane orders. These trends ran counter to the
international political and economic situation, resulting in continuous market turbulence in the
logistics supply chain.

According to Boeing's latest forecast at the end of 2022, the pandemic will continue to severely
impact the global air cargo market's capacity supply and revenue in the short term. However, in the
long run, the growth of the global economy, trade, and industrial manufacturing will be essential
drivers of the air cargo market's development over the next 20 years. The annual average growth
rates of global GDP, trade, and industrial manufacturing will reach 2.6%, 2.8%, and 2.2%,
respectively, and the annual average growth rate of the global air cargo market in revenue tonne
kilometers will reach 4.1%.

Looking ahead to 2023, the industry continues to integrate and develop, and the recovery is ongoing
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(i

despite headwinds. For example, in 2022, air cargo in North America had already returned to
profitability, and there was strong growth in Central and South America. Although air cargo revenue
may slow in 2023, airlines still have opportunities for relative growth, and the market demand still
presents opportunities for stable recovery.

[Sea freight market]

In 2022, affected by loose monetary policies of major economies and the outbreak of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict, commodity prices accelerated their upward trend, global inflationary
pressure increased, the purchasing power of European and American countries weakened, and
demand gradually shrank. Market inventory rose to a high level, China's foreign trade export orders
decreased, and export growth rate continued to narrow. From January to November 2022, China's
exports increased by 9.1% year-on-year, far lower than the growth rate in the first half of the year
(56.3%). In November, China's exports decreased by 8.7% year-on-year, with decreases of 10.6%
and 25.4% respectively to the European Union and the United States.

In terms of shipping capacity, although the congestion situation in European and American ports did
not ease, the number of container ships with orders continued to increase, and shipping capacity
maintained a rapid growth state. By the end of 2022, the shipping capacity of container shipping
routes was about 26.143 million TEUs, a year-on-year increase of 4.5%. Against the backdrop of
"reduced demand and increased capacity," the international container shipping market is no longer
in a situation of "difficulty in obtaining containers," and some trans-Pacific eastbound and Asia to
Northern Europe and the Mediterranean voyages have been cancelled, leading to a continuous
increase in idle container ships. According to data from Alphaliner, by the end of 2022, the capacity
of the global inactive fleet accounted for 5.5% of the total container fleet, higher than the end of
2021 (2.3%).

Since the beginning of 2022, container shipping rates have been continuously declining and by the
end of the year, they had almost reached the same level as the same period in 2019. The average
price index for Ningbo's export container shipping rates, NCFI, was 2732.4 points, a 16.1% YoY
decrease. At the end of December, the index was 763.8 points, an 82.1% YoY decrease and a
21.4% decrease compared to the same period in 2019. The shipping rates for the US East and West
routes fell to $2803/FEU and $1376/FEU respectively, with YoY decreases of 85.3% and 92.3%,
and a 1.1% increase and 14.3% decrease respectively compared to the same period in 2019.

Looking ahead to 2023, the international container shipping capacity surplus is expected to worsen.
The US Federal Reserve is continuing to raise interest rates, and issues such as high inflation and
an energy crisis are gradually fermenting. Pessimistic economic expectations in Europe and the US
will worsen, downstream consumer demand will slow down, factory inventories will continue to grow,
and import traders will reduce their orders, leading to a shrinking demand for container shipping.
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) predicts that global economic growth will be 2.7% in 2023,
lower than 2022 (3.2%), and at least one-third of countries worldwide will fall into an economic
recession. Meanwhile, the World Trade Organization (WTO) predicts that global commodity trade
volume in 2023 may only increase by 1%, far lower than the previously forecasted 3.4%. In
November 2022, the global manufacturing PMI was only 48.7%, a consecutive six-month decline,
and two consecutive months below 50%.

In terms of shipping capacity, as the global economy slows down and freight seasonality returns to
normal, the demand for ocean freight will decrease. In 2023, vessel waiting times and port operating
conditions are expected to return to pre-pandemic levels. In contrast, the domestic coastal transport
market in China is expected to steadily increase its demand, with a stable volume and price trend in
the first half of the year and an anticipated increase in market activity in the second half.

Technology and R&D status:

In order to optimize our management and serve customers around the world, Dimerco successfully
developed an integrated e-commerce service platform and global real-time information system — the
‘Dimerco Value Plus System®’ — on August 1, 2009. We have since upgraded this system in 2017
and introduced the latest Web 3.0 Cloud Networking and mobile technology to streamline our supply
chain management by integrating the business processes of sales, operations, accounting and
financial management, to build the world’s most competitive international logistics and transportation
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service company. The features of this system include intelligent mobile applications, the capabilities
of global real-time cargo tracking, customized applications and reporting. The global information
visibility brought by its patented EDI integration also helps the Company better adopt RPA (Robotic
Process Automation), providing customers service excellence. Through this system and the concept
of a virtual office, Dimerco utilizes its business intelligence technology to provide customers high
quality services anywhere and anytime, using smart devices. Moreover, with our experience in the
logistics industry over a decade, the strategic alliance and relationship with our partners, and our
professional teamwork, Dimerco is able to help the customer lower its operating cost and improve
efficiency. What's more, Dimerco can ensure that the supply chain management of its customers is
highly efficient and stable.

In 2022, facing the impact of the pandemic and market trends, Dimerco optimized and integrated its
internal and external processes through cloud, mobile, and intelligent technologies under information
security certifications (ISO 27001:2013 - IS 743553, NIST CSF - Cybersecurity Framework NIST
759307). It positioned 2023 as the year of digital transformation, utilizing technology to enhance its
internal digital capabilities and upgrade its online services for customers. Internally, Dimerco
developed its own DimBot robot, which automates related services such as sales and cost
forecasting, flight forecasts, vessel tracking, and exchange rate analysis using technologies like
optical image recognition (OCR), artificial intelligence, and machine learning to provide powerful
technological support to its employees. Externally, Dimerco's MyDimerco platform integrates offline
and online services to provide customers with personalized dashboards, cargo tracking, online
transportation document libraries, online quotations, dynamic reports, and virtual customer service,
enabling customers to have 24/7 uninterrupted access to timely information and services. By
involving all employees and integrating virtual and real elements, Dimerco has achieved good
business results.

1. The Company vertically integrates marketing management system, international logistics
operation system and financial management system.
2. Horizontal integration: It covers the international logistics operating system.
(1) International air freight including charter flight services
(2) International ocean freight
(3) Multimodal transport, including Sea/Air freight, Air/Sea freight, and cross-border road freight
(truck, railway)
Contract logistics
— DC, Distribution Center
— Reverse Logistics
— 8L, Service Logistics
— VMI, Vendor Managed Inventory
(5) Local logistics in China
(6) Customs declaration/commaodity inspection
(7) Cargo insurance service
(8) Global logistics management consulting
3. Dimerco continues to innovate and enhance the efficiency and professionalism of its international
logistics network, and has obtained patents in the United States and Taiwan.
(1) Development of Consolidation Yield Management System (CYM)
(2) Data Synchronization Method®

4

=

(IV) Long-term and short-term business development plan:
1. Short-term business development plan:
Dimerco insists on bringing service value to its customers. By building integral Dimerco Value
Plus System®, a mobile intelligence logistics system on Web 3.0 cloud networking to provide
target industry customers international logistics management, sales, operation, finance, and
services, the Company not only offers diversified high value-added products and high-quality
operations to fulfill customers’ needs, but also re-configures and unites with customers with its
strong team of regional sales, local sales and customer services to exploit business
opportunities. The Company has reinforced its organizational power, its marketing and service
network in Europe, the U.S., Asia Pacific and China, expanded the Indian market, and integrated
strategic partners from all over the world.
(1) Dimerco plans to develop and enhance outreach of its contract logistics services in
China, Hong Kong, Singapore, Taiwan, the U.S. and Germany.

(2) Dimerco promotes a truck dispatch management system called the “eCallFreight® System.”
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With the system, the connection between the truck dispatch, pick-up and delivery services at
the front end and back end of the international logistics can be improved.

(3) We promote multimodal transport, including cross-border truck transport services in the
countries of the Association of Southeast Asian Nations and in China, and the cross-border
railway transport services in central Europe.

(4) Dimerco promotes the charter flight service for customized giant precision instruments.

(5) Dimerco promotes the cross-border eCommerce EDI integration.

(6) Dimerco continues to cooperate with airline companies on the IATA eAWB program to
improve our marketing skills and international logistics services.

(7) Dimerco provides more services for society, participates in environmental events and
cooperative education programs and realizes our corporate social responsibility.

(8) Subsidiaries in the Group are applying for the AEO (Authorized Economic Operator)
certification since Dimerco wants to expand the scope of the safe supply chain and fulfill the
commitment of providing professional logistics services. Therefore, the service security will
be upgraded.

(9) Dimerco continues to advance its edge in business intelligence technology, strengthening the
service to meet global customers’ requirements in the supply chain and establish long-term
partnerships with them. In addition, in view of the increasing importance of the ability to
maintain customer information security and protection, an application of the “Plan to improve
and upgrade the security of logistics loT information” at the Department of Commerce,
MOEA in 2020. The 1ISO27001 and NIST CSF certification was completed in 2021.

(10) Dimerco has formed an action team, expanded business in its target industries and target
regions with market orientation to serve more customers in major industries, such as
aerospace, apparel and textile, auto components, consumer electronics, cross-border
e-commerce, medical equipment, fuel and gas, semiconductor and solar energy equipment.
The Company aims to provide tailored solutions to a variety of customers, helping them
lower transportation costs, and conduct periodic performance reviews.

2. Long-term business development plan:

Dimerco will continue to expand business in the “Greater China Economic Zone” and in the
countries of the Association of Southeast Asian Nations. The Group is committed to reinforcing
the organizational power of the Company. In addition, Dimerco strengthens the capacity in
regional marketing by forming an action team of specialists in regional marketing, and local sales
and customer service departments to expand the business and provide services for customers. It
is expected that the action team can help the Company acquire more customers and offer
diversified logistics services that are “customer-oriented.” Dimerco is hoping that with the plan,
business around the globe will grow. With effective alliances or mergers, Dimerco expands the
business scope and enriches corporate resources. In addition, the Company reinforces the
international network and has become more aware of the market trends. As a result, the overall
corporate competitiveness can be improved, and the Company can strive for a win-win situation
for our strategic partners. The Group emphasizes ethical values together with corporate culture
and sets the direction and strategy for business management with the concept of innovation and
revolution. Dimerco makes good use of professional resources for the implementation. We value
each strategic partner and local employees regardless of their race or religion. Dimerco performs
localization to create a win-win situation. Besides this, we are in pursuit of sustainable operations
for the Dimerco Express Group.

In order to optimize our management and serve customers around the world, Dimerco
successfully developed an integrated e-commerce service platform and global real-time
information system — the ‘Dimerco Value Plus System®’ — in 2009. We have since upgraded this
system in December 2017 and introduced the latest Web 3.0 Cloud Networking. Its (CSP,
Collaboration Service Platform) connects upstream and downstream vendors and customers with
intelligent mobile technology through the concept and capability of a virtual office, i.e. its “eSAM”
for sales management, “eCallFreight® System” for truck dispatch management, providing
customers high-efficiency services anytime and anywhere. The Company helps customers reduce
operating costs and improve efficiency via (POMS, Purchase Order Management System).

With the aim to “perform organizational change, provide professional service, lead with the team
and adopt artificial intelligence,” Dimerco Express Group established the Executive Management
Board (EMB) on October 1, 2019. Furthermore, the professional Business Intelligence Technology
(BIT) Department improved information technology and created a Web 3.0 Cloud Networking on
an intelligent mobile logistics system. The Company made progress both in the virtual and real
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worlds to provide services for customers anytime and anywhere and became the “mobile and
intelligent logistics partner” of customers. Meanwhile, the Business Intelligence Technology (BIT)
Department supported the business units of air freight, ocean freight and contract logistics in the
Group. With the BIT Department, the Company could provide diverse products and the best
service. Moreover, operation in the Company could be optimized and the management could
become more efficient.

Dimerco rolled out its organizational restructuring 2.0 in March 2021, focusing on business
intelligence applications, aiming to flatten its organizational structure on the basis of professional
service, a detail-oriented approach, and horizontal communication. The Company has integrated
regional management teams from North America, Greater China, Southeast Asia, Europe and
Northeast Asia into a Central Service Center (CSC) to achieve effective internal management, as
well as to strengthen marketing, provide a quick response and utilize intelligent applications to
accommodate sudden changes. The Company will fulfill its mission by providing professional
service, leading with the team, and adopting business intelligence technology.

Moreover, Dimerco is committed to keeping our promises for the environmental policies. We will
spare no effort in realizing the responsibility as a corporate social citizen to implement sustainable
management. Dimerco hopes to become green partners with global customers, alliances and
society. We perform environmental protection with actual deeds. For example, we have
transparent data connection with our partners and customers. Therefore, less paper will be used,
and we can have a green working environment. Since early 2022, the greenhouse gas launch
plan was investigated in cooperation with a consulting firm. In addition to gradually setting Science
Based Target Initiatives, SBTi, complete electric vehicle (EV) applications and joining the EV100
line by 2030 have been planned. With the year 2021 as the baseline, the company has set a goal
to reduce the total emissions of category one and category two by 18% by 2030, and envisions
using 100% renewable energy for purchased electricity outside the office by 2050. Internally, the
company will implement energy-saving measures, and externally, it will work with partners to
achieve carbon reduction. It is Dimerco’s goal to walk down every road in the world with “Global
Vision, Local Touch” borne in mind. That is also the blueprint and strategy of corporate sustainable
development, demonstrating the global logistics centered on the Asia-Pacific region (Connecting
Asia with the world). Dimerco will face every challenge in the future and expand the business
globally. We aim to become the leading shipping and logistics company in the world.

5.2 Market and Sales Overview

5.2.1 Market Analysis

A. Main Service Areas Unit: NT$ ,000
Year 2021 2022
Export Amount % Amount %
Destination
America 442,226 26.89% 382,285 20.78%
Europe 71,914 4.37% 58,537 3.18%
Asia 1,130,187 68.73% 1,398,842 76.04%
Net export
1,644,327 100.00% 1,839,664 100.00%
revenue

B. Main Competitions and Market Share
(1) Main Competitors
As the aviation cargo contracting industry in Taiwan has regional competitive advantages and a
flexible operation mode close to Taiwanese enterprises, the main competitors are Taiwanese
large-scale international companies.
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Main Competitions in Taiwan

Logistic Company Advantage Routes
Morrison Express China, Europe and US
Raytac

DHL USA, Southeast Asia
UPS

GEODIS Europe

Schenker

KUEHNE+NAGEL Europe, US and Asia
DSV

Dolphin Logistics
Panda Logistics
Taiwan Express

China

(2) Market Share

According to the statistics of the Civil Aeronautics Administration (Ministry of Transportation and
Communications) and Taipei Airfreight Forwarders and Logistics Association of Taiwan (TAFLA),
the market shares of the Company from 2018 to 2022 were 2.44%, 2.83%, 3.20%, 2.73% and
2.94%, respectively, 0.10% higher than the average market share in the industry.

Approximate market share of Dimerco and other businesses in the market Unit: Ton
2021 2022
Average Average
. Average i Average
Year TPE Dimerco Dimerco Contract Markgt TPE Dimerco Dimerco Contract Markgt
Lo Market Share in s Market Share in
ltem Airfreight | Contracted Volume Airfreight | Contracted Volume
Share . the Share R the
Volume Volume in the Volume Volume in the
(%) Indust Industry (%) Indust Industry
Y Y1
Total
import
and 1,138,041 31,019 2.73% 1,130 0.10% | 1,027,827 30,226 2.94% 1001 0.10%
export

Data Source: Civil Aeronautics Administration (Ministry of Transportation and Communications) and
Taipei Airfreight Forwarders and Logistics Association of Taiwan (TAFLA)

Note 1:

Dimerco Contracted Volume is supplied by Dimerco

Note 2: Average Contract Volume in the Industry=TPE Airfreight Volume + Number of businesses in the
industry (Note 4)
Note 3: Average Market Share in the Industry (%) = Average Contract Volume in the Industry + TIA
Airfreight Volume
Note 4: According to the statistics on the register of members of TAFLA, the number of members of the
industry from 2018 to 2022 was respectively 977, 996, 990, 1,007 and 1,027.

(3) Key Performance

Index

a.Based on the key performance indicators such as the export tonnage and market share,
Dimerco was ranked 12th in 2022.
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Unit: Ton

2022
Ranking Airfreight Forwarder Total of Export Tonnage Export Market Share (%)
1. ECI TAIWAN CO., LTD. 51,110 9.29%
SCHENKER (H.K.) LTD.
2 TAIWAN BRANCH 38,854 7.06%
MORRISON EXPRESS
3. CORP., LTD. 34,270 6.23%
4. DSV Air & Sea Co.,Ltd. 26,141 4.75%
5. DHL Global Forwarding 21,246 3.86%
KINTETSU WORLD o
6. EXPRESS (TAIWAN) INC. 14,572 2.65%
WELL COME
7. TRANSPORTATION CO., 14,360 2.61%
LTD.
NIPPON EXPRESS o
8. (TAIWAN) CO., LTD. 13,922 2:53%
9. DOLPHIN CO., LTD. 11,304 2.05%
10. KUEHNE + NAGEL LTD. 11,156 2.03%
YUSEN LOGISTICS o
1. (TAIWAN) LTD. 11,025 2.00%
DIMERCO EXPRESS
12. CORPORATION 10,963 1.99%
UPS INT'L INC. TAIWAN
13. BRANCH 10,226 1.86%
PANDA AIR EXPRESS
14. co., LTD. 9,659 1.76%
15 RACER LOGISTICS CO., 8.949 1.63%
LTD
Others 262,330 47.69%
Total 550,089 100.00%

Data Source: Civil Aeronautics Administration, Ministry of Transportation and Communications

C. Projection of the Global Airfreight Market

Q)
@

Alr Cargo Traffic to Double Over Next Two Decades|
Average Annual Growth, 2022-2041

800
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Boeing’s forecast that air cargo traffic will grow an average of 4.1% annually from 2022 to

2041.

The intra-Asia and Oceania cargo market outlook is expected to remain robust.Boeing
forecast an average annual growth of 5.7% over the next 20 years.
(Data Source: Boeing, Air Cargo World — IATA report)

D. Competitive Advantages
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Dimerco was founded in 1971. Taiwan is an island nation; therefore, economic development is mainly
export-oriented. Plus the increasing volume of global trade, airfreight services are definitely demanded
in the market and have certain market advantages. Therefore, since its founding, Dimerco has set its
goal to become a global airfreight service provider, and to achieve this goal, the corporation continues
to improve the health of organization and expand its integrated marketing and service network. The
following is a summary of Dimerco’s competitive advantages.

(1) Clear market positioning

(2) Professional logistic services for e-commerce

(3) Experienced professional teams

(4) Long-term and stable cooperative relationship with several airlines

(5) Central accounting system for reduced exchange rate risks

After Dimerco launched AEO validation application, the Taipei and Kaohsiung Customs AEO
Validation Team visited the Taipei, Taoyuan, Hsinchu and Taichung offices, as well as the Kaohsiung
subsidiary in November 2011 to carry out the AEO validation process. The validation is done based on
a set of 14 standards and the self-assessment list. At the end of the year, Dimerco successfully passed
the AEO validation conducted by the Customs Administration, Ministry of Finance on December 20th
2011 and received the Safety Certified Quality Enterprise AEO Certificate simultaneously from the
Taipei and Kaohsiung Customs. Taipei Customs certified Dimerco for three practices, freight
forwarding, customs clearance and warehousing and Kaohsiung Customs certified two practices,
freight forwarding and customs clearance. As an international logistics service company, Dimerco’s
business covers airfreight forwarding, customs clearance and warehousing. AEO validation enabled
us to build a complete and safe supply chain management system, which serves as a platform for
management and consolidation, reinforced the Company’s health and competitiveness and enabled
the Company to meet customers’ and market demand in safety. In addition, we expect the system to
ensure the completeness, accuracy and safety of Dimerco’s international cargo transport services and
compliance with the supply chain related regulations and international standards and help us gain
substantive benefits, such as expedited clearance, when clearing customs for export goods. General
Manager, Mr. Chou, expects that Dimerco’s contracted cargo will enjoy the benefits and convenience
of green pass in other countries through customs agreements.

Dimerco is not only a registered member of the International Air Transport Association (IATA), but also
a member of CTPAT certified by the US Customs. Through ISO 9002 certification, Dimerco provides
the best quality of services. Dimerco positions itself as ‘the logistic expert in the Greater China Region”
and has been successfully certified for logistics and transport services in China. With complete
certification, we are able to offer our customers the most efficient and most complete range of services.
The joint venture in Vietnam is also equipped with class 1 forward qualification to provide all-rounded
logistic services for your cargo in and out of Vietnam.

In addition, Dimerco merged a renowned customs clearance service, MYK Global Services Inc. on
January 16th 2012. This merger sped up Dimerco’s development in the US. Recently, Dimerco has
received a confirmation from the US Customs and this customs clearance service has been
successfully renamed as Dimerco Customs Brokerage Co., Ltd. Dimerco Express (USA) Corp. will
work closely with Dimerco Customs Brokerage Services Co., Ltd. to provide Dimerco’s global
customers a seamless one-stop service through its fine reputation and quality customs clearance
abilities.

. Favorable and Unfavorable Factors in Future Development

(1) Favorable Factors

. Globalization

World and regional GDP growth

Just in time concept

Tariff decreasing which was owing to oil price and availability
Deregulation and new trade relations

Development of aircrafts (ex. wide-body freighters and lower decks)

~oooow
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(2) Unfavorable Factors

g. Industry relocation

h. Trade barrier and restrictions
i. Directional imbalance

j.  Competition

k. Currency revaluation

5.2.2 Production Procedures of Main Products
Dimerco is a transport service provider, offering mainly international transport services. Our services

have been expanded into the distribution system with a goal to achieve global logistics in future
development. We offer door-to-door services; that is, in addition to customs clearance service, we plan
the products and services, including procedures, schedule, delivery and warehousing, for our
customers to help them cut down the time spent on running the procedures. In addition, Dimerco offers
comprehensive after-sale services. Our customer service personnel are trained to respond and handle
customer complaints in the first instance and provide high-quality services in the most efficient way.

5.2.3 Supply Status of Main Materials
Dimerco is a transport service provider; therefore, unlike the manufacturing businesses, no raw
materials are involved in our operations. Our main costs are the payment to the airlines for the freight,
and our main suppliers of airfreight spaces are Eva Air, China Airlines, Dragon Airlines and Cathay
Pacific Airways. The supply of airfreight spaces is stable.
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5.2.4 Major Suppliers and Clients

A. Major Suppliers in the Last Two Calendar Years Unit: NT$ '000
2021 2022 As of March 31 2023
Ranking Net Value of Percentage | Relation Supplier| Net Value of Percentage | Relation Supplier |Net Value of Percentage | Relation
Name Suppl of Annual with Name Suppl of Annual with Name Suppl of Annual with
i Supply (%) | Dimerco e Supply (%) | Dimerco PRl Supply (%) | Dimerco
1 A4 593,114 32.29% None S14 122,268 4.90% None S14 26,180 19.23% None
2 A1l 336,081 18.30% None S23 88,820 3.56% None S51 19,535 14.35% None
3 A5 86,417 4.70% None S44 84,617 3.39% None S52 19,182 14.09% None
4 A23 55,431 3.02% None S15 81,311 3.26% None S44 12,866 9.45% None
5 A24 28,077 1.53% None S9 73,454 2.94% None S53 12,654 9.29% None
6 A6 24,623 1.34% None S48 59,316 2.37% None S1 11,509 8.45% None
7 A33 18,097 0.99% None S50 58,727 2.35% None S9 10,786 7.92% None
8 A8 17,346 0.94% None S18 55,986 2.24% None S29 8,239 6.05% None
9 A34 14,395 0.78% None S36 53,947 2.16% None S43 7,733 5.68% None
10 A32 12,522 0.68% None S25 52,334 2.10% None S36 7477 5.49% None
Others | 650,823 35.43% None | Others 1,767,008 70.74% None | Others 0.00%
Net o, Net o, Net o,
Supply 1,836,926 | 100.00% Supply 2,497,788 100.00% Supply 136,161 100.00%
Note: 1. Among the top 10 suppliers, only China Airlines and Cathay Pacific Airways reached 10% in net value of supply.
Note  2: TWSE/TPEX listed companies are required to disclose audited or auditor-reviewed financial information available before the
publication date of annual report.
B. Major Clients in the Last Two Calendar Years Unit: NT$ '000
2021 2022 As of March 31 2023
Rankin o Aol |Raton o Al [2at0ns o Annual |Reaton
9 Name | Net Sales ! ship with| Name Net Sales ! hip with | Name | Net Sales ! ship with
Net Sales Dimerco Net Sales Dimerco Net Sales Dimerco
(%) (%) (%)
1 S15 172,817 8.11% None A4 596,342 20.28% None A1 70,309 15.80% None
2 S48 124,696 5.85% None A1 533,452 18.14% None A4 67,825 15.25% None
3 S14 95,285 4.47% None A5 93,579 3.18% None A5 9,965 2.24% None
4 S23 78,724 3.69% None A27 43,640 1.48% None A6 8,048 1.81% None
5 S18 49,454 2.32% None A6 39,088 1.33% None A27 5,124 1.15% None
6 S9 47,747 2.24% None A28 18,467 0.63% None A34 4,792 1.08% None
7 S50 44,568 2.09% None A17 16,129 0.55% None A35 3,806 0.86% None
8 S44 40,866 1.92% None A11 15,560 0.53% None A8 3,195 0.72% None
9 S36 40,769 1.91% None A33 15,177 0.52% None A28 3,157 0.71% None
10 S25 39,108 1.83% None A32 14,713 0.50% None A36 2,829 0.64% None
Others | 1,397,514 65.56% None | Others 1,554,233 52.86% None | Others | 265,826 59.75% None
Net o, Net o, Net o,
Supply 2,131,549 | 100.00% Supply 2,940,380 100.00% Supply 444,876 100.00%
Note: 1. Among the top 10 customers, only Taiwan Semiconductor reached 10% in net sales.
Note 2: TWSE/TPEX listed companies are required to disclose audited or auditor-reviewed financial information available before the

publication date of annual report.
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5.2.5 Table Production Value and Volume in the Most Recent Two Years
Dimerco is not a manufacturer, so this table does not apply.

5.2.6 Table of Sales Value in the Most Recent Two Years

Unit: NT$ '000
Year 2021 2022
Country Weight % Value % Weight % Value %
H:; t 15,969 48.56% 1,644,327 77.14% 14,407 44.40% 1,839,664 73.65%
:Z:f;n 15,050 45.77% 281,626 13.21% 15,818 48.75% 374,512 14.99%
Others 1,865 5.67% 205,596 9.65% 2,222 6.85% 283,612 11.35%
Total 32,884 100.00% 2,131,549 100.00% 32,447 100.00% 2,497,788 100.00%
5.3 Human Resources

Number of employees, average years of service, average age and distribution of education in the most recent
two years up to the date of printing of this annual report

Ye

ar

2021

2022

As of first quarter of

School -

2023

Total number of employees 146.00 150.00 145.00
Average age 40.09 39.37 40.16
Average years of service 9.66 9.68 9.95
PhD - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Master's Degree 14.38% 14.00% 14.48%

Distribution of Undergraduate 78.77% 76.67% 75.86%
education % High School 9.59% 9.33% 9.66%

Less than High
9 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Note: Information is accurate as of the publication date of this annual report.

5.4 Environmental Protection Expenditure

Not applicab

5.5 Labor Relations

The section below discloses employee benefits, retirement system, status of implementation and
agreement between the employer and employees:

le.

1. Employee Welfare
Dimerco has placed high emphasis on employee welfare. The Company has set up the Employee
Welfare Committee as required by regulations and organizes various recreational activities that are
open to all employees. A portion of the Company’s capital or operating income is appropriated to
fund the activities along with a fixed percentage of contributions from employees’ salaries. The
aggregated fund is managed by the Employee Welfare Committee. The members of the committee
are elected by the employees and re-elected in a fixed term. Dimerco also offers a complete
package of employee benefits, as listed in the section below:

(1) Insurance: In addition to labor insurance and National Health Insurance, Dimerco insures our

employees with Fubon Life Group Accident Insurance and One-year Hospitalization Group

Health Insurance.

(2) Meal Subsidy: Dimerco gives out credits for meals.
(3) Annual employee and family sports event and year-end party.

(4) Employee Day: The 15th of every month is employee day. The Employee Welfare Committee
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throws a birthday party for employees born in that month and invites the employees to social
with each other over a session of afternoon tea serving delicious refreshments.

(5) Scholarships for employees’ children and self-learning by employees: Dimerco set up a
performance sharing mechanism to support the employees and grow with them in the journey
to reach another peak of Dimerco’s glory.

(6) Employee Care Fund: Dimerco cares for our employees’ lives. We offer cash relief and gifts for
special occasions to convey our care, congratulations and condolences.

(7) Others: Short essay competition on corporate social responsibility issues, online English
learning, and extra benefits for overtime working during holidays.

2. Retirement System and Implementation:
With the aim of taking care of employees' lives, our company has established the Employee
Retirement Regulations, which allocate retirement benefits according to the applicable labor
retirement pension system for employees. Under the previous system, the company made full
provisions for retirement reserves and stored them in a dedicated account with the "Dimerco
International Logistics Co., Ltd. Retirement Reserve Supervisory Committee" at the Central Trust
of China. Under the new system, the provisions are allocated to individual accounts with the
Labor Insurance Bureau. Employees who have completed 15 years of service and are at least 55
years old, or have completed 25 years of service, or have completed 10 years of service and are
at least 60 years old are eligible to apply for retirement. The calculation and payment of retirement
benefits are carried out in accordance with the regulations of the Labor Standards Act.

3. Employee Education and Training:
Continuous education is the keystone in Dimerco’s employee development strategies. Dimerco
offers a wide range of training programs to employees of different capacities, including new
employee training, work-specific training and management training.

The table below exhibits the internal and external training programs launched in 2022 and the status of
implementation.
A. External Training Unit: NT$

Training Name of Course No_. of Hours Expenditure
Category Trainee
Dang_erous Goods Regulation Training- Initial 4 40.00 46,000
Training
1I?aljgverous Goods Regulation Training- Recurrent 5 24.00 30,300
raining
Regulatgq Agent_ a_nd Da_n_gerou_s _Goods 3 16.00 2,400
Recognizing Training- Initial Training
Regulated Agent and Dangerous Goods
N .S e 5 8.00 0
Recognizing Training- Recurrent Training
Lithium Battery Air Transport Regulations Seminar 1 3.00 1,000
$reg Trade Zone Self Governing Personnel 1 24.00 1,600
raining
Work-Specific | Dedicated Customs Declaration Personnel
Pt s 1 3.00 0
Training Training Course
(Dedicated Customs Declaration Personnel
General Exam) Guidance Class ! 36.00 4,900
Dedicated Customs Declaration Personnel
Traini 1 3.00 0
raining Course
AEO Supply Chain Security Personnel 1 24.00 4,800
Mail anq .Parcel Inspection and Explosive 1 4.00 2.300
Recognition Course
Transportation Contract Liability and Logistics 2 3.00 0
Industry Information Security Sharing i
Introduction to Informatllon Security Strategy 1 6.00 900
Capture the Flag Experience
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Work-Life Balance Counseling and Promotion 1 4.00 0

Program for 2022 by the Ministry of Labor i

Workshop on Gender Equality and Prevention of 1 8.00 0

Sexual Harassment in the Workplace )

Labor Condition Education and Training 2 3.00 0

Foreign Labor Laws and Regulations Promotion

Activiti 1 4.00 0
ctivities

Transportation and Warehousing Industry

Occupational Safety and Health Education and 1 4.00 0

Training

Occupational Safety and Health Supervisor 4 6.00 5,020

(Refresher)

B. Internal Training Unit: NT$
Training Name of Course No.' of Hours Expenditure
Category Trainee

Introduction to Dimerco culture 19 1.50 422
Introduction to Dimerco systems 19 1.50 422

New Employee Introduction to Dimerco human resource 19 150 422

Training management i

Telephone manners 19 0.50 422
C-TPAT / AEO 19 1.50 422
Introduction of Dangerous Goods 73 1.50 6,620
Regulat_ec_i Agent and Dangerous Goods 53 1.00 1,440
Recognizing
Logistics Operators Case study 21 2.00 0

Work-Specific Ocean bl‘.usmess delvelopment of DIMKHH . 1 40.00 0

Training Introduction to Basic Concepts of Ocean Freight 18 8.50 0
and Import/Export Procedures i
Y2022 Ocean carrier management 25 0.50 0
Knowing Risk Assessment 39 0.50 0
Identification of Suspicious Persons, Mail Packages 14 0.50 3.774
and Explosives i ’
Information Security Education and Training 117 3.00 20,753
Emergency Response Drills 14 2.00 0
General Occupational Safety Education and Training:
Education N " . 36 2.00 4,367
Traini Talking about Metabolic Syndrome
raining - -

Excel Tutorial - Data Processing 39 1.50 0
Boosting Immunity During Epidemics 49 1.00 1,235

C. Others

(1) Dimerco has been licensed by Customs Administration, Ministry of Finance, for Class 1 customs
clearance service since 2007. Dimerco has been recognized by Customs Administration,
Ministry of Finance, as “Authorized Economic Operator” since 2011.

(2) Dimerco Kaohsiung Subsidiary has been licensed by Customs Administration (Ministry of
Finance) for Class 1 customs clearance service since 2008. Dimerco has been recognized by
Customs Administration, Ministry of Finance, as “Authorized Economic Operator” since 2011.

(3) Dimerco has been certified by ISO 9001:2008 in 1995 and obtained the latest version of ISO

9001:2015 certification in 2018.

4. Agreement between Employer and Employees:
(1) The Company’s senior management meets with heads of departments on a weekly basis for
the latter to convey and consolidate the opinions and feedback from employees for follow-up

actions.

(2) An opinion poll is conducted prior to the making of major decisions involving the rights of
employees and employees’ opinions are taken into consideration in the process of

decision-making.

(3) Heads of departments communicate with the employees from time to time to understand their
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status and help them resolve issues if necessary.

(4) Carry out employee satisfaction surveys to allow every employee to have a voice.

5. Employee Code of Conduct:

(1) Employee Code of Conduct or Code of Ethics:
The Code of Conduct has been drawn up by Dimerco to regulate the conduct of Dimerco
employees.
The details are as follows:

)
@)

(4)

a. Employees shall follow the rules of the Company and all legal regulations and duly
carry out their work.

b. Employees shall uphold the Company’s business philosophy and help the Company
build a positive corporate image.

c. Employees shall receive customers in an enthusiastic, friendly and courteous
manner and provide high-quality services.

d. Employees shall follow the orders and assignments of supervisors and strive to
achieve work with high-quality work and enhanced performance.

e. Employees shall respect the Company’s schedules by reporting to work on time and
never terminate work or leave post unauthorized.

f. Employees shall treasure public properties and fulfill their duty in caring for the
properties without intentional or unintentional wastage. Employees causing damage
to company properties will be liable for the compensation and disciplined as
stipulated in the work rules.

g. Employees shall report issues of work to their immediate supervisors and never
bypass any level of authority, unless the issues involve emergency or special
situations.

h. Employees shall never leak out or lose any confidential documents or diagrams came
into contact during business transactions or at work.

i. Employees shall maintain the workplace and the surrounding environment in safe,
hygienic, clean and tidy manner and take all necessary measures to prevent burglary,
fire or damages of other natural disasters.

j. Employees shall never bring or allow others to bring combustible or flammable
substances, dangerous objects, such as sharp cutlery or prohibited substances into
any vehicles or the workplace.

k. Employees shall not take public properties out of the workplace unauthorized.

I.  Employees required to wear uniform shall dress as demonstrated by the work rules
and keep their appearances clean and presentable to maintain the corporate image
of Dimerco.

m. Employees may not engage in gambling, drinking or physical confrontation, make
loud noises or play mindlessly, take off shirts or wear slippers or wooden slippers or
chew betel nuts in the workplace. Smoking is prohibited in the office outside of the
designated smoking area.

The Codes of Conduct is published in the Company’s bulletin and all employees are

expected to follow the codes closely.

The Company has also set up the Dimerco International Logistics Co., Ltd. Employee

Performance Evaluation Guidelines. Employees are informed of the regulations, rules

and codes of conduct. Rewards and disciplines are also enforced timely according to the

above-disclosed rules.

The Operating Procedures for Handling Major Internal Information shall serve as the

guiding principles for Dimerco’s directors, supervisors, managers and employees. All

conducts of Dimerco’s directors, supervisors and employees shall be governed by the

Dimerco International Logistics Co., Ltd. Operating Procedures for Trading with

Individuals of Special Relations and between Businesses under the Group. These

operating procedures clearly stated that directors, supervisors, managers and
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employees shall meet full compliance with the laws, regulations and administrative
orders, including regulations governing insider trading.

6. Work Environment and Personal Safety Protection:
(1)  Work Environment

a. Dimerco and its branches and subsidiaries are staffed with dedicated personnel to
handle employee safety and health related administration, including coordinating
labor safety and health management, continuously making improvements for various
safety and health measures and creating a safe, healthy, comfortable and friendly
workplace.

b. All employees are required to wear an employee identification badge when entering
the office area and access is controlled by electronic access card.

c. Visitors are required to register at the front counter and deposit an identification card
upon entering the office area. All guests must be accompanied by employees of
Dimerco.

(2) Personal Safety Protection: Dimerco has insured all employees with Nan Shan Life
Insurance Company, Ltd. for occupational injury insurance.

Please disclose losses due to labor disputes, the estimated amount likely to occur in the future and
the responding measures in the recent years and up to the date of printing of this annual report. If the
amount cannot be reasonably assessed, please the reason: none.

Dimerco sees its employees as the most valuable assets of the Company; therefore, we place high
emphasis on employees career planning and give the best effort to maintain positive labor relations
and harmony in the Company. Dimerco offers a complete package of remuneration and benefits,
including standardized salary, annual leaves, retirement plans, labor insurance and National Health
Insurance, group insurance and various recreational activities at irregular intervals. Dimerco also
offers comprehensive education and training programs to our employees, encouraging them to
reinforce their work skills and plan personal careers based on their interests.

5.6 Information Security Management
A.Information Security Risk Management

To ensure uninterrupted operation of the "Dimerco Value Plus System" cloud logistics platform, Dimerco
adjusts its overall security posture to enhance business cyber resilience and control information security
risks, minimizing the impact of network threats within acceptable limits. Supporting security infrastructure is
crucial for Dimerco's strategic focus on global channelization, product diversification, operational
excellence, unified information, and local operations, combined with the application of the Internet and
integration with the Internet of Things, to build both physical and virtual channels and provide borderless
international logistics services.

Improvements in information security are an ongoing process for Dimerco. Starting with the adjustment of
the overall security posture, with a foundation of uninterrupted critical operational services, Dimerco
expands its scope to include primarily B2B data exchange services on external service platforms. Currently,
this effort extends to the overall enterprise operational environment, including development environments,
user operating environments, and physical security.

For critical operational services and B2B data exchange services, Dimerco implemented the ISO 27001
Information Security Management System in the year 2019 and obtained ISO 27001:2013 certification from
BSI. The certification is valid from April 2021 to April 2024. Dimerco continues to progress on the path of
information security, controlling and reducing the threats and impacts of information security risks, and
establishing a sustainable information security management system.
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1.Information Security Risk Management Framework
"The coordination, planning, auditing, and promotion of the information security management system in
Dimerco are overseen by the Director of the Business Technology and Intelligence Department, who
serves as the Chairman of the Information Security Committee. The committee is responsible for
coordinating matters related to the information security management system. Management review
meetings are held every six months to report to the Risk Management Committee and the Executive
Management Committee. The most recent reporting date was October 28, 2022.

"The management review meetings conducted by the Information Security Committee primarily cover
the following:

a.Information security objectives of the company.

b.Reviewing the effectiveness and completeness of information security planning and implementation,
taking into account operational needs, changes in government regulations, information security
requirements, and technological advancements.

c.Reviewing reports on the revision of information security policies, information security organization,
and related norms and procedures.

d. Reviewing the classification of information assets.

e. Executing assigned tasks by the Information Security Committee.

f. Communicating and coordinating information security matters across departments.

g. Reviewing and arbitrating incidents of information security breaches within Dimerco

h. Supervising the response and improvement measures for significant security incidents in the
company.

i. Providing input and output items for the management review of the information security
management system every six months.

2.Information Security Policy
Our company is committed to maintaining the information security of its operational environment and serving its
customers. In addition to implementing basic information security controls, we ensure the security of all data and
processing by strengthening information security management. We continuously enhance the confidentiality,
integrity, and availability of critical personal and transactional information to improve the quality of our services. Our
information security statement is as follows:

“The information security management system should establish an appropriate organization to carry
out information security management operations, ensuring compliance with laws and regulations and
the normal operation of the information security management system.

“Work assignments should consider functional divisions and distinguish job responsibilities to avoid
unauthorized modification or misuse of information or services.

“All personnel, including employees, contractors, outsourced vendors, and temporary staff, who use
company information for information services or project work, are responsible for protecting the
information assets obtained or used from the company to prevent unauthorized access, alteration,
destruction, or improper disclosure.

“All personnel have an obligation to protect customer data, including transactional and personal
information. Unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of such information to unrelated colleagues,
vendors, or other customers is strictly prohibited.

“Security protections for computer and physical environments should be strengthened, including data
centers' access control, air conditioning, uninterruptible power supplies, etc., to prevent unauthorized
access, damage, or unexpected disasters that may affect normal business operations.

“Personnel are prohibited from unauthorized connections between external and internal networks.
Necessary security measures should be implemented to protect both internal and external networks.

“Security controls should be considered and implemented in the initial stages of system development.
Outsourced development should have enhanced controls and information security requirements in
contracts. System development, modification, and implementation should comply with and follow
information security management norms.

“All personnel should remain vigilant and report any security incidents, vulnerabilities, or violations of
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information security management system standards and procedures in accordance with the established
procedures.

‘Business continuity plans should be developed based on business needs and regularly tested and
exercised to ensure their applicability.

“The Information Security Working Group, based on information security policies and organizational
responsibilities, formulates information security objectives to be reviewed and approved by the
Information Security Committee for implementation.

‘Information security objectives should cover confidentiality, integrity, and availability and align with the
requirements of the information security policy.

3. Specific Information Security Management Measures

In addition to implementing the ISO 27001 Information Security Management System, Zhongfei values information
security protection in its value-added service system and provides comprehensive protection to customers by
obtaining global cybersecurity insurance from Cathay Century Insurance. Furthermore, Zhongfei performs the
following activities/exercises annually to strengthen information security:

“Security attack and defense exercises (twice a year)
‘Social engineering exercises (twice a year)

*System vulnerability scanning (twice a year)
‘System/data recovery testing (monthly)

‘Emergency response exercises (twice a year)
“Education and training for company employees

These measures aim to enhance the awareness of information security among our employees and establish a
comprehensive defense mechanism to detect and prevent incidents in a timely manner.

B. As of the latest annual report printing date, there have been no significant losses or potential impacts due to major
information and communication security incidents, and therefore no specific response measures have been taken.

5.7 Important Contracts

Nature of Contract Party Contract Date Main Contract 'I:er_m S.Of
" n Limitation
Starting Ending
Office accident XX Property Insurance 10-Jan-23 10-Jan-24 Insurance Nil
insurance Co., Ltd.
Software service . .
agreement XXXX Co., Ltd. 1-Jan-22 31-Dec-22 Information Nil
FTZ warehousing XXXX Co., Ltd. 1-Oct-21 31-Sep23 | Narehousing |\
agreement Service
Cargo freight service Apr Mar. Undertaking of | ..
agreement XXXX Co., Ltd. 1-Apr-22 31-Mar-23 freight service Nil
7. Litigation or Non-litigation Incidents: none.
8. Major asset trading in the most recent year up to the date of printing of this annual report: none
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VI. Financial Information
6.1 Five-Year Financial Summary

6.1.1 Condensed Financial Statements — Based on IFRS
A. Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet — Based on IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial Summary for The Last Five Years (Remark 1) o
Financial data of
Item ending date in
31th March, 2023
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Current assets 3,730,979 4,075,487 5,374,891 8,499,242| 9,046,631 8,366,271
Property, Plant and Equipment 629,148 608,305 561,771 544,456 560,326 554,721
Intangible assets 26,844 34,179 32,921 33,068 73,740 72,413
Other assets 194,564 490,548 724,617 670,089 842,172 835,243
Total assets 4,581,535 5,208,519 6,694,200 9,746,567| 10,522,869 9,828,648

Before distribution 2,438,204 2,797,173 3,574,709 5,107,987 4,178,827 4,778,301
Current liabilities

After distribution 2,627,204 2,968,533 4,330,709 5,863,987 Remark 3 Remark 3
Non-current liabilities 53,731 184,870 240,414 203,606 219,301 211,108

Before distribution 2,491,935 2,982,043 3,815,123 5,311,593| 4,398,128 4,989,409
Total liabilities

After distribution 2,680,935 3,153,403 3,890,723 6,607,593 Remark 3 Remark 3
Egr‘;';yt attributable to shareholders of the 1997,189| 2,132,762| 2,772,745\ 4,308,504 6,001,104 4,731,405
Capital stock 1,260,000 1,260,000 1,260,000 1,360,800| 1,360,800 1,360,800
Capital surplus 19,362 19,362 19,362 19,362 19,362 16,012

Before distribution 805,267 1,020,715 1,934,470 3,485,623| 4,644,353 3,454,323
Retained earnings

After distribution 616,267 849,355 1,178,470 2,729,623 Remark 3 Remark 3
Other equity interest (87,440)|  (167,315) (441,087) (577,281) 177,589 101,270
Treasury stock - - - - (201,000) (201,000)
Non-controlling interest 92,411 93,714 106,332 126,470 123,637 107,834

Before distribution 2,089,600 2,226,476 2,879,077 4,434,974 6,124,741 4,839,239
Total equity

After distribution 1,900,600 2,055,116 2,123,077 3,678,974 Remark 3 Remark 3

If the company prepares individual financial reports, it shall also prepare a condensed balance sheet and a comprehensive profit and loss
statement for the last five years

If the financial information using the International Financial Reporting Standards is less than 5 years, the following table should be prepared
separately at Financial information using the Chinese Financial Accounting Standards

Remark:

1 Years of unaudited financial statements should be noted.

2 The amount of increments in equity from revaluation and the revaluation date should be disclosed.

3 As of the date of publication of the annual report, if a company that is listed or whose shares have been traded in a securities firm's
business place has the latest financial information that has been audited, certified or reviewed by an accountant, it shall also disclose it
4. The “ After distribution” amount will be decided by next year’s shareholder meeting

5. The company should disclose the reason of any corrected or restated financial information requested by the competent authority.
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B. Consolidated Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income — Based on IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Five-Year Financial Summary(Remark 1) Financial data of
ending date in 31th
ltem March, 2023
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 ’

Operating revenue 18,444,415 17,803,331 22,948,845 38,986,916 41,174,810 5,416,155

Gross profit 2,513,526 2,959,204 3,736,947 5,822,325 5,940,981 920,692

Income from operations 284,970 503,706 1,219,878 2,690,971 2,574,757 273,389

Non-operating income and

expenses 29,497 (10,383) 25,856 35,065 261,422 37,360

Income before tax 314,467 493,323 1,245,734 2,726,036 2,836,179 310,749

Continuing Units income 269,024 405,121 1,101,305 2,357,631 2,540,195 259,809

Discontinuing unit loss - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income

(income after tax) 269,024 405,121 1,101,305 2,357,631 2,540,195 259,809

Total comprehensive income 73,465 (74,802) (273,508) (124,878) 746,169 (76,963)

Net income attributable to 342,489 330,319 827,797| 2,232,753 3,286,364 182,846

shareholders of the parent

Net income attributable to 263,022 403635 1,085845| 2,310,477 2,538,625 266,026

shareholders of the parent

Net income attributable to 6,002 1,486 15,460 47,154 1,570 (6.217)

non-controlling interest

Comprehensive income

attributable to Shareholders of the 338,669 324,573 811,343 2,190,959 3,281,616 189,707

parent

Comprehensive income

attributable to non-controlling 3,820 5,746 16,454 41,794 4,748 (6,861)

interest

Earnings per share 3,820 5,746 16,454 41,794 4,748 2.00

If the company prepares individual financial reports, it shall also prepare a condensed balance sheet and a comprehensive profit and loss
statement for the last five years

If the financial information using the International Financial Reporting Standards is less than 5 years, the following table should be prepared
separately at Financial information using the Chinese Financial Accounting Standards

Remark:

1 Years of unaudited financial statements should be noted.

2 The amount of increments in equity from revaluation and the revaluation date should be disclosed.

3 As of the date of publication of the annual report, if a company that is listed or whose shares have been traded in a securities firm's business
place has the latest financial information that has been audited, certified or reviewed by an accountant, it shall also disclose it

4. For the above-mentioned figures after distribution, please fill in according to the resolution of the shareholders' meeting in the next year.
5. The company should disclose the reason of any corrected or restated financial information requested by the competent authority.
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C. Condensed Statement of Balance sheet (Parent company only)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Financial Summary for The Last Five Years (Remark 1)
Item
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Current assets 279,418 471,692 406,655 906,846 854,950
Property, Plant and Equipment 192,275 189,831 189,630 189,940 188,128
Intangible assets 175 323 438 202 201
Other assets 3,727,679 4,033,142 4,985,231 6,890,843 9,794,052
Total assets 4,199,547 4,694,988 5,581,684 7,987,831 10,837,331

Before distribution 900,707 1,034,163 1,182,373 1,426,074 1,195,946
Current liabilities

After distribution 1,089,707 1,205,523 1,938,373 2,182,074 Remark 2
Non-current liabilities 1,301,651 1,528,063 1,626,566 2,253,253 3,640,281

Before distribution 2,202,358 2,562,226 2,808,939 3,679,327 4,836,227
Total liabilities

After distribution 2,391,358 2,733,586 3,564,939 Remark 2 Remark 2
5;:“3'% attributable to shareholders of the 1997,189| 2,132,762 2,772,745 4,308,504 6,001,104
Capital stock 1,260,000 1,260,000 1,260,000 1,360,800 1,360,800
Capital surplus 19,362 19,362 19,362 19,362 19,362

Before distribution 805,267 1,020,715 1,934,470 3,485,623 4,644,353
Retained earnings

After distribution 616,267 849,355 1,178,470 2,729,623 Remark 2
Other equity interest (87,440)|  (167,315) (441,087) (557,281) 177,589
Treasury stock - - - - (201,000)
Non-controlling interest - - - - -

Before distribution 1,997,189 2,132,762 2,772,745 4,308,504 6,001,104
Total equity

After distribution 1,808,189 1,961,402 2,016,745 3,552,504 Remark 2

Remark:

1. Local financial accounting standards have been adopted in the past five years, please refer to the table 6.1.2 below
2. Forthose who have undergone asset revaluation in the current year, the date of revaluation and the value-added amount of

revaluation should be listed

3. For the above-mentioned figures after distribution, please fill in according to the r

next year.

-107 -

of the shar

hold

s’ meeting in the




D. Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (parent company only)
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year Five-Year Financial Summary(Remark 1)
Item
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating revenue 1,006,558 1,015,247 1,631,867 2,131,549 2,497,788
Gross profit 143,240 165,017 240,387 279,117 353,835
Income from operations (5,599) 35,533 57,610 (13,321) (31,934),
Non-operafing income and 271,649 378,025| 1,049,586 2,396,692 2,692,872
expenses
Income before tax 266,050 413,558 1,107,196 2,383,371 2,660,938
Continuing Units income 266,050 413,558 1,107,196 2,383,371 2,660,938
Discontinuing unit loss - - - - |
Other comprehensive income 263,022 403635\  1,085845| 2,310,477 2,538,625
(income after tax)
Total comprehensive income 75,647 (79,062) (274,502) (119,518). 742,991
Net income attributable to
shareholders of the parent 338,669 324,573 811,343 2,190,959 3,281,616
Net income attributable to 263,022 403635  1,085845| 2,310,477 2,538,625
shareholders of the parent
Net income attributable to
non-controlling interest i B ) 3 |
Comprehensive income
attributable to Shareholders of the 338,669 324,573 811,343 2,190,959 3,281,616
parent
Comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling - - - - -
interest
Earnings per share 2.09 3.20 7.98 16.98 18.71

Remark:
1. Local financial accounting standards have been adopted in the past five years, please refer to the table 6.1.2 below
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6.1.2 Condensed Financial Statement — Based on ROC GAAP
A. Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet — Based on ROC GAAP

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year

Item

Financial Summary for The Last Five Years(Remark 1)

2017
(not applicable)

2018
(not applicable)

2019
(not applicable)

2020
(not applicable)

2021
(not applicable)

Current assets

Funds & Long-term investments

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

Before distribution

Current liabilities After distribution

Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities

[Before distribution

Total liabilities |After distribution

Capital stock

Capital surplus

[Before distribution

Retained earnings |After distribution

Unrealized gain or loss on financial
instruments

Cumulative translation adjustments

Net loss unrecognized as pension cost

Before distribution

Total equity
After distribution

Remark:

1.Years of unaudited financial statements should be noted.
2 The amount of increments in equity from revaluation and the revaluation date should be disclosed.
3 For the above-mentioned figures after distribution, please fill in according to the resolution of the shareholders' meeting in the next year.
4. The company should disclose the reason of any corrected or restated financial information requested by the competent authority.
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B. Consolidated Condensed Income Statement — Based on ROC GAAP

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year
Item

Financial Summary for The Last Five Years

(Remark 1)

2017
(not applicable)

2018
(not applicable)

2019
(not applicable)

2020
(not applicable)

2021
(not applicable)

Operating revenue

Gross profit

Income from operations

Non-operating income

Non-operating expenses

Income before tax

Income from operations of continued segments - after
tax

Income from discontinued operations

Extraordinary gain or loss

Cumulative effect of accounting principle changes

Net income

Earnings per share

Remark:

1 Years of unaudited financial statements should be noted.
2. The cumulative effect of the profit and loss of the discontinued department, extraordinary profit and loss, and changes in accounting
principles is presented as a net amount after deducting income tax
3. For the above-mentioned figures after distribution, please fill in according to the resolution of the shareholders' meeting in the

next year

C. Condensed Balance sheet — Based on ROC GAAP (Parent Company only)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year

Item

Financial Summary for The Last Five Years

(Remark 1)

2017
(not applicable)

2018
(not applicable)

2019
(not applicable)

2020
(not applicable)

2021
(not applicable)

Operating revenue

Gross profit

Income from operations

Non-operating income

Non-operating expenses

Income before tax

Income from operations of continued segments - after
tax

Income from discontinued operations

Extraordinary gain or loss

Cumulative effect of accounting principle changes

Net income

Earnings per share

Remark:

1.The financial data of the last five years have been audited and certified by accountants.
2.The company has not undergone asset revaluation in the past five years
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D. Condensed Income Statement — Based on ROC GAAP (Parent Company only)

Unit: NT$ thousands

Year

Financial Summary for The Last Five Years

(Remark 1)

Item

2017
(not applicable)

2018
(not applicable)

2019
(not applicable)

2020

2021

(not applicable) | (not applicable)

Operating revenue

Gross profit

Income from operations

Non-operating income

Non-operating expenses

Income before tax

Income from operations of continued segments - after
tax

Income from discontinued operations

Extraordinary gain or loss

Cumulative effect of accounting principle changes

Net income

Earnings per share

Remark:

1.The financial data of the last five years have been audited and certified by accountants

6.1.3 Auditors’ Opinions from 2018 to 2022

Year CPA Firm

CPA's Name

Auditing Opinion

2018 KPMG CPA Firm

Huang, Bo-Shu, Yu, An-Tian

Unqualified Opinion

2019 KPMG CPA Firm

Huang, Bo-Shu, Yu, An-Tian

Unqualified Opinion

2020 KPMG CPA Firm

Huang, Bo-Shu, Chang, Chun-|

Unqualified Opinion

2021 KPMG CPA Firm

Huang, Bo-Shu, Chang, Chun-|

Unqualified Opinion

2022 KPMG CPA Firm

Chang, Chun-l,Kuang, Chun-Hsiu

Unqualified Opinion
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6.2 Five-Year Financial Analysis
6.2.1.1 Consolidated Financial Analysis — Based on IFRS

Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years(Remark 3) Financial data
Year of ending date
(Remark 3) in 31th March,
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(Remark 4) (Remark 1)
N . Debt Ratio 54.39 57.25 56.99 54.50 41.80 50.76
Financial Ratio of long-term capital to propert
structure (%) 9t P property, 332.13 366.01 5125  814.57| 1,093.07 872.37
plant and equipment
Current ratio 153.02 145.70 150.36 166.39 216.49 175.09
Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 152.97 145.70 150.36 166.39 216.49 175.09
Interest earned ratio (times) 42.87 24.25 68.03 176.36 168.14 68.66
Accounts receivable turnover (times) 8.12 7.64 10.08 11.30 11.04 9.02
Average collection period 44.93 47.77 36.20 32.31 33.06 40.45
Inventory turnover (times) - - - - - -
Operating Accounts payable turnover (times) - - - - - -
performance  |Average days in sales - - - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 29.22 28.77 39.23 70.49 74.54 38.86
turnover (times)
Total assets turnover (times) 4.20 3.64 3.86 4.74 4.06 2.13
Return on total assets (%) 6.26 8.62 18.75 28.83 25.20 10.36
Return on stockholders' equity (%) 13.18 18.70 42.54 63.13 48.08 19.41
Profitability Pre-tax income to paid-in capital (%) 24.96 39.15 98.87 200.33 208.42 91.34
Profit ratio (%) 1.46 2.28 4.8 6.05 6.17 4.80
Earnings per share (NT$) 2.09 3.20 8.62 16.98 18.71 2.00
Cash flow ratio (%) 10.27 32.96 55.17 31.41 90.59 7.33
Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 153.11 204.56 200.05 328.80 365.74 344.36
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 4.09 31.08 59.73 22.60 38.94 7.31
Leverage Operating leverage 1.15 1.48 1.18 1.08 1.10 1.26
Financial leverage 1.03 1.04 1.02 1.01 1.01 1.02
Analysis of financial ratio differences for the last two years. (Not required if the difference is below 20%)
1. Debt Ratio decreased due to the payback of short-term borrowings and the decrease of Accounts Payable.
2. Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment increased due to the increase of stockholder’s equity
3. Current ratio increased due to the pay back of short-term borrowings and decrease of Accounts payables.
4. Quick ratio increased due to the pay back of short-term borrowings and decrease of Accounts payables.
5. Return on stockholders’ equity decreased due to the increase of stockholders’ equity.
6. Cash flow adequacy ratio increased due to the net cash inflow from operating activities and the decrease of current liabilities.
7. Cash reinvestment ratio increased due to the increase of net cash inflow from operating activities.

Companies should present financial analysis for parent company if the company has compiled financial report for parent company.
If the financial information using the International Financial Reporting Standards is less than 5 years, the following table should be prepared
separately at the table Financial information using the Chinese Financial Accounting Standards

Remark:
1 Years of unaudited financial reports should be noted
2.As of the date of publication of the annual report, if a company that is listed or whose shares have been traded in a securities firm's business
place with the most recent financial information that has been verified, certified or reviewed by an accountant, it shall also be analyzed.
3.The end of the report should list the following formulas:
a. Financial structure
Debt Ratio=Total Liabilities/Current Liabilities
Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment=(Current Assets-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
b. Solvency
Current ratio=Current Assets/Current Liabilities
Quick ratio=(Current Assets s-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
Interest earned ratio (times)=(Net Income + Tax expense + Interest expense)/Interest expenditure
c. Operating performance
Accounts receivable turnover (times)=Net Sales/Average Accounts Receivables(including Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable
caused by operating)
Average collection period=365/ Accounts receivable turnover (times)
Inventory turnover (times)=Cost of sales/Average Inventory
Accounts payable turnover (times)=cost of sales/average Accounts Payable( including Accounts Payable and Notes payable caused by
operating)
Average days in sales=365/ Inventory turnover (times)
Property, plant and equipment turnover (times)=Net sales/average net amount of property, plant and equipment
Total assets turnover (times)=Net Sales/average Total Assets
d. Profitability
Return on total assets (%)=[Net Income + Interest Expense X (1-Tax Rate)]/ average Total Assets
Return on stockholders' equity (%)=Net Income/average Total Equity
Profit ratio (%)=Net Income/Net Sales
Earnings per share (NT$)=(Controlling Interest Shares-Preferred Stock dividends)/weighted average outstanding shares
e. Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%)=Cash flow from Operating Performance/Current Liabilities
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)= Cash flow from Operating Performance for last five years/last five years(Capital Expense + Increase of
Inventory + Cash dividend)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%)=( Cash flow from Operating Performance- Cash dividend)/(Gross property, plant and equipment +
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Long-term Investment + Other non-current Liabilities + working capital)
f. Leverage
Operating leverage=(Net operating revenue-variable cost of sales and expenses)/operating gain
Financial leverage= operating gain/( operating gain-interest expense)
4 The EPS formulas above should notice:
a. Use the weighted average common share, not the end of the period.
b. Any trade about issuance of common stock for cash or treasury stock should consider the outstanding period and calculate the weighted
average share.
c. Any case of capital reserves should trace back to adjust.
d. If the preferred share is non-convertible cumulated, dividend should be minus from net income, if its non-cumulated, net income should
minus dividend, net loss shouldn’t.
5. Consolidated 6 The analysis of cash flow should notice:
a the net amount of Cash flow from Operating Performance means the Cash flow from Operating Performance in the Cash Flow Statement.
b Capital Expense means annual capital investment’s cash out flow
¢ The increase of inventory will only counted when end-inventory larger than beginning-inventory, otherwise, will be $0.
d Cash dividend included common share and preferred share.
e Property, plant and equipment means the amounts already minus accumulated depreciation.
6.The security issuing entity should separate the operating income and loss to fixed and variable.
7.1f the stock has no par-value or its not $10, the capital ratio should be calculated by the controlling company’s capital ratio.

6.2.1.2 IFRSs Financial Analysis (parent company only)

Year Financial Analysis for the Last Five Years(Remark 3)
(Remark 3)
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(Remark 4)
y . Debt Ratio 52.44 54.57 50.32 46.06 44.63
Financial - IRatio of long-t ital t
structure (%) g-term capital to 1,038.71| 1,123.51| 2,319.94| 345465 5124.91
property, plant and equipment
Current ratio 31.02 45.61 34.39 63.59 71.49
Solvency (%) |Quick ratio 31.02 45.61 34.39 63.59 71.49
Interest earned ratio (times) 38.91 63.42 155.49 400.83 515.39
Accounts receivable turnover (times) 4.91 5.04 6.61 4.44 6.14
Average collection period 74.38 72.44 55.25 82.12 59.40
Inventory turnover (times) - - - - -
Operating Accounts payable turnover (times) - - - - -
performance  |Average days in sales - - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 5.20 5.28 8.55 11.23 13.21
turnover (times)
Total assets turnover (times) 0.25 0.24 0.33 0.31 0.27
Return on total assets (%) 0.07 0.10 0.21 0.34 0.27
Return on stockholders' equity (%) 13.96 20.68 44.27 65.26 49.25
Profitability Pre-tax income to paid-in capital (%) 21.12 32.82 87.87 175.14 195.54
Profit ratio (%) 26.13 39.76 66.54 108.39 101.63
Earnings per share (NT$) 2.09 3.20 7.98 16.98 18.71
Cash flow ratio (%) -2.64 8.73 12.91 10.69 32.58
Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 11.16 25.85 23.62 24.71 27.64
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) -5.18 -2.66 -0.36 -7.58 -10.14
Leverage Operating leverage -0.14 1.53 1.33 -0.34 0.52
Financial leverage 0.44 1.23 1.14 0.69 0.86
Analysis of financial ratio differences for the last two years. (Not required if the difference is below 20%)
1. Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment increased due to the increase of long-term advance and retained earnings.
2. Accounts receivable turnover increased and average collection period decreased due to the decrease of Accounts Receivable.
3. Interest earned ratio increased due to the increase of net income before tax.
4. Return on total assets decreased due to the increase of Assets.
5. Return on stockholders' equity decreased due to the increase of stockholders’ equity.
6. The ratio of Profitability increased due to increase of net income after tax.
7. The ratio of Cash flow increased due to the increase of cash inflow from operating activities
8. Cash reinvestment ratio decreased due to the increase of cash dividends
9. The ratio for Leverage increased due to the decrease of operating income.

Remark:
1 Years of unaudited information should be noted.
2 The end of the report should list the following formulas:
a. Financial structure
Debt Ratio=Total Liabilities/Current Liabilities
Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment=(Current Assets-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
b. Solvency
Current ratio=Current Assets/Current Liabilities
Quick ratio=(Current Assets s-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
Interest earned ratio (times)=(Net Income + Tax expense + Interest expense)/Interest expenditure
c. Operating performance
Accounts receivable turnover (times)=Net Sales/Average Accounts Receivables(including Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable
caused by operating)
Average collection period=365/ Accounts receivable turnover (times)
Inventory turnover (times)=Cost of sales/Average Inventory
Accounts payable turnover (times)=cost of sales/average Accounts Payable( including Accounts Payable and Notes payable caused by
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operating)
Average days in sales=365/ Inventory turnover (times)
Property, plant and equipment turnover (times)=Net sales/average net amount of property, plant and equipment
Total assets turnover (times)=Net Sales/average Total Assets
d. Profitability
Return on total assets (%)=[Net Income + Interest Expense X (1-Tax Rate)]/ average Total Assets
Return on stockholders' equity (%)=Net Income/average Total Equity
Profit ratio (%)=Net Income/Net Sales
Earnings per share (NT$)=(Controlling Interest Shares-Preferred Stock dividends)/weighted average outstanding shares

e. Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%)=Cash flow from Operating Performance/Current Liabilities
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)= Cash flow from Operating Performance for last five years/last five years(Capital Expense + Increase of

Inventory + Cash dividend)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%)=( Cash flow from Operating Performance- Cash dividend)/(Gross property, plant and equipment +
Long-term Investment + Other non-current Liabilities + working capital)

f. Leverage
Operating leverage=(Net operating revenue-variable cost of sales and expenses)/operating gain
Financial leverage= operating gain/( operating gain-interest expense)
5 The EPS formulas above should notice:
a. Use the weighted average common share, not the end of the period.
b. Any trade about issuance of common stock for cash or treasury stock should consider the outstanding period and calculate the weighted
average share.
c. Any case of capital reserves should trace back to adjust.
d. If the preferred share is non-convertible cumulated, dividend should be minus from net income, if its non-cumulated, net income should

minus dividend, net loss shouldn’t.

6. Consolidated 6 The analysis of cash flow should notice:
a the net amount of Cash flow from Operating Performance means the Cash flow from Operating Performance in the Cash Flow Statement.
b Capital Expense means annual capital investment’s cash out flow
¢ The increase of inventory will only counted when end-inventory larger than beginning-inventory, otherwise, will be $0.
d Cash dividend included common share and preferred share.
e Property, plant and equipment means the amounts already minus accumulated depreciation.
7 The security issuing entity should separate the operating income and loss to fixed and variable.
8 If the stock have no par-value or its not $10, the calculation of the capital ratio should used the controlling company’s capital ratio.
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6.2.2.1 Consolidated Financial Analysis — Based on ROC GAAP

Financial Analysis for the Past Five Years
Year

Item 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
(not applicable) | (not applicable) | (not applicable) | (not applicable) | (not applicable)

Financial Debt Ratio

structure (%)  |Ratio of long-term capital to fixed assets

Current ratio

Solvency (%) |Quick ratio

Interest earned ratio (times)

Accounts receivable turnover (times)

Average collection period

Inventory turnover (times)

Operating Accounts payable turnover (times)
performance

Average days in sales

Fixed assets turnover (times)

Total assets turnover (times)

Return on total assets (%)

Return on stockholders' equity (%)

i i ital|Before distribution
Profitability Ratio to |s°sued capital Rl
(%) After distribution

Profit ratio (%)

Earnings per share (NT$)

Cash flow ratio (%)

Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)

Cash reinvestment ratio (%)

Operating leverage

Leverage

Financial leverage

Analysis of financial ratio differences for the last two years. (Not required if the difference does not exceed 20%)

Remark:
1. The last five years financial information has been audited and certified by the CPA.
2. The end of the report should list the following formulas:
a. Financial structure
Debt Ratio=Total Liabilities/Current Liabilities
Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment=(Current Assets-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
b. Solvency
Current ratio=Current Assets/Current Liabilities
Quick ratio=(Current Assets s-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
Interest earned ratio (times)=(Net Income + Tax expense + Interest expense)/Interest expenditure
c. Operating performance
Accounts receivable turnover (times)=Net Sales/Average Accounts Receivables(including Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable
caused by operating)
Average collection period=365/ Accounts receivable turnover (times)
Inventory turnover (times)=Cost of sales/Average Inventory
Accounts payable turnover (times)=cost of sales/average Accounts Payable( including Accounts Payable and Notes payable caused by
operating)
Average days in sales=365/ Inventory turnover (times)
Property, plant and equipment turnover (times)=Net sales/average net amount of property, plant and equipment
Total assets turnover (times)=Net Sales/average Total Assets
d. Profitability
Return on total assets (%)=[Net Income + Interest Expense X (1-Tax Rate)]/ average Total Assets
Return on stockholders' equity (%)=Net Income/average Total Equity
Profit ratio (%)=Net Income/Net Sales
Earnings per share (NT$)=(Controlling Interest Shares-Preferred Stock dividends)/weighted average outstanding shares
e. Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%)=Cash flow from Operating Performance/Current Liabilities
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)= Cash flow from Operating Performance for last five years/last five years(Capital Expense + Increase of
Inventory + Cash dividend)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%)=( Cash flow from Operating Performance- Cash dividend)/(Gross property, plant and equipment +
Long-term Investment + Other non-current Liabilities + working capital)
f. Leverage
Operating leverage=(Net operating revenue-variable cost of sales and expenses)/operating gain
Financial leverage= operating gain/( operating gain-interest expense)
3. The EPS formulas above should notice:
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a. Use the weighted average common share, not the end of the period.
b. Any trade about issuance of common stock for cash or treasury stock should consider the outstanding period and calculate the weighted
average share.
c. Any case of capital reserves should trace back to adjust.
d. If the preferred share is non-convertible cumulated, dividend should be minus from net income, if its non-cumulated, net income should
minus dividend, net loss shouldn’t.
The analysis of cash flow should notice:
a the net amount of Cash flow from Operating Performance means the Cash flow from Operating Performance in the Cash Flow Statement.
b Capital Expense means annual capital investment’s cash out flow
¢ The increase of inventory will only counted when end-inventory larger than beginning-inventory, otherwise, will be $0.
d Cash dividend included common share and preferred share.
e Property, plant and equipment means the amounts already minus accumulated depreciation.
5.The security issuing entity should separate the operating income and loss to fixed and variable.

>

6.2.2.2 Financial Analysis — Based on ROC GAAP

Financial Analysis for the Past Five Years
Year

Item 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
(not applicable) | (not applicable) | (not applicable) | (not applicable) | (not applicable)

Financial Debt Ratio

structure (%)  |Ratio of long-term capital to fixed assets

Current ratio

Solvency (%) |Quick ratio

Interest earned ratio (times)

Accounts receivable turnover (times)

Average collection period

Inventory turnover (times)

Operating Accounts payable turnover (times)
performance

Average days in sales

Fixed assets turnover (times)

Total assets turnover (times)

Return on total assets (%)

Return on stockholders' equity (%)

i i ital|Before distribution
Profitability Ratio to |sgued capital T
(%) After distribution

Profit ratio (%)

Earnings per share (NT$)

Cash flow ratio (%)

Cash flow Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)

Cash reinvestment ratio (%)

Operating leverage

Leverage

Financial leverage

Analysis of financial ratio differences for the last two years. (Not required if the difference does not exceed 20%)

Remark:
1. The last five years financial information has been audited and certified by the CPA.
2. The end of the report should list the following formulas:
a. Financial structure
Debt Ratio=Total Liabilities/Current Liabilities
Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment=(Current Assets-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
b. Solvency
Current ratio=Current Assets/Current Liabilities
Quick ratio=(Current Assets s-Inventory-Prepaid expenses)/Current Liabilities
Interest earned ratio (times)=(Net Income + Tax expense + Interest expense)/Interest expenditure
c. Operating performance
Accounts receivable turnover (times)=Net Sales/Average Accounts Receivables(including Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable
caused by operating)
Average collection period=365/ Accounts receivable turnover (times)
Inventory turnover (times)=Cost of sales/Average Inventory
Accounts payable turnover (times)=cost of sales/average Accounts Payable( including Accounts Payable and Notes payable caused by
operating)
Average days in sales=365/ Inventory turnover (times)
Property, plant and equipment turnover (times)=Net sales/average net amount of property, plant and equipment
Total assets turnover (times)=Net Sales/average Total Assets
d. Profitability
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Return on total assets (%)=[Net Income + Interest Expense X (1-Tax Rate)]/ average Total Assets
Return on stockholders' equity (%)=Net Income/average Total Equity
Profit ratio (%)=Net Income/Net Sales
Earnings per share (NT$)=(Controlling Interest Shares-Preferred Stock dividends)/weighted average outstanding shares
e. Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%)=Cash flow from Operating Performance/Current Liabilities
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)= Cash flow from Operating Performance for last five years/last five years(Capital Expense + Increase of
Inventory + Cash dividend)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%)=( Cash flow from Operating Performance- Cash dividend)/(Gross property, plant and equipment +
Long-term Investment + Other non-current Liabilities + working capital)
f. Leverage
Operating leverage=(Net operating revenue-variable cost of sales and expenses)/operating gain
Financial leverage= operating gain/( operating gain-interest expense)
3. The EPS formulas above should notice:
a. Use the weighted average common share, not the end of the period.
b. Any trade about issuance of common stock for cash or treasury stock should consider the outstanding period and calculate the weighted
average share.
c. Any case of capital reserves should trace back to adjust.
d. If the preferred share is non-convertible cumulated, dividend should be minus from net income, if its non-cumulated, net income should
minus dividend, net loss shouldn’t.
4. The analysis of cash flow should notice:
a the net amount of Cash flow from Operating Performance means the Cash flow from Operating Performance in the Cash Flow Statement.
b Capital Expense means annual capital investment’s cash out flow
¢ The increase of inventory will only counted when end-inventory larger than beginning-inventory, otherwise, will be $0.
d Cash dividend included common share and preferred share.
e Property, plant and equipment means the amounts already minus accumulated depreciation.
5.The security issuing entity should separate the operating income and loss to fixed and variable.

6.3 Audit Committee’s Audit Report for Current Year
Audit Committee’s Audit Report

Dimerco Express Corporation
Audit Committee’s Audited Report

Board of Directors made up of year 2023 company's annual business report financial statements (includes
consolidated financial reports) had been audited by KPMG. The audit report that provided by KPMG, annual
business report, and the motion of profit distribution had been audited by the Audit Committee without
inconsistent. This report is prepared according to Securities and Exchange Act and Company Act.

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION
2023 ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Audit Committee Chairman: Bill Chien

March 15, 2023

6.4 Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, and Independent Auditors’
Report
Please refer to page 120 to 189.

6.5 Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, and
Independent Auditors’ Report
Please refer to page 190 to 256.

6.6 The effects of the company’s financial position resulted from affiliates that encounters financial

difficulties as of the publication of the annual report.
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Not applicable.

6.7 Does the company discloses the reconciliation between domestic accounting principles and

international accounting standards (or US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) on its annual

report:
Not applicable.

6.8 Fixed Assets Depreciation Methods and Estimated Life:

Depreciation
Iltem Fixed Assets Methods Estimated Life

1 Buildings Straight-line method 4~56 years
2 Trar)sportation . i

equipment Straight-line method 3~5 years
3 Office equipment Straight-line method 1~16 years
4 Lease improvement Straight-line method 2~6 years
5 Other equipment Straight-line method 2~6 years

6.9 Provision Basis for Asset/Liability Valuation Account :

1.Purpose:

The guidelines have been established to timely reflect the possibility of collecting accounts receivable and

ensure the evaluation of accounts receivable.

2.Provision Basis:

The provision for doubtful accounts is determined through periodic assessment of the aging and quality of

creditworthy customers and the collectability of accounts receivable.

3.Provision Rates are as follows:

. - Provision Rate
Aging Period of Overdue Amounts
Non-related Parties Related Parties

0-30 days 35% None

31-90 days 50% None
91-120days 80% None
121-365days 100% 50%

Over 365 days 100% 100%

6.10 Financial instruments other than stocks and depositary receipts which are valued based on their bid

price or ask price to determine their fair value:

Not applicable.
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6.11 Department Analysis:

The percentage of revenue contribution by each business segment for 2022

Taiwan Mainland China Global
Alr Freight 66.7% 54.1% 37.3%
Ocean Freight 23.3% 26.5% 40.4%
Triangle Trade 6.0% 1.7% 14.1%
Logistics Warehouse Management 25% 1.7% 0.8%
Customs Clearance 1.0% 2.3% 5.1%
Domestic Transportation 0.0% 0.2% 0.0%
Truck Delivery 0.2% 2.9% 1.8%
International Transshipment 0.2% 0.1% 0.1%
Others 0.1% 0.5% 0.4%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Stock Code: 5609

Dimerco Express Corporation

Parent company only Financial
Statements and Independent Auditors'
Report

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Address: 11F., No. 160, Sec. 6, Minquan E. Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei City
Contact number: (02)2796-3660
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To Dimerco Express Corporation,

Audit opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dimerco Express Corporation (the “Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the parent company only
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, (including a summary of significant accounting policies).

In our opinion which is based on our audit result and audit report from other CPAs (please refer to
Other matters), the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for the audit opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Auditing and
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the paragraph “Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the parent company only financial statements”. We are independent of the Dimerco
Express Corporation in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We are convinced, based on our audit results and other audit
reports from other auditors, that we have acquired enough and appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis of audit opinion.

Other matters

Audits of some investments through the equity method held by the Company were not conducted
by us but by other auditors. Therefore, in the opinion we expressed on the said parent company only
financial statements, such investees’ amounts listed in the financial statements were based on the audit
report by other auditors. The carrying amount recognized from the investments stated above were
NT$1,467,598 thousand or accounted for 18% of total assets, at December 31, 2021. Share of profits
recognized from subsidiaries or associated entities were NT$229,315 thousand, or 10% of total pretax
income, receptively, for the year ended 2021.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters refer to the most vital matters in our audit of the parent company only financial
statements of the Dimerco Express Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2022, based on our
professional judgment. These matters were addressed in our audit of the parent company only financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion. We do not express a separate opinion on these
matters. Key audit matters of the consolidated financial statements of the Company are stated as
follows:

1. Revenue Recognition

Please refer to Note(4)(12) “Revenue and cost recognition” for related accounting policy,
and Note(6)(12) “Revenue disclosure for contractual revenue.

Description of key audit matters:

Dimerco Express Corporation's revenue is mainly generated from providing contractual air
freight forwarding services. It is recognized as current income when the goods are sent to ship
based on the delivery contract with the price determined. As the time at which the goods are
sipped is variant based on each contract, the management of the Company determines the time at
which revenue is recognized under different operating conditions. We, therefore, list the item as a
key audit matter.

Audit procedures:

Our principal audit procedure and communication through auditing instructions sent to
associated CPAs are as follows:

+ Conduct tests to its internal control system for revenue recognition to ensure the efficacy
of the system;

+ Obtain sales transaction records for certain period from the computer system to verity the
completeness of recognition cycle;

« Sample monthly transaction records from top 10 customers and sales details for the entire
year to evaluate authenticity of the transaction, accuracy of transaction amounts and
reasonableness of recognition timing;

« Compare sampled bills of lading from airline companies and data compiled by the
Company to verity if the corresponding transactions have entered to the computer system;

« Test sales records for transactions completed during a certain period before and after the
reporting date to verify the appropriateness for the timing of revenue recognition;

2.  Cost estimate

Please refer to Note(4)(12) “Revenue and cost recognition” for related accounting policy on
cost estimation, and Note(6)(13) for detailed cost disclosure.

Description of key audit matters:

Dimerco Express Corporation's local and international air transportation costs contain
identifying risks involving completeness of and accuracy of amounts. We, therefore, list the item
as a key audit matter.
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Audit procedures:

Our principal audit procedure and communication through auditing instructions sent to
associated CPAs are as follows:

+ Conduct tests to its internal control system for cost recognition to ensure the efficacy of
the system;

« Sample monthly transaction records from top 10 customers and sales details for the entire
year to verify whether relevant costs are listed with reasonableness and followed by
corresponding revenue recognition;

« Send confirmation letters to verify accounts payable at the end of the period. For
transactions with airline companies of significant balance, sample the actual payments
made during a certain period after the reporting date the evaluate the reasonableness of
cost estimation for the period;

« Examine statement of related-party transactions to evaluate whether the payables to
overseas subsidiaries for services have reasonably listed in the statement;

+ Test sampled cost records for sales transactions completed during a certain period before
and after the reporting date to verify the appropriateness for the timing of cost recognition.

Responsibilities of the management and the governing bodies for the parent company only
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Regulation Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and
for such internal control to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, the management is responsible for
assessing the ability of the Dimerco Express Corporation in continuing as a going concern, disclosing
relevant matters, and adopting the going concern basis of accounting unless the management intends to
liquidate the Dimerco Express Corporation or cease the operations without other viable alternatives.

The corporate governance unit (including the Audit Committee an supervisors) of the Company is
responsible for supervising the procedures of financial reporting.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement arising from fraud or error and to issue an
independent auditors' report. Reasonable assurance is a high-level assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatement may arise from frauds or errors. If the amounts of
misstatements, either separately or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of the users of the parent company only financial statements, they are considered
material.

1. Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement arising from fraud or error within the
parent company only financial statements; designed and executed countermeasures in response to
said risks, and obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion.
Fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Therefore, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than the one resulting from error.

2. Understood the internal control related to the audit in order to design appropriate audit procedures
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under the circumstances, while not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Dimerco Express Corporation's internal control.

3. Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and relevant disclosures made by the management.

4. Concluded on the appropriateness of the management's adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting based on the audit evidence obtained and whether a material uncertainty exists for events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt over the Dimerco Express Corporation's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we are of the opinion that a material uncertainty exists, we shall
remind users of the parent company only financial statements to pay attention to relevant disclosures
in said statements within our audit report. If such disclosures are inadequate, we need to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Dimerco Express Corporation to cease
to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluated the overall presentation, structure, and content of the parent company only financial
statements (including relevant notes), and whether the parent company only financial statements
adequately present the relevant transactions and events.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information on entities
accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the parent only financial statement.
We were responsible for guiding, supervising, and performing the audit and forming an audit
opinion about the Dimerco Express Corporation.

The matters communicated between us and the governing bodies included the planned scope and
times of the audit and material audit findings (including any material defects in internal control
identified during the audit).

We also provided the governing bodies with a declaration that we have complied with the Norm
of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China regarding
independence and communicated with them all relations and other matters that may possibly be
regarded as detrimental to our independence (including relevant protective measures).

From the matters communicated with the governing bodies, we determined the key audit matters
for the audit of the Dimerco Express Corporation's parent company only financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2022. We have clearly indicated such matters in the auditors' report. Unless
legal regulations prohibit the public disclosure of specific matters, or in extremely rare cases, where we
decided not to communicate over specific items in the auditors' report for it could be reasonably
anticipated that the negative effects of such disclosure would be greater than the public interest it
brings forth.

KPMG Taiwan

CPA:

Competent Security Authority  : Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1050036075
Approval Document No. (1999) Tai-Cai-Zheng (V1) Zi No. 18311
March 15, 2023
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Dimerco Express Corporation
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
Unit: NT$ thousand

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %
4000  Operating income (Notes 6 (12) and (7)) $ 2,497,788 100 2,131,549 100
5000 Operating costs (Note 6(13)) 2,143953 86 1,852,432 87
5900  Gross profit 353,835 14 279,117 13
6000 Operating expenses (Note 6 (2) (4) (5) (7) (8) (14) and 7)
6100 Marketing expenses 98,953 4 95,287 5
6200 Management expenses 285,599 11 194,483 9
6450 Expected credit losses 1217 - 2,668 -
Total operating expenses 385,769 15 292438 14
6900  Net operating profit (loss) (31,934) (1) (13,321) (1)
7000 Non-operating income and expense (Notes 6 (3) (7) (15)
and 7):
7100 Interest income 1,410 - 40 -
7010 Other income 409,209 16 366,278 17
7020 Other gains and losses 61,328 2 1,427 -
7050 Financial costs (5,173) - (5,961) -
7070 Share of profit or loss of subsidiary & associates 2,226,098 89 2,034,908 95
accounted for using equity method
Total non-operating income and expenses: 2,692,872 107 2,396,692 112
7900 Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,660,938 106 2,383,371 111
7951 Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(9)) 122,313 5 72,894 3
8200 Net profit for the period 2,538,625 101 2,310,477 108
8300 Other comprehensive income (Note 6(8) and (10)):
8310 Items not reclassified to profit or loss
8311 Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 7,876 - (2,778) -
8330 Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of
subsidiaries and associates accounted for using the
equity method 245 - (546) -
8349 Less: Income tax related to items not reclassified - - - -
Titles that will not be reclassified as profit or loss 8121 - (3.324) -
8360 Titles that could be reclassified as profit (loss) accounts
in the future
8361 Exchange differences on the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations 308,919 13 (111,135) (5)
8380 Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of
subsidiaries and associates accounted for using the
equity method 425951 17 (5,059) -
8399 Less: Income tax related to titles will be reclassified - - - -
Total titles that could be reclassified as profit
(loss) accounts in the future 734,870 30 (116,194) (5)
8300 Other comprehensive income for the period 742,991 30 (119,518)  (5)
8500 Total comprehensive income for the period $ 3281616 131 2,190,959 103
Diluted earnings per share (unit: NT$) (Note 6(11))

9750 Basic earnings per share $ 18.71 16.98
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 18.39 16.77
(Please see accompany notes to financial statements)

Chairman: Chien, Yao- Huai General Manager: Chiu, Chun-  Accounting Manager: Chen,

Jung Ching-Chi
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AAAA
A10000
A20000
A20010
A20100
A20200
A20300
A20900
A21200
A21300
A22400
A22500
A22700
A20010
A30000
A31000
A31130
A31150
A31160
A31190
A31240
A31000
A32000
A32130
A32150
A32160
A32180
A32190
A32230
A32240
A32000
A30000
A20000
A33000
A33100
A33200
A33300
A33500
AAAA
BBBB
B01800
B02000
B02700
B02800
B03700
B07600
BBBB
ccce
C00100
C00200
C03000
C04020
C04300
C04500
C04900
C09900
Cccc
EEEE
E00100
E00200

Chairman: Chien, Yao- Huai

Dimerco Express Corporation
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profits before tax for the period
Adjustments:

Income and expense items
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income

Share of profit or loss of subsidiary & associates accounted for using equity method

Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on leasehold improvements
Total income and expenses

Total net changes in assets and liabilities related to operating activities

Net change in assets related to operating activities:
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable — related parties
Other receivables - related parties
Other current assets

Total net change in assets related to operating activities:

Net change in liabilities related to operating activities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related parties
Other payables
Other payables - related parties
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liability

Total net change in liabilities related to operating activities
Total net changes in assets and liabilities related to operating activities

Total adjustments
Cash inflow from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities:
Acquisition of investment accounted for using the equity method
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in guarantee deposits paid
Dividend income received from investments using equity methods
Net cash inflow from investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received
Lease principal repayment
Increase in other non-current liabilities
Distribution of cash dividends
Repurchase costs of treasury stocks
Increase (decrease) in long-term payable - related parties
Net cash outflow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent for the current period
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents

(Please see accompany notes to financial statements)
General Manager: Chiu, Chun- Jung
-129 -

Unit: NT$ thousand

2022 2021
$ 2,660,938 2,383,371
15,430 17,899
122 236
1,217 2,668
5,173 5,961
(1,410) (40)
(148) (130)
(2,226,098) (2,034,908)
- (590)
92 -
(2.205,622) (2,008,904)
10,616 (15,412)
94,793 (188,472)
181,210 (210,496)
(227,859) (1,407)
(2.266) 11,012
56,494 (404,775)
(14,821) 6,718
(39,558) 12,313
(57,855) 136,355
109,772 64,746
947 -
(11,664) (2,239)
(2,911) (3.151)
(16,090) 214,742
40,404 (190,033)
(2.165,218) (2,198,937)
495,720 184,434
1,410 40
148 130
(5.173) (5,961)
(102,459) (26,212)
389,646 152,431
- (8,000)
(121) -
(2,076) (5,669)
- 590
(1,192) (30)
58,180 20,916
54,791 7,807
1,579,025 2,626,125
(1,825,617) (2,650,125)
24 (192)
(11,556) (12,593)
1,385,602 631,201
(1,373,046) (654,323)
(201,000) -
7,946 (2.247)
(438,622) (62.154)
5815 98,084
213,918 115,834
$ 219,733 213,918

Accounting Manager: Chen, Ching-Chi



Dimerco Express Corporation
Notes to parent company only Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in thousands of NTD)

Company History

Dimerco Express Corporation (the “Company”), originally named as Dimerco Air Freight
Corporation and renamed in June 2012, was incorporated on August 1985 under the Company Act
and other associated regulations of Republic of China. The Company is primarily involved with
(1) airfreight forwarding business; (2) sea freight forwarding; (3)import/export customs
declaration business; and (4) operations and investments in the aforementioned businesses

Date and Procedure for Approval of Financial Statements

The parent company only financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for
release on March 15, 2023.

Application of Newly Issued and Amended Standards and Interpretations
(1) Impact of adoption of new and revised standards and interpretations endorsed by the FSC

The Company has adopted the newly revised IFRSs listed below starting from January
1, 2022, which will not cause a material impact on the parent company only financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use)
Amendments to IAS 37 (Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract)
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
Amendments to IFRS 3 (Reference to the Conceptual Framework)
(1) Impact of not adopting the IFRS endorsed by the FSC

The Company has assessed the application of the newly revised IFRS that have taken
effect on January 1, 2023, which will not cause a material impact on the parent company
only financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1, "Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Amendments to IAS 8, "Definition of Accounting Estimates”

Amendments to IAS 12, "Deferred Income Taxes Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction".
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

(1) New and revised standards and interpretations not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Company,
have been issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB), but have not yet
to be endorsed or interpreted by FSC:

Standards or Effective date
interpretations Content of amendment per IASB
Amendmentsto IAS1  Under the current IAS 1, liabilities for whichan ~ January 1, 2024
(Classification of enterprise does not have an unconditional right to
Liabilities as Current or  defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
Non-current) reporting period should be classified as current.

The amendment removes the requirement that the
right should be unconditional and instead
requires that the right must exist at the end of the
reporting period and must be substantial.

The amendment clarifies how an enterprise
should classify liabilities that are settled by the
issuance of its own equity instruments (e.g.,
convertible bonds).

Amendmentsto IAS1  After reconsidering certain aspects of the 2020 January 1, 2024

“Classification of amendments to IAS 1, the new amendments
Liabilities as Current or  clarify that only contractual terms followed on or
Non-current” before the reporting date will affect the

classification of a liability as current or
non-current.

Contractual terms (i.e., future terms) to be
followed by an enterprise after the reporting date
do not affect the classification of a liability at that
date. However, when a non-current liability is
subject to future contractual terms, the enterprise
is required to disclose information to help users
of financial statements understand the risk that
the liability may be repaid within twelve months
of the reporting date

The Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned
standard or interpretations on its financial position and financial performance. The results
thereof will be disclosed when the Company completes its evaluation.

The Company does expect the following other new and amended standards, which have
yet to be endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its financial statements.

IV.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the parent company only
financial statements is as follows. The accounting policies below have been applied consistently
throughout the reporting period presented in the parent company only financial statements.

(I) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

(1) Basis of preparation

1.

Basis for measurement

Except the following significant accounts, unless otherwise noted (please refer to
accounting policy for each title) the financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis:

Functional currency and currency presented

The Company adopts the currency used in the main economic environment in which
each system under it operates as its functional currency. The financial statements are
presented in New Taiwan Dollar (TWD), which is the Company’s financial currency. All
financial information presented in NTD is in the unit of thousands of NTD.

(111) Foreign currency

1.

2.

Foreign currency transaction

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency at the exchange
rate prevailing on the transaction date. On the end date of each reporting period
(hereinafter referred to as the “balance sheet date”), foreign currency monetary items are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the day of measurement.
Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date.

Foreign currency translation differences arising from translation are generally
recognized in profit or loss, except for those arising from the translation of equity
instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations
The asset and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income or expenses of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency at the average exchange rate.
Exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(IV) Criteria for classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; all other

assets that are not current assets are classified as non-current assets:

1.

It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operation
cycle;

Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Assets that are cash or cash equivalents, excluding assets restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; all
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other liabilities that are not current liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities:
1. Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

2. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Liabilities expected to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
4

Liabilities with a repayment deadline that cannot be unconditionally deferred for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date. However, the terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by issue of equity instruments do not

affect its classification.
(V) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash demand deposits and short-term and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

The saving deposits maturing in three months, held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments, rather than for investment or other purpose and readily
convertible to known amount of cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value, are

reported as cash equivalents.
(V1) Financial instruments

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated - All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual terms of the financial instruments. Financial assets (except receivables that do
not contain significant financial components) or financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance. Accounts receivable that do not contain

significant financial components are initially measured at transaction prices.
1. Financial assets

If the purchase or sale of financial assets conforms to the regular way purchase or
sale , the Company shall adopt trade date accounting consistently to recognize the

purchase or sale of the financial assets in the same category.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at amortized cost and equity
instrument investments at fair value through other comprehensive income upon initial
recognition. The Company only reclassifies all affected financial assets from the first day

of next reporting period when changing the financial assets management model.
(1) Financial assets at amortized cost

If the financial assets are in alignment with the following criteria and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, such assets are measured at

amortized cost:

Held under a certain business model, of which the objective is to collect

contractual cash flows by holding the financial assets.

The cash flows on specific dates specified in the contractual terms are solely

payments for the principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

-133 -



Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

Such assets are subsequently amortized by the effective interest method plus or
less the initially recognized amount using the effective interest method, adjusted for
the allowance for losses measured at amortized cost. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains or losses, and impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the gain or loss is included in profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Upon initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election to
recognize subsequent changes in fair value of equity instrument investments not held
for trading in other comprehensive income. The foregoing election is made as per
each instrument.

Investments in equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividend income (unless it clearly represents a recovery of part of an investment cost)
is recognized in profit or loss. The remaining net gain or loss is recognized as other
comprehensive income and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income from investments in equity is recognized on the date on which
the Company is entitled to receive the dividend (usually the ex-dividend date).

(3) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses on financial
assets at amortized cost, including cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
receivable, other receivables and refundable deposits.

The allowance for losses for the financial assets below are measured at
12-month expected credit losses, and the allowance for losses for the rest are
measured at the lifetime expected credit losses:

Debt securities are judged to be of low credit risk on the balance sheet date; and

Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Allowance for losses on accounts receivable are measured at lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses refer to the expected credit losses arising from
all possible default events during the expected duration of a financial instrument.

Twelve-month expected credit losses are expected credit losses on a financial
instrument arising from possible default events within 12 months after the balance
sheet date (or a shorter period if the expected duration of the financial instrument is
less than 12 months).

The maximum period over which expected credit losses are measured is the
maximum contract period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk has increased significantly since the
initial recognition, the Company takes into account reasonable and corroborative
information (obtainable without undue cost or effort), including qualitative and
quantitative information, and analyzes it based on the Company's historical
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experience, credit assessments, and forward-looking information.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is a credit
impairment on financial assets at amortized cost. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events have occurred with an adverse effect on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset.

The allowance for losses for a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset. The provision or reversal of the
allowance for losses is recognized in profit or loss.

When the Company cannot reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of a
financial asset, it directly reduces the total carrying amount of the financial asset. The
Company determines that when the debtor is unable to generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amount written off. However financial assets that are written-off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amount due.

(4) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred to other entities.

2. Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(1) Classification of liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial
liabilities or equity as per the substance of a contractual agreement and the definition
of financial liabilities and equity instruments.

(2) Equity transactions

Equity instruments are any contractual assets that entitle rights to the Company
after the liability portion are offset from the assets. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognized for an amount after deducting the direct issuing cost from
the proceeds collected.

(3) Treasury stocks

Consideration paid (including direct cost attributed) for equity instrument
buyback recognized by the Company is recorded as decrease in an equity component.
Shares buyback are treasury stocks. Proceeds received from resale or reissuance of
treasury stocks are treated as equity increase. Any surplus or loss generated from the
transaction is recognized as capital surplus or retain earnings (when capital surplus is
insufficient to offset)

(4) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and exchange gain or loss are recognized in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss is also recognized in profit or loss upon derecognition.

(5) Derecognition of financial liabilities
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The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when contractual obligations

have been fulfilled, cancelled, or expired.

On derecognization of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration payable (including any non-cash assets transferred or

liabilities assumed) is recognized as non-operating income or expenses.
(6) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet only when the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends either to settle them on a net

basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(V1) Investment in associates

Associates are enterprises which the Company has significant influence, not controlling
power, over the finance and operation policy of. The Company is deemed to have such an

influence when it holds 20% to 50% voting rights of an entity.

Under the equity method, investments in an associate are initially recognized at cost,
and the investment cost includes the transaction cost. The carrying amount of an investment
in an associate includes the goodwill identified at the time of the initial investment, less any

accumulated impairment losses.

The Company’s parent company only financial statements include, from the date of it
having significant influence to the date of it losing significant influence, after adjusting
associates’ accounting policies to be consistent with those adopted by Company, include the
amount of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from investment in each associate
recognized in proportion to the equity held. When an associate undergoes a change in equity
that is not related to profit or loss or other comprehensive income without affecting the
Company’s shareholding in the associate, the Company recognizes the share of changes in

equity attributable to the Company in capital surplus in proportion to its shareholding.

Unrealized gains resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate
have been offset to the extent of the Company's interest in the associate. The approach to
offset unrealized loss is the same as that for unrealized gain but only to the extent that when

there is no evidence or impairment.

When the Company’s share of losses on an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses
and liabilities are recognized only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal

obligations, or constructive obligations, or made payments on behalf of said associate.
(V1) Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries which the Company is holding for controlling are measured under
equity method in the financial statements. Under equity method, the net income, other
comprehensive income in the parent company only financial statements are equivalent to
those in the consolidated financial statements. Total equity in the parent company only

financial statement is equivalent to equity attributable to shareholders of the parent.

The changes in ownership of the subsidiaries not causing loss of the control power are

recognized as equity transactions.
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(IX) Property, plant and equipment
1. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost (including capitalized borrowing

costs) less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment.

When the useful lives of material components of property, plant and equipment are
different, they are treated as separate items (major components) of property, plant and

equipment.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or

loss.
2. Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when it is probable that the future

economic benefits will flow to the Company.
3. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated at the cost of an asset less its residual value and is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each

component.
Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful life for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings 4 ~ 56 years
Transportation equipment 3 years
Office equipment 1~16 years
Leasehold improvement 2~6 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residue values, are reviewed at each reporting

date, adjusted if appropriate.
(X) Lease

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease on the date of the
establishment the contract and determines a contract is or contains a lease if the contract
transfers control over the use of the identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As a lessee, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on

which it is located, less any lease incentive.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
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lease term, whichever is earlier. In addition, the Company regularly assesses whether the
right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any impairment loss that has occurred, and

adjusts the right-of-use asset if the lease liability is remeasured.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease payments
at the lease commencement date. If the interest rate implicit in a lease is easy to be
determined, the discount rate is said rate; if it is not easy to determine such a rate, the
Company's incremental borrowing rate is adopted. Generally speaking, the Company adopts

its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the lease liability measurement include:
Fixed payments, including substantive fixed payments;

The lease payment depends on the change in an index or rate, and the index or rate on the

lease commencement date is adopted for the initial measurement;
The residual value guarantee amount expected to be paid; and

4. The exercise price or penalty to be paid when it is reasonably ascertains that the purchase

or lease termination will be executed.

Interest on lease liabilities is subsequently accrued using the effective interest method,

and the amount is re-measured under each of the circumstances below:

1. Changes in the index or rate used to determine lease payments result in changes in future

lease payments;
There is a change in the residual value guarantee amount expected to be paid;
There is a change in the evaluation of the option of purchasing the asset;

4. A change in the evaluation of whether to extend or terminate a lease has resulted in a

change in the evaluation of the lease term;
5. The subject leased, scope of lease, or other terms are modified.

When the lease liability is re-measured due to the aforementioned changes in the index
or rate used to determine the lease payment, changes in the residual value guarantee amount,
and changes in the evaluation of the purchase, extension, or termination, the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is adjusted accordingly. When the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero, the remaining remeasured amount is recognized

in profit or loss.

For lease modifications with a reduced scope of the lease, the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and the
difference between said amount and the remeasured amount of the lease liability is

recognized in profit or loss.

The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities not in alignment with the

definition of investment property on a separate line in the balance sheet.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liability for
short-term leases and leases of low-value asses. The Company recognizes the lease payment

associated with these leases as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(XI) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company evaluates if there is any sign of impairment of non-financial assets
(except deferred tax assets) at the balance sheet date. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount of such assets with a sign of impairment. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

Impairment testing aims at the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the individual asset or the air value of the
cash-generating unit less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects present market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized when the recoverable amount of an individual asset or
cash-generating unit is lower than the carrying amount thereof.

Impairment losses are recognized immediately in profit or loss with the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit's amortized goodwill reduced first; then the carrying amount of
each asset in proportion to the carrying amount thereof in the unit reduced.

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is limited to the carrying amount (after
depreciation or amortization) which was determined previously before the occurrence of the
impairment.

(XI1) Revenue and cost recognition
1. Revenue from customer contracts

Revenue is measured as the consideration to which the transfer of goods or services
is expected to be entitled. The Company recognizes revenue when its service satisfies a
performance obligation.

The Company main revenue is derived from providing a range of forwarding
services, including air freight, ocean freight and customs declaration. Revenue is
recognized for services provided during the reporting period.

2. Cost of customer contracts

Shipping costs, covering air and ocean freights, are estimated when revenue is
recognition and are expensed based on vendor invoices or quotations.

(XI11) Employee benefits
1. Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contribution to the defined contribution plans are expensed during
the period when related service is provided from the employees.

2. Defined benefit plan

The Company's net obligation to the defined benefit plan is calculated by
discounting the amount of future benefits earned by employees for services provided in
the current or prior periods to the present value for each benefit plan, less the fair value
of any plan assets.

Defined benefit obligations are calculated annually by a qualified actuary using the
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projected unit credit method. When the result of the calculation may be favorable to the
Company, the asset recognized is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
that could be derived from the plan in the form of a refund of contributions or a reduction
in future contributions. Any minimum contribution requirements are taken into account

when the present value of economic benefits is calculated.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, including actuarial gains or
losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest), and any changes in the effect of asset
caps (excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in retained earnings. The Company determines net interest expense (income)
on net defined benefit liability (asset) based on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
and discount rates determined at the beginning of the annual reporting period. Net
interest expense and other expenses on defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or

loss.

When the plan is revised or curtailed, the resulting change in benefits related to
service costs in the prior periods or curtailment gains or losses is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. When the settlement occurs, the Company recognizes it in the settlement

gain or loss of the defined benefit plan.
3. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed when the relevant services are provided.
If the Company has a present legal or constructive payment obligation due to an
employee's past services and the obligation can be estimated reliably, the amount of

benefits is recognized in liabilities.
(XIV) Government grants

The Company recognizes an unconditional government grant as other income when the
grant is received. Government grants to compensate for the Company’s expenses or losses
and relevant expenses in the same period are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic

basis.
(XV) Income tax

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Current income tax and
deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except in relation to business combinations or

items directly recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on taxable profits
(losses) for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable and receivable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized based on the temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of an asset and liability for financial reporting purposes and its tax base. Deferred
income tax is not recognized for temporary differences arising from the following

circumstances:

1. Assets or liabilities that are not part of the initial recognition of a business merger
transaction and do not affect the accounting profit and taxable income (loss) at the time

of the transaction;

2. temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, affiliates and joint
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ventures where the Company can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

3. Taxable temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilized, as well as deductible temporary differences are recognized in deferred
tax assets. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is not probable that the related income tax benefit will be realized, or to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow
the reversal of the original reduction.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to when the
related asset is realized or the related liability is settled, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company will offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities only when the
criteria below are met at the same time:

1. Has the statutory enforcement power to offset current income tax assets and current
income tax liabilities; and

2. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are related to one of the following
taxpayers with income tax levied by the same tax authority:

(1) The same taxpayer; or

(2) Different taxpayers but each taxpayer intends to settle the current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or to realize both in each future period, in which significant
amounts of deferred tax assets are expected to be recovered and deferred tax
liabilities are expected to be settled.

(XVI) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to holders of the
Group’s ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding adjusted by the number of treasury shares. Additional shares from the
conversion of accumulated earnings and capital surplus are shares outstanding through
retroactive adjustment.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by having the profit or loss attributable to the
equity holders of the Company's ordinary shares and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for the effect of all potential dilutive ordinary shares.
Dilutive potential ordinary shares are remuneration to employee distributed by shares

(XVII) Information on Segments

The segments information is disclosed in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements; therefore, the Company does not disclose easement information in these
statements.
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Key Sources of Uncertainty over Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions, and
Estimation

The preparation of the financial statement is in conformity with “Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.” The management is required to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and
the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
estimates.

The management continues to review estimates and basic assumptions, and changes in
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which they are changed and future periods
affected.

There is no information regarding significant recognitions arising from accounting policies
and major judgments, or information regarding major adjustment that will be made in the next
period arising from potential and significant risks due to the uncertainty of assumptions and
estimates.

Description of Significant Account Titles

(I) Cash and cash equivalents
2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Cash on hand $ 1,507 1,545

Checking deposit 8,733 15,481

Demand deposit 172,617 183,055

Time deposit 36,876 13,837

Ca];slh and cash equivalents in statement of cash 3 219,733 213,918
ows

Please refer to Note 6(16) for the disclosure of interest rate risk and sensitivity analysis
of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities.

(1) Notes and accounts (including related parties) and overdues receivable

2022.12.31 2021.12.31

Notes receivable $ 7,173 17,789
Accounts receivable 306,293 401,086
Accounts receivable — related parties 90,345 271,555
Overdue - 736
Less: Allowance for losses - account receivable 6,213 4,996
Allowance - overdue - 736

$ 397,598 685,434

All receivables of the Company have been applied with discounts or provided as
collaterals.
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The Company adopts a simplified approach to estimate expected credit losses for all
notes and accounts receivables, which are measured at lifetime expected credit losses. To
this end, such notes and accounts receivables are grouped by common credit risk
characteristics that represent a customer's ability to pay all amounts due as per the contract
terms with forward-looking information incorporated. The Company's expected credit loss

analysis for the notes and accounts receivable is as follows:

Not past due

Overdue for 0-30 days
Overdue for 31-60 days
Overdue for 61-90 days

Not past due

Overdue for 0-30 days
Overdue for 31-60 days
Overdue for 61-90 days

2022.12.31
Weighted
Carrying average Allowance for
amount of expected lifetime
accounts credit loss expected
receivable rate credit losses
$ 312,940 0% -
77,377 0% -
12,656 42% 5,375
838 100% 838
$ 403811 - 6213
2021.12.31
Weighted
Carrying average Allowance for
amount of expected lifetime
accounts credit loss expected
receivable rate credit losses
$ 634,319 0% -
49,275 1% 469
5,773 60% 3,464
1,799 100% 1,799
$ 691,166 5732

The changes in allowances for losses on the Company’s notes and accounts receivable

are as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for impairment loss

Amount written off as uncollectible during the

year
Ending balance

(1) Investments using the equity method

2022 2021
$ 5,732 3,064
1,217 2,668
(736) -
$ 6,213 5,732
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A summary of Company’s investments accounted for using the equity method at the
reporting date is as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Subsidiary $ 9,528,539 6,653,336
Associates 241,671 213,841
Total 3 9,770,210 6,867,177
1. Subsidiary
Please refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2022.

2. Associates
The information on associates with materiality to the Company is as follows:

Core Proportion of
Nature of the operation ownership interest and
relationship with  location / voting rights
the Consolidated Country of
Name Company registration 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
ITG Air & SeaGmbH  Air and ocean Germany 25.00% 25.00%
freight logistics
business

The information on associates with materiality to the Company is as follows:
Summary of financial information of ITG Air & Sea GmbH:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Current assets $ 1,299,254 1,065,828
Non-current assets 83,643 88,923
Current liabilities (905,396) (778,586)
Non-current liabilities (29,582) (39,569)
Net assets $ 447,919 336,596
Net assets attributable to the Company $ 111,979 84,149
2022 2021

Operating revenue $ 4,657,240 4,283,299
Net income of continuing operations for the

period $ 199,467 126,150
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income $ 199,467 126,150
Total comprehensive income attributable to the

Company for the period $ 49,866 31,538
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2022 2021

The Company’s share of the net assets from

associated entities at the beginning of the

period $ 84,149 68,321
Total comprehensive income attributable to the

Company for the period 49,866 31,538
Dividend received for the period (28,180) (7,769)
Translation adjustment 6,144 (7,941)
The Company’s share of the net assets from

associated entities at the end of the period 111,979 84,149
Add: Goodwill 129,692 129,692
Carrying amount of the Company's equity in

associates at the end of the period $ 241,671 213,841

3. Collateral

None of the above investments using the equity method by the Company was
pledged as collateral as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(IV) Property, plant and equipment

The cost, depreciation, and change of the property, plant and equipment of the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

Transportation Office Leasehold

Land Buildings equipment equipment improvement Total

Cost or deemed cost:
Balance on January 1, 2022 $ 156,092 48,913 - 48,117 3,384 256,506
Addition - - - 2,07¢ - 2,076
Balance on December 31, $ 156,092 48,913 - 50,19¢ 3.384 258,582
2022
Balance on January 1,2021 $ 156,092 48,913 476 42,44¢ 3,384 251,313
Addition - - - 5,66¢ - 5,669
Disposal - - (476) - - (476)
Balance on December 31, $ 156,092 48,913 - 48,117 3,384 256,506
2021

Depreciation:
Balance on January 1,2022 $ - 21,914 - 41,26¢ 3,383 66,566
Depreciation - 948 - 2,94( - 3,888
Balance on December 31, $ - 22.862 - 44,20¢ 3,383 70454
2022
Balance on January 1, 2021  $ - 20,966 476 36,90: 3,338 61,683
Depreciation - 948 - 4,36¢ 45 5,359
Disposal - (476) - - (476)
Balance on December 31, $ - 21,914 - 41,26¢ 3,383 66,566
2021

Carrying amount:
December 31, 2022 $ 156,092 26,051 - 5,98¢ 1 188,128
December 31, 2021 $ 156,092 26,999 - 6,84¢ 1 189,940
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As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the property, plant and equipment had been
pledged as collateral for guaranteed financing: please refer to Note (8)

(V) Right-of-use assets

The Company leases assets including offices, warehouses and transport equipment.
Inform about the cost and depreciation of leased assets is as follows:

Transportation

Buildings equipment Total
Cost of right-of-use assets:
Balance on January 1, 2022 20,721 166 20,887
Addition 8,275 2,401 10,676
Decrease (including leasehold

improvements) (12,949) (166) (13,115)
Balance on December 31,

2022 $ 16,047 2,401 18,448
Balance on January 1, 2021 11,460 1,846 13,306
Addition 15,834 - 15,834
Decrease (6,573) (1,680) (8,253)
Balance on December 31,

2021 $ 20,721 166 20,887

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets:
Balance on January 1, 2022 8,622 83 8,705
Depreciation 10,659 883 11,542
Decrease (including leasehold

improvements) (12,924) (166) (13,090)
Balance on December 31,

2022 $ 6,357 800 7,157
Balance on January 1, 2021 955 1,120 2,075
Depreciation 11,897 643 12,540
Decrease (4,230) (1,680) (5,910)
Balance on December 31,

2021 $ 8,622 83 8,705

Carrying Amount:
December 31, 2022 $ 9,690 1,601 11,291
December 31, 2021 $ 12,099 83 12,182

(V1) Short-term borrowings
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The Company’s short-term loans and borrowing terms are summarized as follows:

1. Short-term borrowings
2022.12.31
Interest rate
Currency  range (%) Expiration Amount
Unsecured bank borrowings NTD 1.15~15 2023 $ 430,000

2021.12.31
Interest rate
Currency  range (%) Expiration Amount

Unsecured bank borrowings NTD 0.85 2022 $ 583,025
Unsecured bank borrowings EUR 0.55 2022 93,567
Total $ 676592

The un-utilized short-term credit was $1,195,025 thousand and $722,925 thousand
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Please refer to Note 8 for the assets pledged for bank loans.
2. Long-term borrowings

The un-utilized short-term credit was $150,000 thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

For information on the Company’s interest risk, currency risk and liquidity risk,
please refer to Note 6 (16)

(V) Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Company’s lease liabilities are as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Current $ 9,415 9,163
Non-current $ 1,911 2,976

Please refer to Note 6(16) “Financial instruments for maturity analysis.

Lease amounts recognized through profit and loss were as follows:

2022 2021
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 125 130
Expenses on low-value leased assets (excluding
short-term, low-value leases) $ 507 249

Lease amounts recognized in statement of cash flows were as follows:
2022 2021
Total cash outflow from leases $ 12,188 12,972
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(V) Employee benefits
1. Defined benefit plan

The reconciliation between the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of the plan assets is as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Present value of the defined benefit obligation $ 41,598 48,505
Fair value of the plan assets 36,575 32,695
Net defined benefit liability $ 5,023 15,810

The Company’s defined benefit plan is transferred to the pension reserve account
with the Bank of Taiwan. Pension payment for each employee to which the Labor
Standards Act applies is calculated based on the number of units obtained for the length
of services and the average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

(1) Composition of plan assets

The pension fund contributed by the Company in accordance with the Labor
Standards Act is under the overall management of the Bureau of Labor Funds,
Ministry of Labor (hereinafter referred to as the “Bureau of Labor Funds”). As per
the Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor
Retirement Fund, the minimum income from the use of the fund, distributed annually,
shall not be lower than the income from two-year time deposits with the interest rates
offered by local banks.

As of 2022 reporting date, the fund allocated to the employees’ pension reserve
account with Bank of Taiwan was $36,326 thousand. The information on the use of
the assets of the labor pension fund includes the yield rate and the asset allocation of
the fund. Please refer to the information published on the website of the Bureau of
Labor Funds.

(2) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation

The changes in the present value of the Company’s defined benefit obligations in
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021

Defined benefit obligation on January 1 $ 48,505 45,129
Interest costs 298 278
Remeasurement of net defined benefit (asset)
liability

- Actuarial gain or loss from changes in (5,427) 3,098

financial assumptions

Benefits paid by the plan (1,778) -
Defined benefit obligation on December 31 $ 41,598 48,505

(3) Changes in fair value of the plan assets
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The changes in the fair value of the Company's defined benefit plan assets in
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021

Fair value of the plan assets on January 1 $ 32,695 28,946
Interest income 208 188
Remeasurement of net defined benefit
liability

- Return on plan asset (excluding current 2,449 320

interest)
Contribution to the plan 3,001 3,241
Benefits paid by the plan (1,778) -
Fair value of the plan assets on December 31  $ 36.575 32,695

(4) Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized in profit or loss for the Company in 2022 and 2021
was as follows:
2022 2021
Net interest on net defined benefit liability $ 90 90
(recorded as operating expense)

(5) Actuarial assumptions

The following are the Company’s principal actuarial assumptions for
determining defined obligation at the reporting date.

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Discount rate 1.750% 0.625%
Future salary increase 3.000% 3.000%

The Company expects to contribute $3,001 thousand to the defined benefit plan
within one year after the 2022 balance sheet date.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan is 11.12 years.
(6) Sensitivity analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
Company should exercise judgments and conduct estimation to determine relevant
actuarial assumptions on the balance sheet date, including discount rates and future
salary changes. Changes in any actuarial assumptions may materially affect the
amount of the Company's defined benefit obligation.

The effect of changes in the main actuarial assumptions adopted on December
31, 2022 and 2021 on the present value of the defined benefit obligation is as
follows:
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Effect on the defined benefit

obligation
Increase by Decrease by
0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2022

Discount rate $ (743) 767
Future salary increase rate 739 (720)
December 31, 2021

Discount rate $ (1,036) 1,071
Future salary increase rate 1,023 (998)

The sensitivity analysis above is based on the analysis of the effect of a change
in a single assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged. It is reasonably
probable that changes in several assumptions are inter-correlated with each others.
The method used in the sensitivity analysis is consistent with the calculation of

pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumption used in the preparation of

sensitivity analysis for 2022 and 2021.
2. Defined contribution plan

The Company's defined contribution plan is as per the Labor Pension Act, and the
Company makes a contribution equal to 6.00% of each employee’s monthly salary to
employees’ individual pension accounts under the Bureau of Labor Insurance. Under this
plan, after the Company has provided a fixed amount to the Bureau of Labor Insurance, it
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amounts.

The Company’s pension expenses under the defined contribution plan in 2022 and

2021 were $6,298 thousand and $6,010 thousand,
contributed to the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

(X1X) Income tax
1. Income tax expense

respectively, which have been

The details of the Company’s income tax expense (benefit) for 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:

2022 2021

Income tax expense (benefit) in this period
Generated during the period $ 123,186 72,038
Adjustment to the income tax for the prior period (6,306) 505

116,880 72,543
Deferred tax expense
Temporary differences occurring and reversed 5,433 351
Income tax expense $ 122,313 72,894
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The reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for 2022 and 2021 was as

follows:
2022 2021
Profit before tax $ 2,660,938 2,383,371
Income tax calculated at the domestic tax rate $ 532,188 476,674
where the Company is located
Profit recognized under equity method (445,220) (406,982)
Dividend income 5,607 1,528
5% surtax on undistributed earnings 28,611 -
Adjustment for prior periods (6,306) 505
Other 7,433 1,169
Total $ 122,313 72,894

2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
(1) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

No deferred tax liabilities were recognized for the temporary differences related
to investments in subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, as the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Related amounts:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Amount of deferred tax liabilities not $ 2,073,592 1.408.666
recognized

(2) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Unrealized
Defined exchange
benefit profits or

plan losses Other Total
January 1, 2022 $ 2,169 125 65 2,359
Credit(Debit)

Income statement (582) (125) 582 (125)
December 31, 2022 $ 1,587 - 647 2,234
January 1, 2021 $ 2,799 (89) - 2,710
Credit(Debit)

Income statement (630) 214 65 (351)
December 31, 2021 $ 2,169 125 65 2,359
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Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized
exchange

profits or losses
January 1, 2022 $ -

Debit to the Income Statements 5,308
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 5,308

3. Approval of income tax returns
The Company’s income tax returns through 2020 were examined and approved by
the tax authority.
(X) Capital and other equity

1. Common stock

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s authorized capital was
$1,680,000 thousand, with a par value of $10 and a total of 168,000 thousand shares on
both dates. The issued shares were 136,080 thousand shares on both dates; and all the
funds of issued shares had been received.

Through a resolution in the shareholders’ meeting on July 08, 2021, the Company
has increased its capital from retain earnings recapitalization, 80 free shares for every
1000 shares owned. The application has approved by the Financial Supervisory
commission; and September 04, 2021 is the base date for the capital increase. Related
registration procedures required by the law have been completed.

2. Capital surplus
The balance of the Company's capital surplus is as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Share issued at a premium $ 15,000 15,000
Gains on sale of fixed assets 28 28
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries 4,334 4,334
$ 19,362 19,362

According to the Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit,
then can the realized capital surplus be distributed as cash dividends according to the
original percentage held by the shareholders. The realized capital surplus referred to in
the preceding paragraph includes the premium from shares issued in excess of the par
value and the income from gifts. Pursuant to the Regulations Governing the Offering and
Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, the total amount of capital surplus to be used
as capital shall not exceed 10% of the paid-in capital.

3. Retained earnings

The Company’s Article of Incorporation of the Company, requires that after -tax

-152 -



Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

earnings shall first be offset against accumulated deficit (including adjustments to
unappropriated earnings), and then 10% of the remaining shall be set aside as legal
reserve up to the point when the balance of legal reserve reaches the paid-in capital of the
Company. And special reserves are to be provided or reversed according to the
regulations. If there is still remaining balance, combined with the beginning
unappropriated retained earnings (including adjustments to unappropriated earnings), the
Company shall ask the Board of Directors to make distribution through new share
issuance to be approved by the shareholders’ meeting.

When making dividend and bonus distribution in cash, a resolution for such
distribution shall be adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of board of directors
attended by two-thirds of the total members before a report of such distribution submitted
to the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company considers the following factors for distributing dividends in order to
ensure the shareholders' return on investment and to respond to the economic cycle and
to improve the Company's financial structure:

(1) To meet the Company's needs for expanding the business scale in the future.
(2) To ensure that the Company's earnings per share level is stable.
(3) Take into account the Company's cash flow and operating surplus.

The Company is currently in the growing stage and will plan to expand its service
network over the next few years and will need funds to do so. When the Company
distributes its earnings, no less than 10% of the dividends will be distributed in cash to
shareholders.

(1) Legal reserve

Pursuant to the Company Act, the Company shall first set aside 10% of its
earnings as legal reserve when allocating its earnings. Where such legal reserve
amounts to the total paid-in capital, this provision shall not apply. When the
Company suffers no losses, it may, upon a resolution by the shareholders' meeting,
issue new shares or pay out cash from the legal reserve, but only to the extent that
such reserve exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital.

(2) Special reserve

In accordance with the regulations stipulated by the FSC, a portion of
current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified
as special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified
should equal the current-period total net reduction of other shareholders’ equity.
Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as
special earnings reserve (and does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for
cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity pertaining to prior periods.
Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other
shareholders’ equity shall qualify for additional distributions.

(3) Earnings distribution

On March 17, 2022, the Board of Directors resolved to distribute cash dividends
from the earnings of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021. On March
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16, 2021, the board of directors resolved to distribute cash dividends from the
earnings in 2020 and on July 8, 2021, the shareholders' meeting approved the stock
dividends and other earnings appropriations from the earnings in 2020. The dividends
distributed to shareholders were as follows:

2021 2020
Dividend Dividend
payout ratio payout
(NT$) Amount  ratio (NT$)  Amount

Dividends attributable to

ordinary shareholders:

Cash $ 10.20 1,388,016 5.20 655,200

Stock - - 0.80 100,800

Total $ 1388016 756,000

The above information is available on the Market Observation Post System.

On March 15, 2023, the Board of Directors resolved to appropriate 2022 surplus as
cash dividends and proposed to distribute stock dividends from the surplus, and the
amounts to be distributed to shareholders were as follows

2022
Dividend
payout ratio
(NT$) Amount
Dividends distributed to ordinary

shareholders:

Cash $ 10.70 1,456,056
Stock 0.50 68,040
Total $ 1,524,096

4. Treasury stocks

In order to motivate employees and promote their commitment to the Company, and
to protect the Company's credit and shareholders' equity, the Company’s Board of
Directors resolved October 12, 2022 to repurchase the Company’s treasury stock in
accordance with Article 28-2 of the Securities and Exchange Act. From October 17, 2022
to December 8, 2022, the Company repurchased 3,000 thousand shares of the Company's
common stock from the stock exchange market at a total purchase cost of $201,000
thousand. The Company's repurchases of treasury stock were as follows:

Unit: Thousands of shares

2022
Opening balance as of January 1 -
Repurchase of treasury stocks 3,000
Ending balance as of December 31 3,000
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In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act mentioned
above, the number of shares repurchased by the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
Company's total issued shares, and the total amount of shares repurchased shall not
exceed the amount of the Company's retained earnings plus premiums on issued shares
and realized capital surplus. The maximum number of shares held and the maximum
amount of shares acquired for the year 2022 were in compliance with the aforementioned
requirements. The treasury stock held by the Company shall not be pledged under the
Securities and Exchange Act and is not entitled to shareholders' rights until it is
transferred.

5. Other equity interests (net of tax)
Exchange
differences on the
translation of
financial statements
of foreign operations

Balance on January 1, 2022 $ (557,281)
Exchange differences on translating net assets

of foreign operations 308,919
Share of exchange differences of subsidiary

accounted for using the equity method 425,951
Balance on December 31, 2022 $ 177,589
Balance on January 1, 2021 $ (441,087)
Exchange differences on translating net assets

of foreign operations (111,135)
Share of exchange differences of subsidiary

accounted for using the equity method (5,059)
Balance on December 31, 2021 $ (557,281)

(XI) Earnings per share

The computation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are as
follows:

1. Basic earnings per share
Unit: Thousands of shares

2022 2021
Net profit for the period $ 2,538,625 2,310477
Number of shares outstanding 136,080 136,080
Effect of treasury stock (429) -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 135,651 136,080
outstanding
Basic earnings per share (unit: NT$) $ 18.71 16.98
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2. Diluted earnings per share

2022 2021
Net profit for the period $ 2,538,625 2,310477
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 135,651 136,080
outstanding (basic)
Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary share:
Remuneration for employees 2,410 1,671
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 138,061 137,751
outstanding (diluted)
Diluted earnings per share (unit: NT$) $ 18.39 16.77
(XI1) Revenue from customer contracts
1. Breakdown of revenue
2022
Asia Americas Europe Total
Main Product/Service:
Revenues from air freight $ 1,863,072 439,960 81,640 2,384,672
Revenues from ocean freight 9,065 - 14,694 23,759
Other 81,075 5,795 2,487 89,357
$ 1953212 445,755 98.821 2,497,788
2021
Asia Americas Europe Total
Main Product/Service:
Revenues from air freight $ 1,536,326 428,554 78,093 2,042,973
Revenues from ocean freight 6,018 - 3,632 9,650
Other 76,201 2,021 704 78,926

$ 1618545 430575 82429 2131.549

2. Contract balance

2022.12.31 2021.12.31 110.1.1
Notes receivable $ 7,173 17,789 2,377
Accounts receivable 306,293 401,086 213,347
Accounts receivable — related 90,345 271,555 61,059
parties
Less: Allowance for losses 6,213 4,996 3,061
Total $ 397,598 685,434 273,722
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(XI) Costs
The details of the Company’s operating costs for 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
2022 2021
Export costs $ 2,065,634 1,805,433
Import costs 22,680 8,607
Other costs 55,639 38,392
$ 2,143953 1,852,432

(VIX) Employees, directors and supervisors' remuneration

The Company's Articles of Incorporation stipulate that if the Company has a profit at
the end of the year (“profit" refers to the pre-tax income before deducting the amount of
employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors), it shall allocate no
less than 5% of the profit to the employee compensation and no more than 5% of the same to
the remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, that the Company shall first reserve
a sufficient amount to compensate its accumulated deficits (including the adjusted amount of
undistributed earnings). On June 8, 2022, the Company's shareholders’ meeting resolved to
amend the Company's Articles of Incorporation to change the remuneration for directors and
supervisors to remuneration for directors.

The employee compensation referred in the preceding paragraph may be made in the
form of stock or cash. Those employees may include the employees of parents or
subsidiaries of the company meeting certain specific requirements. Remuneration to
directors and supervisors referred in the preceding paragraph may only be made in cash.

The amount of employee compensation was estimated to be $147,501 thousand and
$145,689 thousand for 2022 and 2021, respectively; the amount of directors' and supervisors'
compensation was estimated to be $42,071 thousand and $41,625 thousand, respectively.
These estimated amounts were calculated using the Company's pre-tax net income before
deducting the amount of employees', directors' and supervisors' compensation multiplied by
the distributive factors of employees' compensation and directors’ and supervisors'
remuneration as specified in the Company's Articles of Incorporation, and were reported as
operating expenses. For more information, please visit Market Observation Post System.
There was no discrepancy between the amount of remuneration to employees, directors and
supervisors resolved by the Board of Directors and the amount estimated in the parent
company only financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(XV) Non-operating income and expenses
1. Interest income

The details of the Company's interest income are as follows:

2022 2021
Interest on bank deposits $ 1,410 40

2. Other income
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The details of the Company’s other income for 2022 and 2021are as follows:

2022 2021
Rental incomes $ 660 660
Dividend income 148 130
Government grants - 4,000
Information system service consulting 404,271 354,190
Other 4,130 7,298
Other income $ 409,209 366,278

3. Other gains and losses
The details of the Company’s other gains and losses in 2022 and 2021 are as

follows:
2022 2021
Disposal of property, plant and equipment $ - 590
Gain on foreign currency exchange 61,328 837
Other gains and losses, net $ 61,328 1.427

4. Financial costs
The details of the Company’s financial costs for 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Interest expense
Bank borrowings $ 5,048 5,831
Lease liabilities 125 130
Financial costs, net $ 5173 5,961
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(XVI) Financial instruments

1.

Credit risk
(1) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was $856,914 thousand and
$909,884 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

(2) Credit concentration risk

The revenues generated from the sales to a single multinational customer were
approximately 5% in 2022 and 8% in 2021.

Liquidity risk
The table below indicates the contractual maturity dates for financial liabilities,
including estimated interest but excluding the effect of netting agreements.

Contractu
Carrying al cash Less than 61012 More than
amount flows 6 months months 1-2years  2-5years 5 years

December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial assets
Short-term bank borrowings $ 430,000 435,966 435,966 - - - -

Notes payable 16,550 16,550 16,550 - - - -
Accounts payable (include 159,360 159,360 159,360 - - - -
related parties)
Other payables (include related 368,243 373,763 373,763 - - - -
parties)
Long-term payable - related 225,514 225514 - - - - 225,514
parties
Guarantee deposits received 117 117 - 117 - - -
Lease liabilities 11,326 11,406 4,743 4,742 1,780 141 -
Dividends payable 20,665 20,665 20,665 - - - -

$ 1231775 1243341 1,011,047 4,859 1,780 141 225514

December 31, 2021
Non-derivative financial assets
Short-term bank borrowings $ 676,592 682,117 682,117 - - - -

Notes payable 31,371 31,371 31,371 - - - -
Accounts payable (include 256,773 256,773 256,773 - - - -
related parties)
Other payables 257,524 257,524 257,524 - - - -
Long-term payable - related 217,568 217,568 - - - - 217,568
parties
Guarantee deposits received 93 93 - 1 - 92 -
Lease liabilities 12,139 12,234 4,622 4,621 2,991 - -
Dividends payable 5,695 5,695 5,695 - - - -

$ 1457755 1463375 1238102 4,622 2,991 92 217,568

The Company does not expect that the timing of the cash flows for the maturity
analysis will occur significantly earlier or that the actual amounts will be significantly
different.
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The Company’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

December 31, 2022
Financial assets
Monetary items
uUsD
EUR
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD
EUR
December 31, 2021
Financial assets

Monetary items

usbD
EUR

Financial liabilities
Monetary items

usD

(2) Sensitivity analysis

Foreign

currency Exchange rate NTD
$ 6,039 30.7300 185,564
$ 672 32.8140 22,067
$ 9,529 30.7300 292,827
$ 29 32.814 951
$ 10,815 27.6740 299,298
$ 187 31.3570 5,852
$ 11,838 27.6740 327,608

The Company’ s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the foreign
currency exchange fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
other receivable and accounts payable which are denominated in different foreign
currencies. A 3% depreciation of the TWD against the USD and EUR as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have decreased the net income before tax by
$2,584 for the year ended 2022 and decreased $674 thousand for the year ended 2021.
This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant and ignores any impact
of forecasted sales and purchases.

(3) Exchange gain or loss on monetary items

The amount of exchange gain or loss (both realized and unrealized) on the
translation of monetary items into the Company's functional currency for 2022 and
2021 was $61,328 thousand and $837 thousand, respectively.

4. Interest rate analysis

The Company's interest rate risk on financial assets and financial liabilities is
described in Liquidity Risk Management in this Note.
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The following sensitivity analysis is based on the non-derivative instruments with
exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For floating-rate liabilities,
the analysis is based on an assumption that the amount of a liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date is outstanding throughout the year. The sensitivity to a 1% change in
interest rate is used when reporting the interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and also represents the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had increased or decreased by 1%, the Company's net income before
tax would have decreased or increased by approximately $4,300 thousand and $6,766
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, with all other
variables remaining constant. This is mainly due to the Company's borrowings at floating
interest rates.

Information on fair value

The Company's management believes that the carrying amounts of the Company's
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in the parent company
only financial statements are similar to their fair values.

(1) Types and fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial assets and
liabilities (including fair value hierarchy information, except for financial instruments
not carried at fair value whose carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of
fair value and lease liabilities for which disclosure of fair value information is not
required) are presented as follows:

2022.12.31
Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value

through other
comprehensive income
(FVOCI)
Domestic and foreign

unlisted stocks $ 390 - - 390 390

Financial assets at amortized

cost
Cash and cash equivalents 219,733 - - - -
Notes receivable and

accounts receivable

(including related parties) 397,598 - - - -
Other receivables - related

parties 229,266 - - - -
Restricted time deposits 3,660 - - - -
Guarantee deposits paid 6,267 - - - -

Subtotal 856,524 - - - -
Total $ 856914 - - 390 390
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2022.12.31
Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
Bank borrowings $ 430,000 - - - -
Notes payable and accounts
payable (include related
parties) 175,910 - - - -
Other payables (include
related parties) 368,243 - - - -
Long-term payable - related
parties 225,514 - - - -
Guarantee deposits received 117 - - - -
Lease liabilities 11,326 - - - -
Dividends payable 20,665 - - - -
Total $ 1,231,775 - - - -
2021.12.31
Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
(FVOCI)
Domestic and foreign
unlisted stocks $ 390 - - 390 390
Financial assets at amortized
cost
Cash and cash equivalents 213,918 - - - -
Notes receivable and
accounts receivable
(including related parties) 685,434 - - - -
Other receivables - related
parties 1,407 - - - -
Restricted time deposits 3,660 - - - -
Guarantee deposits paid 5,075 - - - -
Subtotal 909,494 - - - -
Total $ 909,884 - - 390 390

Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
Bank borrowings $ 676,592
Notes payable and accounts
payable (include related

parties) 288,144
Other payables (include

related parties) 257,524
Long-term payable - related

parties 217,568
Guarantee deposits received 93
Lease liabilities 12,139
Dividends payable 5,695
Total $ 1,457,755
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(2) Fair value measurement techniques for financial instruments at fair value -
Non-derivative financial instruments

The fair value of equity instruments held by the Company that are not publicly
quoted is estimated using market comparable company method. The main
assumptions used to measure fair value are based on the net profit after tax or net
equity of the investee and the earnings or net equity multiplier derived from the
quoted market prices of comparable listed companies. The estimate is adjusted for
the discount effect of the lack of marketability on the equity securities. Because the
amount of equity investments for which the Consolidated Company uses the market
comparable company method to estimate the fair value is not material, the
Consolidated Company does not disclose the quantitative information.

(3) Fair value hierarchy

In measuring its assets and liabilities, the Company uses market observable
input values whenever possible. The fair value hierarchy is categorized based on the
input values used in the valuation techniques as follows:

A. Level 1: Publicly quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

B. Level 2: Input parameters of the asset or liability are observable either directly
(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices), other than those included
in publicly quoted prices on Level 1.

C. Level 3: The input parameters of the asset or liability are not based on observable
market data (unobservable parameters).

No transfers between fair value hierarchy levels occurred in the Company
(4) Schedule of changes in Level 3

Equity
instruments
without public
quotes
December 31, 2022 (i.e., balance as of
January 1, 2022) $ 390
December 31, 2021 (i.e., balance as of
January 1, 2021) $ 390

(XVI1I) Financial risk management
1. Summary
The Company is exposed to the risks below due to the use of financial instruments:
(1) Credit risk
(2) Liquidity risk
(3) Market risk
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This note indicates the Company's exposure to each of the above risks and its
objectives, policies, and procedures for risk measurement and management. Please refer
to the notes to the parent company only financial statements for more quantitative
information.

2. Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the risk management framework. The management of the Company is
responsible for the developing and managing the risk management policy of the
Company and reporting its operating results to the Board periodically.

The formulation of the Company's risk management policy aims to identify and
analyze the risks faced by the Company, set appropriate risk limits and control, and
monitor risks and observance of risk limits. The risk management policy and system are
regularly reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's operations.
The Company develops a disciplined and constructive control environment through
training, management guidelines, and operating procedures, enabling all employees to
understand their roles and responsibilities.

The Company's Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The
Company’s Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal
Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Directors.

3. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company's receivables from customers and investments in financial
instruments.

(1) Accounts receivable

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of the Company's customer base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an
influence on credit risk. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there was no
concentration of accounts receivable in a single customer.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's review includes
external ratings, when available, and in some cases, bank references. Credit limits are
established for each customer, which represent the maximum open amount without
requiring approval from the corporate governance unit. these limits are reviewed
quarterly. Customers that fail to meet the Company's benchmark creditworthiness
may transact with the Company only on a prepayment basis.

(2) Investment
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The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits is measured and monitored by the
Company's finance department. Considering that the Company deals only with banks
and other external parties with good credit standing, management is not expecting
non-compliance issues and significant credit risk.

(3) Guarantee

The Company’ s policy is to provide financial guarantees only to those
subsidiaries in which the Company holds more than 50% of the shares. For
information on the Company's endorsement/ guarantee as of December 31, 2022,
please refer to Note 13.

4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk arising when the Company cannot deliver cash or other
financial assets to settle financial liabilities and fails to fulfill relevant obligations. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as much as possible, that the
Company, under normal circumstances and pressure, has sufficient liquidity to cover its
liabilities as they fall due, without resulting in a risk of incurring unacceptable losses or
causing damage to the Company's reputation.

In general, the Company does have sufficient cash to meet its expected operating
expense requirements for 60 days, including the payment for financial obligations,
excluding any potential effects that cannot be reasonably anticipated under extreme
circumstances, such as: natural disasters.

5. Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk that affects the Company's revenue or the value of
financial instruments held due to changes in market prices, such as changes in exchange
rates, interest rates, or equity instrument prices. The purpose of market risk management
is to control the exposure to market risks within a range of tolerance and optimize return
on investment.

(1) Exchange rate risk

The Company's exposure to currency risk is on revenue and costs that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the
Company. The functional currency of the Company is the New Taiwan Dollars. The
currency used in these transactions is denominated in US Dollars.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, the Company ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

(2) Exchange rate risk

The Company's policy is to ensure that the interest rate for its borrowings is close
to the market rate. The Company periodically reviews the interest rate range with banks.
Given that market interest rates do not have significant changes, the change in interest
rates is not considered to be material to cash flow risk.

(XVIII) Capital management
The Board of Directors of the Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base in
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(XIX)

order to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business. Capital consists of the Company's share capital, capital surplus and retained
earnings. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's return on capital is targeted to be between 5% and 20%.

The Company has not changed its capital management strategy as of December 31,
2022.

The investing and financing activities on non-cash transactions

The Company's investing and financing activities on non-cash transactions for the years
ended 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Acquisition of right-of-use asses by lease, please refer to Note 6(5).
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Cash Non-cash  2022.12.3

11111 flows changes 1
Short-term borrowings $ 676,592 (246,592) - 430,000
Lease liabilities 12,139 (11,556) 10,743 11,326
Total amount of the liabilities $ 688,731 (258,148) 10,743 441,326

arising from financing activities

Cash Non-cash  2021.12.3

110.1.1 flows changes 1
Short-term borrowings $ 700,592 (24,000) - 676,592
Lease liabilities 11,241 (12,593) 13,491 12,139
Total amount of the liabilities $ 711,833 (36,593) 13,491 688,731

arising from financing activities
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VII. Related Party Transactions
() Names and relationship with related parties

The following are the related parties that have had transactions with the Company and
the Company’s subsidiaries during the periods covered in the financial statements:
Relationship with the

Name of related parties Company
Dimerco Interational Logistic Corp. (DIL) Subsidiary of the Company
Dimerco Express Holding Co., Ltd. (Holding) ”
Diversified Freight System Corp. (DFSTW) "
Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte Ltd. (DIMSG) "
Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. (FSC) "
Foerign Settlement Co., Ltd. (FSCHK) "
Diversified International Logistics Co., Ltd.(DILTW) ”
Dimerco Air Forwarders (HKG) Ltd. (DIMHK) ”
Dimerco Express (U.K.) Ltd. (DIMGB) "
Dimerco Express (U.S.A.) Corp. (DIMUS) "
Global Marketing System Co., Ltd. (GMS) ”
Dimerco Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (DILSHA) "
Diversified International Transportation (Shanghai) Co., ”
Ltd. (DIMCN)
Dimerco International Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ”
(DILSZX)
Dimerco Zhongjing Int'l Express Co., Ltd. (ZJDCN) "
Dimerco Vietfracht (JV) Co., Ltd. (DIMVN) "
Dimerco Express (Thailand) Corp. Ltd. (DIMTH) "
Dimerco Express Phils. Inc. (DIMPH) "
imerco Express (Australia) Pty Ltd (DIMAU) "
Dimerco Express (Korea) Corp. (DIMKR) "
Dimerco Express (Canada) Corp. (DIMCA) ”
Diversified International Service Logistics System "
Corporation (DSLUS)
Dimerco Express (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (DIMMY) "
Dimerco Express Netherlands B.V. (DIMNL) "
Diversified Freight System Ltd. (DFSHK) "
Diversified Transportation (HK & China) Co., Ltd. "
(DTLHK)
Diversified International Transportation (Shanghai) Co., ”

Ltd. (DFSCN)
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Relationship with the

Name of related parties Company
Diversified Transportation (China) Co., Ltd. (DTLCN)  Subsidiary of the Company
Dimerco Customs Brokerage Co. Ltd (DCBUS) "
Dimerco Express (India) Pte Ltd. (DIMIN) "
Peerless Express Forwarders Corp. "
Diversified International Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ”
Diversified Freight System (Singapore) Pte. Ltd "
(DFSSG)
Diversified International Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "
(DILYTN)
Diversified International Logistics Ptd Ltd (DILSIN) ”
B.C. Logistic, LLC "
Dimerco Intemational Logistice Company (DILHK) "
Diversified Merchandise Company Limiad (DMCHK) "
Global SCM Company Limited (GSCHK) ”
Diversified Freight System Philippines Corporation "
(DFSPH)
ITG Air & Sea GmbH (ITG) Associates

(1) Significant related-party transactions
1. Operating revenue

The amounts of significant sales transactions and outstanding balances between the
Company and related parties were as follows:

2022 2021

Subsidiary
DIMUS $ 376,210 234,737
DIMCN 155,344 83,951
DFSCN 80,583 72,090
Other subsidiaries 372,326 292,111
Associates 1,285 3,480
$ 085,748 686,369

The aforesaid revenues were derived from the Company's export freight forwarding
and LCL consolidation businesses, which the Company entrusted to its affiliate in the
destination to collect and transfer the business from Company's customers to the
Company.

The terms and conditions under which the Company engages its affiliates to collect
and transfer the revenue from the Company's contracts are the same as those under which
the Company engages other agents.
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2. Collection and payment on behalf of affiliates, freight expenses (recognized as a
deduction from operating income)

2022 2021

Subsidiary
DIMCN $ 188,897 269,428
FSCHK 184,559 106,685
DIMUS 172,121 131,982
DIMKR 171,843 93,668
ZIDCN 105,621 93,004
DIMHK 81,830 66,148
Other subsidiaries 234,437 177,619
Associates 13,899 15,357
$ 1,153,207 953,891

The aforesaid revenue is generated from the import freight forwarding business. The
Company was commissioned by an affiliate in the exporting country to collect the
contract revenue from its customers and transfer it to that affiliate.

The terms and conditions under which the Company is entrusted by its related
parties to collect and transfer revenue from their contracts are the same as those under
other freight contracts.

3. Payments due from related parties
The amounts of accounts receivable between the Company and related parties were

as follows:
Account in the book  Type of related party 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Accounts receivable  Subsidiary
DIMUS $ 22,880 41,906
DIMCN 11,886 41,348
DFSCN 12,766 57,425
DIMMY 1,565 8,304
ZJDCN 8,211 86,918
DIMGB 961 6,964
DIMSG 5,272 6,824
DIMPH 8,559 5,856
DIMHK 8,261 5,395
DIMTH 4,653 4,045
Other subsidiaries 5,308 6,058
Associates 23 512
$ 90,345 271,555
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4. Accounts payable to related parties
The amounts of accounts payables between the Company and related parties were as

follows:
Account in the book  Type of related party 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Accounts payable Subsidiary
DIMCN $ 14,658 46,287
FSCHK 52,855 44,434
DIMUS 14,588 24,307
DIMKR 8,147 17,897
ZJDCN 9,418 15,386
DIMMY 4,193 10,582
DIMHK 8,971 8,885
DIMSG 6,513 8,004
Other subsidiaries 6,777 7,664
Associates 324 853
$ 126,444 184,299

5. Long-term financing arrangement (recorded as long-term accounts payable - related

parties)
The Company's financing arrangements to related parties are as follows:
2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Subsidiary

FSC $ 119,550 119,550
Holding 26,066 26,066
Other subsidiaries - -

$ 145,616 145,616

6. Endoresement/guarantee

The Company provided guarantees to its subsidiaries for the performance of freight
forwarding contracts as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, of which $5,019 and $27,680,
respectively, were provided by the banks.

7. Advance receipts - related parties

The following is a summary of the amounts received from related parties for
advance management service fees:
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8.

Account in the book  Type of related party 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Advance receipts - Subsidiary
related parties

FSCHK $ 104,896 104,896

Long-term advance  Subsidiary
receipts - related

parties
FSC 717,883 718,184
FSCHK 2,684,525 1,298,622
$ 3,507.304 2,121,702

Income from management fees and income from using the information system

The Company entered into the consulting contracts for management and
information system services with its affiliates to provide the affiliates with marketing and
information system development services. The Company also paid the related expenses
on behalf of the affiliates. The Company received management fee income of $126,124
and $101,968 from FSCHK for the aforesaid transactions in 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which were recognized as a deduction of management fee in the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2022. For 2022 and 2021, the consulting income from information system
services received from subsidiaries amounted to $404,271 thousand and $354,190
thousand, respectively, and was recorded as other income, as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Subsidiary

DIMUS $ 90,115 65,312
DIMCN 83,464 54,144
ZJDCN 76,701 113,294
DFSCN 75,932 66,273
Other subsidiaries 78,059 55,167

$ 404,271 354,190

The uncollected revenue from information system service consulting amounted to
$229,266 thousand and $153,235 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, and was recorded as other receivables - related parties and accounts
receivable - related parties, respectively.

Other

(1) The Company received $49,168 thousand and $44,278 thousand (both in US$1,600
thousand) on behalf of its subsidiary, FSC, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, which were recognized as long-term accounts payable - related parties.
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(2) DIMHK, the subsidiary of the Company, made payments of $30,730 thousand and
$27,674 thousand (both in US$1,000 thousand) on behalf of the Company as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which were recognized as long-term
accounts payable - related parties.

(3) For 2022 and 2021, amounts of $948 thousand and $1,407 thousand, respectively,
were recorded as other payables - related parties and other receivables - related
parties between the Company and its subsidiary, DILTW for collection and payment
on behalf of each other.

(1) Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation includes:

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 49,916 43,037
Post-employment benefits 787 812
$ 50,703 43,849
VIII. Pledged Assets
The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:
Pledged assets Object 2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Time deposits Customs duties guarantee
(recognized in other
non-current assets) $ 3,000 3,000
Time deposits Collaterals to banks for the
(recognized in other guarantee performance of
non-current assets) freight forwarding
business of the
Company's subsidiaries. 660 660
Property, plant and
equipment:
Land Collaterals to banks for
long-term and short-term
bank borrowings, and
performance guarantees
for the Company and its
subsidiaries engaged in
freight forwarding
business. 41,792 41,792
Buildings " 15,416 15,961
$ 60.868 61,413
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IX. Material Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contractual Commitments

(1) The Company provided certificates of deposit and premises collaterals to banks as
performance guarantee for freight forwarding contracts as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.
The amount of guarantee provided by banks for performance guarantee was $193,000
thousand and $120,000 thousand, respectively, and the amount used was $81,725 thousand
and $77,900 thousand, respectively.

(1) The Company issued $1,700 thousand and $2,800 thousand of guarantee notes for freight
forwarding business as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively; in addition, the
Company paid $3,000 thousand of customs duty for freight forwarding business as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021 separately.

X. Major Disaster Loss: None

XI. Material Events After the Balance Sheet Date: None

XIl. Others
A summary of current-period employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function,
is as follows:
By Function| 2022 2021
Attributable |Attributabl Attributable |Attributable
Nature to operating eto Total to operating |to operating Total
costs operating costs expenses
expenses
Employee benefits
lexpenses
Salaries and wages 16,938 365,205 382,143 18,128 326,587 344,715
Labor insurance and - 16,269 16,269 271 12,878 13,149
national health
insurance
Pension expenses - 6,388 6,388 - 6,100 6,100
Remuneration to - 42,071 42,071 - 41,625 41,625
directors
Other employee - 8,499 8,499 - 7,897 7,897
benefits
Depreciation expense - 15,430 15,430 - 17,899 17,899
IAmortization expense - 122 122 - 236 236

Additional information on the number of employees and employee benefit expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are summarized below:

Number of employees

Number of directors who were not employees
The average employee benefit

The average salaries and wages
Changes of the average salaries and wages
Remuneration to supervisor
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The Company’s salary and remuneration policies (including directors, supervisors,

managers, and employees) are as follows:

The Company's Articles of Incorporation stipulate that if the Company has a profit at
the end of the year (“profit" refers to the pre-tax income before deducting the amount of
employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors), it shall allocate no
less than 5% of the profit to the employee compensation and no more than 5% of the same to
the remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, that the Company shall first reserve
a sufficient amount to compensate its accumulated deficits (including the adjusted amount of
undistributed earnings). The employee compensation may be made in the form of stock or
cash. Those employees may include the employees of parents or subsidiaries of the company
meeting certain specific requirements. Remuneration to directors and supervisors may only
be made in cash. The employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors

shall be resolved by the Board of Directors and reported to the shareholders' meeting.

(XI11) Additional Disclosures

(1) Information on significant transactions

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” for the

Company for the year ended December 31, 2022:
1. Loans to other parties:

Numb| The lender | The i Ending | Actual [InterestjPurp: ofReasons of  olateral | THENMIt] The
er of funds [borrower|ing title| d amount | balance | amounts | rate sof | business the for maximum
of funds partie| for the drawn | range | funds [tr { of| for bad i limit of
sor | current ffinancin  ns short-term|  debts funds funds
not year g for financing financing | financing
the (Note 2) | (Note 2)
borrow
er
(Note 1) Name | Value
1 |HOLDING [The Payment| Yes 28,864 26,066 26,066 - 2 - Working - 261,157| 1,044,628
ICompany s due apital
ffrom
related
lparties
2 [FsC [The Payment| Yes [ 119,550 119,550| 119,550 - 2 - Working - - 136,954 547,818
ICompany fs due capital
rom
related
parties
Note 1:

(1)Those with business contact, please fill in 1.
(2)Those necessary for short term financing, please fill in 2.

Note 2: In accordance with the “Procedures for Lending Funds to Others” stipulated by the Company, the total amount of funds lent to others by the Company and its subsidiaries

shall not exceed 40% of the Company's net worth, and the amount of funds lent to a single enterprise shall not exceed 10% of the Company’s net worth

2. Endorsements/guarantees for other parties:

INumber| The The party receiving the [Endorsement/| Actual The Total The ceiling | Guarantee | Guarantee The
company endorsement and/or guarantee and amounts fendorsement amount of and and
providing guarantee limit for a and guarantee | drawn and/or  |and guar ment| guarantee
the Company i ip| single entity | guarantee | balance by guarantees |as a percentage| guarantee | of parent by for China
(Note 1) (Note 2) balance of | the end of secured with |of equity in the| (Note 2) |company to| subsidiary
and/ or current the period property most recent subsidiary | to parent
guarantee period financial company
statement
0 [The DIMVN 2 272,160 6,678 4,456 4,456 4,456 0.07° 544,320 Y N N
ICompany
0 [The DIMIN & 2 272,160 322 313 31 313 0.01 544,320 Y N N
[Company DIMTH
0 [The IDIMKR 2 272,160 24,129 - - - - 544,320 Y N N
ICompany
0 [The DILTW 2 272,160 282 250 25 250 - 544,320 Y N N
ICompany
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Note 1: The relationship between the entity for which the endorsement/guarantee is made and the Company:
. The Company has business relationship.
. Subsidiaries in which the Company directly holds more than 50 percent of its voting shares.
. An investee in which the Company and subsidiary holds more than 50 percent of its voting shares.
. Subsidiaries in which the Company directly holds more than 90 percent of its voting shares.
. Where company that fulfill its contractual obligations by providing mutual endorsements/guarantees for another company in the same industry or for joint builders
for purposes of undertaking a construction project.
. Where all capital contributing shareholders make endorsements/ guarantees for their jointly invested company in proportion to their shareholding percentages.
. Where companies in the same industry provide among themselves joint and several security for a performance guarantee of a sales contract for pre-construction
homes pursuant to the Consumer Protection Act for each other
Note 2: In with the for and stipulated by the Company, the total amount of the endorsement and guarantee provided by the
Company shall not exceed 40% of the Company’s paid-in capital, and the endorsement and guarantee provided to a single enterprise shall not exceed 20% of the
Company’s paid-in capital,

3. Securities held as of December 31, 2021 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures):

aRwNE

~o

Companies Types and names of Relationship with End of the period
held marketable securities the securities Account in the book [ Number of | Carrying amount | Shareholding | Fair value (Note 1)| Remarks
issuer shares ratio (%)

[The Company [Stock: GLOBAL SKY
[EXPRESS (TAIWAN) LTD - [Financial assets at fair 10,000 100 100 % 100
alue through other
fcomprehensive income -
Non-current

[The Company [EVERGREEN AIR CARGO - [Financial assets at fair 29,000 290 0.02% 290
ISERVICES CORPORATION alue through other

lcomprehensive income -
INon-current

DIMSG [Burwill Holdings Ltd. [Financial assets at fair 22,000 19 - 19
alue through other

fcomprehensive income -

INon-current

DIMSG Stamford Land - [Financial assets at fair 5,000 40 - 40
alue through other

fcomprehensive income -

Non-current

Note 1: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - non-current are measured at their net worth or carrying amount at the end of
the reporting period because they were not traded in the open market.

4. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the
lower of $300 million or 20% of the Company's paid-in capital: None

5. Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of $300 million or
20% of the Company's paid-in capital: None

6. Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of $300 million or
20% of the Company's paid-in capital: None

7. The purchase or sale of goods from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of
$100 million or 20% of the Company's paid-in capital:

Trading terms .
Transactions different from general| NU‘ES/aC(CO:":EISCQ‘Vab|e
Name of trade and reasons pay
the Percentage| . Pfrtcelntage /uf
ompany| Counterparty | .. | Purchase/ of total " Unit | The credit otal notes)
elationship Amount credit N . Balance accounts  |Remarks|
name Sale purchases/ period price period receivable
sales (payable)
The DIMUS b-subsidiary|(Sales) (376,210)] 15.06%)| (Note )| - 22,880 6%
ICompany|
DIMUS[The Company b-subsidiary[Purch: 376,210  4.81%| (Note 1) | - (22,880) (@)
[The IDIMCN ISub-subsidiary(Sales) (155,344)] 6.22%| (Note 1) - 11,886 3
ICompany|
IDIMCN [The Company b-subsidiary[Purch 155,344 3.27%]| (Note 1) - (11,886), (@)
IDIMCN [The Company  [Sub-subsidiary|(Sales) (188,897)[ (Note 2) | (Note 1) - 14,658 3
The DIMCN b-subsidiary|Purcha 188,897| (Note2) | (Note1)| - (14,658) ©)%
ICompany|
IDIMKR [The Company  [Sub-subsidiary|(Sales) (171,843)| (Note 2) | (Note 1) - 8,147| 79
The DIMKR b-subsidiary[Purch: 171,843 (Note2) | (Note1)| - (8,147) 5)%
ICompany|
IDIMUS [The Company  [Sub-subsidiary|(Sales) (172,121)| (Note 2) | (Note 1) - 14,588 29
The DIMUS b-subsidiarylPurch 172,121 (Note 2) | (Note 1) - (14,588) (®)
ICompany|
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Trading terms .
Transactions different from general NO‘ES/aC(CO:"';EISCQ'Vab|e
Name of trade and reasons pay:
the Percentage| . Pfrtcelmage /uf
ompany| Counterparty . .| Purchase/ of total g Unit | The credit otal notes)
name Relationship Sale Amount purchases/ cremt price period Balance accounts Remarks|
period receivable
sales ayable
IFSCHK  [The Company  [Subsidiary of |(Sales) (184,559)[ (Note 2) | (Note 1) - 52,855 22%
he Company
[The FSCHK y of h 184559 (Note2) | (Note1)| - (52,855) (30)
ICompany| he Company
[ZJDCN [The Company b- idiary|(Sales) (105,621)| (Note 2) | (Note 1) - 9,418 19
The [ZJIDCN b-subsidiarylPurch: 105621 (Note2) | (Note1)| - (9,418), (5)
ICompany|
FSCHK [ZJIDCN [Subsidiary and|(Sales) (153,802)  10.43%)| (Note 1) - 52,443 21
lsub-subsidiary
[ZIDCN_ [FSCHK [Subsidiary and|Purchase 153802]  240%| (Note 1)| - (52,443) (13)%
isub-subsidiary
FSCHK |DFSCN idiary (189,489)| 12.85%)| (Note 1) | - 6,061] 2%
isub-subsidiary
IDFSCN [FSCHK ISubsidiary and|Purchase 189,489 4.17 %| (Note 1) - (6,061)| (4)Y
sub-subsidiary
FSCHK [DIMCN y and|(Sales) (209,008) 14.18%| (Note1)| - 9,375 I
ub-subsidiary
DIMCN [FSCHK i dfpurch 209,008]  4.40%]| (Note )| - (9,375) @)%
ub-subsidiary
IFSCHK |DIMUS idiary (184,612)] 12.52%| (Note 1) - 6,610 3
isub-subsidiary
IDIMUS [FSCHK ISubsidiary and|Purchase 184,612} 2.36%| (Note 1) - (6,610)| (1)¥
ub-subsidiary
FSCHK [DIMSG [Subsidiary and(Sales) (101,475)]  6.88%)| (Note 1) | - 39,334 16%
sub-subsidiary
DIMSG [FSCHK [Subsidiary and|Purchase 101,475 7.37%| (Note 1) - (39,334), 2%
isub-subsidiary

Note 1: The purchase (sales) prices are calculated based on the market price, there is no material difference in the terms of receipt (payment) between
the general vendors and customers.
Note 2: Freight collected and paid on behalf of affiliates is recognized as a deduction from operating income, not the cost of revenue, and therefore is
not included in the calculation of the percentage of total purchases (sales).

8. Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or
20% of the Company’s paid-in capital:

The company|Counterpar| Relationship Ending balance Overdue receivables from related |[Amounts received in| Provision for
booked in the| ty name of receivables parties subsequent period |loss allowance
receivables from related | Turnover Amount Process
parties rate
[The Company [ZJDCN ISubsidiary of the 100,907 -9 - - -
ICompany (Note 1)
FSC [The ISubsidiary of the 168,718 - - - -
ICompany  |Company (Note 2)
FSC DIL Subsidiary 216,717 -% - - -
(Note 3)

Note 1: Accounts receivable of $8,211 thousand and other receivables of $92,696 thousand.
Note 2: The amount was $119,550 thousand for financing arrangement and $49,168 thousand for accounts receivable on behalf of others.
Note 3: it is the account receivable on behalf of others.

9. Trading in derivative instruments: None
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

(1) Information on investees:

The following is the information on investees for the year ended December 31, 2022
(excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

Investor Investee Location  [Main business|Original investment amount| Holdin, Profitor loss [ Share of
End of the | The end of | Number of Carrying |of the investee | profits/losses |Remark
period last year shares lamount (Note| for the period | of investee
(Note 11) (Note 11)
[The DFSTW [Taiwan [Ocean freight 15,444 15,444| 1,200,000 99% 780,479 252,958 252,958
ICompan [forwarding
[The HOLDING Bermuda [Holding 164,845 164,845 3,089,000 100% 2,611,571 791,373 791,373
ICompany ompany
[The DIMSG Engapure [Ocean and air 132,266 108,362| 5,400,000 100% 595,797 53,630 53,630 | Note 4
ICompany [freight
[forwarding,
(distribution
fand
[The DIL BVI Suzhou 472,313 472,313 (3r-) 100% 4,169,210 853,946 853,946
(Compan;
[The FSC BVI Suzhou 315 315 10,000 20% 273,908 (3,569) (714)
ICompany
[The FSCHK Hong Kong 236 236 15% 743,169 1,493,168 223,975
ICompany
[The ITG GmbH (Germany cean and air 183,547 183,547 6,275 25% 241,671 199,467 49,866
ICompany reight
forwarding
[The DILTW [Taiwan Distribution 8,000 8,000 800,000 80% 8,166 1,329 1,064
ICompany fand
[The IDFSSG [Singapore _|Distribution 13,482 - 600,000 100% 41,085 12,143 - Note 5
ICompany fand
arehousing
[The IDILHK Hong Kong  [Distribution - - - 100% 51,221 5,550 5,550 Note 3
ICompany fand
[The DILSG [Singapore _|Distribution 4,215 - - 100% 2,081 (2,262) - Note 6
ICompany fand
jarehousing
[The DIMMY Malaysia  [Ocean and air 65,516 - 250,000 100% 200,614 57,541 - Note 7
Company ffreight
[forwarding
[The DTLHK Hong Kong  [Transportation 41,076 - 89,000 100% 51,239 1,550 - Note 2
ICompany
[Taiwan Ben [FSCHK Hong Kong ~ [Central 235 235 7,500 15% 676,816 1,493,168 223,975
lLine faccount
Integrated Isettlement
Logistics and
[Agencies
lLtd.
[Taiwan Ben [DILTW [Taiwan Distribution 2,000 2,000 200,000 20% 2,042 1,329 265
lLine fand
Integrated |warehousing
|Logistics and
{Agencies
lLtd.
DIL DIMUS JUSA. [Ocean and air 238,686 238,686 4,961,000 100% 975,186 206,947 206,947
ffreight
DIL DIMGB [United 12,589 12,589 300,000 3% (13,531) (8,908) (3,341)
Kingdom
DIL lems Hong Kong - - - 100% 3,299,467 48,470 48,470
DIL DIMSG Engapme [Ocean and air - 23,904 - % - 62,281 8,651 | Note 4
ffreight
[forwarding,
(distribution
fand
pIL IDIMHK Hong Kong  [Ocean and air - 427,348 - - % - 593,219 593,219 Note 8
[freight
[forwarding,
(distribution
fand
|warehousing
IDMCHK DIMHK Hong Kong [Ocean and air 427,348 - 300,000 99% 3,392,775, 593,219 - Note 8
ffreight
fforwarding,
(distribution
fand
IDMCHK IDFSHK Hong Kong  [Ocean freight 25,393 - 71,000 99% 1,989,880 572,084 - Note 9
orwarding
[GMS DIMPH [Philij s |Ocean and air 38,399 38,399 180,000 60% 3,321,505 50,030 30,023
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

Investor Investee Location [Main business|Original investment amount] Holding, end of period Profitor loss | Share of
End ofthe | Theend of | Number of el Carrying |of the investee | profits/losses [Remark
period last year shares of lamount (Note| for the period | of investee
11) (Note 11) (Note 11)
ffreight
forwarding
IGMS DILHK Hong Kong  [Distribution - - - - % - 5,550 5,550 Note 3
lems DFSSG [Singapore B 13,482 - T % B 12,143 12,143[ Note 5
DIMUS IDCBUS JUSA. 13,532 13,532 1,000 100% 42,564 3,743 3,743
DIMUS B.C. Logistic, LLC US.A. 54,103 - - 85% 20,320 2,403 2,043
DIMHK FSC BVI Suzhou 954 954 30,000 60% 897 (3,569) (2,141)
IDIMHK DIMVN Vietnam 2,090 2,090 - 5% 39,423 19,010 14,257
DIMHK FSCHK Hong Kong 550 550 17,500 35% 1,569,856 1,493,168 522,609
IDMCHK [GSCHK Hong Kong - - - 100% - - - Note 10
DIMSG FSC [BVI Suzhou 318 318 10,000 20% 299 (3,569) (714)
DIMSG DIMIN India 5,303 5,303 960,000 60% 14,493 7,840 4,704
HOLDING [DIMTH [Thailand 7,642 7,642 735,000 49% 71,917 43,850 21,482
HOLDING [DIMPH [Philippines 4,026 4,026 120,000 40% 2,214,340 50,030 20,007
HOLDING [DIMAU IAustralia 16,460 16,460 60,000 100% (30,170) 6,412 6,412
HOLDING [DIMKR Korea 19,386 19,386 120,000 100% 118,770 39,114 39,114
HOLDING [DIMCA [Canada 15,646 15,646 - 100% 201,386 70,010 70,010
HOLDING [DIMNL Netherlands 11,644 11,644 1,000 100% 33,285 10,507 10,507
HOLDING [DSLUS US.A. 15,840 15,840 50,000 100% 31,443 (2,530) (2,530)
HOLDING [DTLHK Hong Kon - 41,076 - - % - 1,550 1,550 Note 2
HOLDING [DIMMY Malaysia - 65,516 - - % - 57,541 57,541| Note 7
HOLDING [DFSHK Hong Kong - 25,393 - - % - 572,084 572,027 | Note 9
IDIMPH PPeerless Express Forwarders [Philippines 954 954 1,600,000 40% - 225 90
DIMPH IDFSPH [Philippines 5,231 - 96,700 91% - 9,649 8,745
IDIMPH IDMCHK Hong Kong - - - 100% - - - Note 10
IDFSSG IDFSPH Philippines  [Freight 541 - 10,000 9% - 9,649 904
[forwarding
IDILHK DILSG [Singapore _ |Distribution B 4,215 - T % - (2.262) (2,262)| Note 6
fand
arehousing
IDFSHK FSCHK Hong Kong  [Central 566 566 17,500 35% 1,569,856 1,493,168 522,609
faccount
settlement
[FSCHK DIMGB United [Ocean and air 20,126 20,126 500,000 63% (6,692) (8,908) (5,568)
Kingdom [freight
[forwarding
Note 1: It is a limited liability company.
Note 2: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 100% of the shares formerly owned by Holding were transferred to the Company.
Note 3: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 100% of the shares formerly owned by GMS were transferred to the Company.
Note 4: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 14% of the shares formerly owned by DIL were transferred to the Company.
Note 5: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 100% of the shares formerly owned by GMS were transferred to the Company.
Note 6: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 100% of the shares formerly owned by DILHK were transferred to the Company.
Note 7: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 100% of the shares formerly owned by Holding were transferred to the Company.
Note 8: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 100% of the shares formerly owned by DIL were transferred to DMCHK.
Note 9: In December 2022, the organization was restructured and the 99% of the shares formerly owned by Holding were transferred to DMCHK.

Note 10: A new 100% subsidiary established in December 2022.
Note 11: The carrying amount and the investment gain or loss recognized in the current period were based on the financial statements audited by CPAs for the same period.
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

(1) Information on investment in mainland China:

1. The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other

information:
Unit: Thousand dollars
INames of investees Main business Paid-in Type of Amount of Profit or
in mainland China| capital | i loss of the of gainsand | carrying income
method amount remitted or amount  [investee for | ownership losses  |value at the| remitted
(Note 1) | remitted | recovered during | remitted | the period of the recognized | end of the | back as of
from Taiwan| the period from Taiwan| Company’s| during the |period (Note| the end of
at the Outward the end of direct or |period (Note| 2) the period
inning of the period indirect 2)
the period investments
IDimerco Zhongjing|Provide 54,928 (D] 27,718 - - 27,718 (114,882) 75% (86,161)| 156,963 -
Int'l Express Co., [international
lLtd. ftransportation
fservices for
import and export
fcargo by ocean
fand air
Dimerco Logistics [Distribution and 5970 (1) 6,146 - B 6,146 643 99% 643 (58,557) B
lLtd.
Diversified Provide 163,377 (I1) - - - - 97,237 100% 97,237 429,905 -
[Transportation  [transportation
\(Shanghai) Co., ~ fservices for
ILtd. limport and export
argo by ocean
fand air
IDimerco Distribution and 10,958 m - - - - (2,189)(  100% (2,189) (19,452)| -
ILogistics
\(Shenzhen) Co.,
lLtd.
Diversified Provide 59,777| (n - - - - 53,93 100% 53,930 338,487, .
[Transportation  [transportation
(Shanghai) Co., services for
ILtd. limport and export
argo by ocean
Diversified [Transportation 29,802 (1) - - - - 246/  100% -
[Transportation
China) Co., Ltd.
Dalian Yuhang [Ocean and air 38,666 [(D) - - - - 26,395 25% -
lInternational reight forwarding
[Transport Agency
(Co., Ltd.
Diversifjed _Provide» 13,684/ (1) - - - - 3,346  100% 3,346 3,774 -
lLogistics transportation
(Shanghai) Co., ervices for
ILtd. limport and export
argo by ocean
fand air
Diversified Provide 1293 () - - - - (2,821) 100% (2,821) 1,484 -
ILogistics ftransportation
(Shenzhen) Co.,  [services for
ILtd. limport and export
argo by ocean
fand air

Note 1: Investment methods are classified into the following three categories; fill in the number of the category each case belongs to:
Investing directly in Mainland China.
Investing the companies in Mainland China through third parties (through their parties in Bermuda and BV1).

@
[©)]

Others.

Note 2: The carrying amount and the investment gain or loss recognized in the current period were based on the financial statements audited by CPAS for the same period.
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2. Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

Unit: Thousand dollars

Accumulated amount of
investment from Taiwan to
mainland China at the end

Amount of investment
approved by the Investment
Commission, MOEA (Note

Investment quota for
mainland China as
stipulated by the

of the period 2) Investment Commission,
MOEA (Note 1)
33,864 73,752 3,600,662
(Usb 1,102 ) (USD 2400 )

Note 1: 60% of net equity.
Note 2: The exchange rate as of December 31, 2022 was US$1.00 to NT$30.730.

3. Significant transactions:

The significant inter-company transactions with subsidiary in Mainland China for
the year ended December 31, 2022, are disclosed in “Information on significant

transactions”.
(IV) Information on major shareholders:
Shares Number of Shareholding
Name of principal shareholder shares held ratio
MEC ELECTRONICS CORPORATION 7,279,243 5.34%

XIV.Information on Segments

Please refer to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December
31, 2022.
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Dimerco Express Corporation

Statement of cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2022

Unit: NT$ thousand

Unit of foreign currency: Thousand dollars

Item Summary Amount
Cash Petty cash $ 1,507
Bank deposits Demand deposit 121,572
Checking deposit 8,733
Foreign currency deposit
usD871, @30.7300 26,715
EUR669, @32.8135 21,955
Other 2,375

Name of customer

Non-related parties:
Customer A
Customer B

Customer C
Customer D
Customer E
Customer F
Customer G

Other (Less than 5% of the ending balance) "

Time deposit (interest rate between 4.00%~4.50%,
maturity date between 2023.1.28~2023.2.25)

36,876

Subtotal 218,226
$ 219,733
Statement of notes receivables
Summary Amount Remarks

Operation $ 732

" 658

" 632

" 548

" 458

" 456

" 390

3,299

$ 7,173
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of accounts receivable

December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand
Name of customer Summary Amount Remarks
Related parties:

ZJDCN Operation $ 8,211
DFSCN " 12,766
DIMCN " 11,886
DIMUS " 22,880
DIMPH " 8,559
DIMHK " 8,261
DIMSG " 5,272
DIMTH " 4,653

Other (Less than 5% of the ending balance) "

7,857

90,345

Non-related parties:

Customer A Operation 30,341
Customer B " 23,430
Customer C " 21,443
Customer D " 19,304
Customer E " 19,016
Other (Less than 5% of the ending balance) " 192,759

Less: Allowance for losses

6,213

300,080

$ 390.425
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Dimerco Express Corporation Notes to parent company only Financial Statements

Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of other current assets

December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks
Prepaid expenses $ 6,721
Temporary payments 507
Other 1,125
Total $ 8.353
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Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of short-term borrowings

December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand
Interest Mortgage
Type of Ending Contract  rate range Financing or
borrowing Explanation balance duration (%) facilities guarantee  Remarks
Credit Standard $ 430,000 Due within  1.15~1.5 USD 20,500 None
borrowings  Chartered Bank one year

Statement of Notes Payable

Name of customer Summary Amount Remarks
Non-related parties:

Customer A Operation $ 5,131
Customer B " 1,359
Customer C " 1,220
Customer D " 1,035
Other (Less than 5% of the ending balance) " 7,805

$ 16,550
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Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of Accounts Payable

December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand
Name of customer Summary Amount Remarks
Related parties:
FSCHK Operation $ 52,855
DIMCN ” 14,658
DIMUS " 14,588
ZJDCN ” 9,418
DIMHK ” 8,971
DIMKR " 8,147
DIMSG ” 6,513
Other (Less than 5% of the ending balance) " 11,294
Subtotal 126.444
Non-related parties:
Customer A Operation 7,586
Customer B " 5,557
Customer C " 2,062
Other (Less than 5% of the ending balance) Operation 25,297
Subtotal 32,916
Total $ 159,360
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Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of other payables
December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand

Name of customer Summary Amount Remarks
Related parties:

DILTW $ 948
Non-related parties:

Remuneration payable for directors and bonuses 239,071
Salaries payable 89,825
Other 38,399
367,295

Total $ 368,243

Statement of other current liabilities

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Temporary receipts $ 5,619
Other 1,473
$ 7,092
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Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of Selling Expenses

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks
Salaries $ 72,163
Insurance expenses 7,595
Pensions 5,280
Postage and phone/Fax expense 2,209
Supplies expense 2,005
Entertainment 2,628
Other 7,073
Total $ 98,953

-188 -



Dimerco Express Corporation
Statement of the Management Expenses

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand
Item Summary Amount Remarks

Salaries $ 293,042
Remuneration to directors 42,071
Sales promotion expense 3,869
Entertainment 7,724
Data processing fees 5,037
Consultant fees 7,178
Insurance expenses 9,403
Depreciation expense 15,137
Service expenses 3,090
Postage and phone/Fax expense 1,329
Pensions 1,108
Miscellaneous expenses 22,735
Less: Management fees paid for others (126,124)

$ 285,599

Please refer to Note 6(4) of the Financial Statements for the statement of changes in property, plant and
equipment.

Please refer to Note 6(4) of the Financial Statements for the statement of changes in accumulated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment.

Please refer to Note 6(5) of the Financial Statements for the statement of changes in right-of-use assets.
Please refer to Note 6(5) of the Financial Statements for the statement of changes in accumulated
depreciation of right-of-use assets

Please refer to Note 6(12) of the Financial Statements for the statement of changes in operating income.
Please refer to Note 6(13) of the Financial Statements for the statement of changes in operating costs.
Please refer to Note 7 to the financial statements for long-term payables.

Please refer to Note 7 to the financial statements for other non-current liabilities.
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Stock Code:5609

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial Statements

With Independent Auditors’ Report
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Address: 11F, No. 160, Sec. 6, Min Chuan East Road, Taipei,
Taiwan, R.O.C.

Telephone: (02)2796-3660

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Dimerco Express
Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 by the Financial Supervisory Commission, "Consolidated
Financial Statements." In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements
is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Dimerco Express Corporation and
Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: Dimerco Express Corporation
Chairman: Chien Yao-Huai

Date: March 15, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of Dimerco Express Corporation:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dimerco Express Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
"Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"), International Accounting Standards ("IASs"), Interpretations
developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") or the former Standing
Interpretations Committee ("SIC") endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of
the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. Based on our audits and the report of other
auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of
our opinion.
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Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries. The financial statements of these subsidiaries
were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts for these companies, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The consolidated total
assets for these subsidiaries amounted to $1,883,650 thousand as of December 31, 2021, constituted 19% of
consolidated total assets. The net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021, amounted to $8,401,764
thousand, constituted 22% of consolidated net revenues for the year then ended.

We did not audit the financial statements of ITG Air & Sea GmbH, in which the investments were recognized
using the equity method. The financial statements of ITG Air & Sea GmbH were audited by another auditor,
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts for ITG Air & Sea
GmbH, was based solely on the report of the other auditor. The financial statements of ITG Air & Sea GmbH
reflect total assets constituting 2% of consolidated total assets at December 31, 2021, and the share of profit of
associates accounted for using the equity method constituting 1% of consolidated total income before tax, for
the year then ended.

Dimerco Express Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, on which we have issued an unqualified opinion with other matter section.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our judgment, the key audit matters that should be
disclosed in this auditor's report are as follows:

1. Revenue recognition

Please refer to note 4(n) "revenue from contracts with customers" for accounting policy related to revenue
recognition, and note 6(o) for the disclosure related to revenue of the consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter:

The Group mainly generates revenue from providing service of air freight and ocean freight forwarding.
Revenue is recognized when the goods are consigned for transportation based on each shipping term and the
transportation fee can be reasonably determined. Wherein the timing of delivery is different for each
shipping term; therefore, the management of the Group needs to determine the accuracy of the timing for
revenue recognition. Therefore, revenue recognition is considered as one of our key audit matters in our
audit.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The key audit procedures performed by us and procedures noted in the audit instructions sent to the
component audit teams for execution were as follows:

Testing the effectiveness of the internal control over sales.

Selecting a period of sales data from the system, and determining the completeness of the revenue
recognition.

Obtaining the list of top ten sales customers and sales data of the year, then performing test-of-detail by
selecting samples from each month to evaluate the existence of the sales and the accuracy of the amount
recognized, as well as the appropriateness of sales recognition.

Obtaining the master bill of lading provided by the airline and the summarize documents prepared by the
Group, as well as selecting sample from the summarized documents to determine whether the related
house bill of lading have been recognized appropriately.

Performing sales cut-off test of a period before and after the financial position date by vouching relevant
documents of sales transactions to determine whether the timing of revenue recognition is appropriate.

2. Cost accrual

Please refer to note 4(n) "revenue from contracts with customers" for accounting policy related to cost
accrual and note 6(p) for the disclosure related to cost of the consolidated financial statements.

Description of key audit matter:

The cost of the Group consists of local and international transportation cost. There is a risk in identifying the
completeness of the accrual cost and the accuracy of the amount accrued. Therefore, the cost accrual is
considered as one of our key audit matters in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

The key audit procedures performed by us and procedures noted in the audit instructions sent to the
component audit teams for execution were as follow:

Testing the effectiveness of the internal control over purchase.

Performing test-of-detail by selecting the same samples in connection with the audit of top ten sales
customers and the sales data of year from each month, and evaluate whether the related cost have been
matched with the recognition of revenue and accrued appropriately.

Sending confirmation letter for the ending balance of accounts payable. Selecting samples with
significant amount from the reconciled documents between the Group and the vendors and vouching the
subsequent payment to determine whether the costs accrued at the financial position date were
reasonable.

Performing purchase cut-off test of a period before and after the financial position date by vouching
relevant documents of cost transactions to determine whether the timing of cost accrual is appropriate.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs,
IASs, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the supervisors) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Chun-I Chang and Chun-
Hsiu Kuang.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 15, 2023

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Assets
Current assets:
1100 Cash and cash equivalents (note 6(x))
1137 Financial assets measured at amortised cost —current (note 6(b))
1150 Notes receivable, net (notes 6(c) and (o))
1170 Accounts receivable, net (notes 6(c), (o) and 7)
1470 Other current assets (notes § and 9)

Total current assets
Non-current assets:

1517 Financial assets at fir value through other comprchensive income —non-current
1551 Investments accounted for using the equity method (note 6(d))

1600 Property, plant and equipment (notes 6(e), (9. (). 8 and 9)

1755 Right-ofuse assets (note 6(z)

1822 Intangible assets (notes 6(c) and (h))

1840 Deferred income tax assets (note 6(1))

1920 Refundable deposits

1990 Other non-current asses (notes 6(). 7). 8 and 9)

Total non-current assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31,2022

December 31, 2021
Amount %

Amount %

Liabi
Current lial
S 5809475 55

3438978 35 2100 Short-term borrowings (notes 6(f), (i) and §)

975 - - <2150 Notes payable
16726 - 25919 - 2170 Accounts payable (note 7)
2828022 27 4587395 47 2216 Dividends payable
W63 4 446950 5 2219 Other payables (notes 6() and 9)
9046631 _86 __ 8499242 81 2230 Income tax payable
2280 Cument lease liabilities (note 6(]))
a9 - 492 - 2399 Other cument liabilities
209200 3 26889 3 Total current liabi
5603265 544456 6 Non-Current libilities:
390270 4 298555 3 2570 Deferred income tax labilities (nofe 6(1)
B0 1 33068 - 2580 Non-current lease liabilities (note 6()))
@92 - 27820 - 2640 Netdefined beneft liabilities (note 6(k))
104581 1 76437 12670 Other non-current liabilties
174 - 20658 - Total non-current liab
1476238 14 1247325 13 Total labilities
Equity attributable o owners of the Company (notes 6(¢c) and (m):
3110 Commonstock
3200 Capital suplus
33 Retained camings
3310 Legal reserve
3320 Special reserve
3350 Unappropriated retained camings
34w Other equity
3410 Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations
3500 Treasury shares
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
36w Non-controlling interests
o . Total equity
S__10522.869 9.746,567 23xxx Total liabilities and equity
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December 31, 2022
Amount ___9

s 430000
26,780
2815136
20,665
437,178
135,612
191,023
122,433
4178807

6646
167111

8492

3705
219301

4398128

1360800 _13

19.362

733,290
557281

3353782 3
4644353 _44

177,589

201.000)
6.001.104
23,637
6124741

S__10522.869

7

Lk

8

100

D

676,592
42310

4,308,504
126470
4434974

9.746.567

ccember 31, 2021
Amount

44
—1
i

0




4000
5000
5900
6000
6100
6200
6450

6900
7000
7100
7010
7020
7050
7060

7900
7950

8300
8310
8311
8349

8360

8361

8399

8300

8500

8610

8620

8710
8720

9750
9850

(English Translation of C. lidated Fi ial

Originally Issued in Chinese)

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Operating revenue (notes 6(o) and 7)
Operating costs (notes 6(f), (k), (p) and (q))
Gross profit from operations
Operating expenses (notes 6(c), (f), (g), (h), (j), (k), (q), 7 and 9):
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Expected credit loss for bad debt expense
Total operating expenses
Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(d), (f), (g), (j) and (r)):
Interest income
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Share of profit of associates accounted for using the equity method
Total non-operating income and expenses
Profit from continuing operations before tax
Less: Income tax expenses (note 6(I))
Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6(k))
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (note
6(m))
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (NT dollars) (note 6(n))
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. - 199 -

2022 2021
Amount % Amount %
S 41,174,810 100 38,986,916 100
35,233,829 86 _ 33.164.591 85
5,940,981 14 5822325 _ 15
1,094,758 3 978,574 3
2,257,884 5 2,115,592 5
13.582 - 37,188 -
3,366,224 8 3,131,354 8
2,574,757 6 2,690.971 7
23,084 - 8,885 -
25,727 - 20,973 -
173,102 1 (14,796) -
(16,969) - (15,545) -
56.478 - 35,548 -
261,422 1 35,065 -
2,836,179 7 2,726,036 7
295,984 1 368,405 1
2,540,195 6 2,357,631 6
8,121 - (3,324)
8,121 - (3.324) _ -
738,048 2 (121,554) -
738,048 2 (121,554) _ -
746,169 2 (124,878) _ -
$__ 3.286.364 8 2,232,753 6
$ 2,538,625 6 2,310,477 6
1.570 - 47,154 -
$__ 2,540,195 6 2,357,631 6
$ 3,281,616 8 2,190,959 6
4.748 - 41,794 -
$_ 3.286,364 8 2,232,753 6
$ 18.71 16.98
$ 18.39 16.77




(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Other equity
Foreign
currency
Retained earnings translation
nappropriated differences for
foreign ownersof the  Non-controlling
Common stock __Capital surplus _Legal reserve__Special reserve ___earnings Total operations __ Treasury shares __ Company interests Total equity
Balance at January 1, 2021 5 260,000 19.362 394,064 182,174 1358232 1934470 (441,087) - 772745 106332 2879077

Appropriation and distribution of retained camings:

Legal reserve appropriated - - 108,511 - (108511) - - - - - .

al reserve appropriated - - - 258,912 (258912) - - .
- - - (655.200) (655.200) - - (655.200) - (655.200)

Cash dividends of ordinary share -

Stock dividends of ordinary share 100,800 - - - (100.800) (100800) - - - - -
Netincome - - - - 2310477 2310477 - - 2310477 47154 2357.631
Other comprehensive income - - - - (324 (324 (116,194 - 19518) (5360) (124878
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2307153 2307153 116,194 - 2190959 41,794 2232753
Subsidiaries dividends to non-controll

interests - - - - - - - - - (21,656) (21656)
Balance at December 31, 2021 1.360.800 19,362 502,575 441,086 2,541,962 3485623 (557.281) - 4,308,504 126470 4434974
Appropriation and distribution of retained earnings:

Legal reserve appropriated - - 230715 - (230715) - - - - - -

Special reserve appropriated - - - 116,195 (116,195) - - - - - -

Cash dividends of ordinary share - - - - (1,388.016) (1388016) - - (1.388.016) - (1388.016)
Netincome - - - - 2,538,625 2,538,625 - - 2,538,625 1570 2,540,195
Other comprehensive income - - - - 8121 8121 734,870 - 742991 3178 746,169
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,546,746 2,546,746 734870 - 3281616 4748 3286364
Purchase of treasury share - - - - - - - (201,000) (201,000) - (201,000)
Changes in non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 2,835 2835

bsidiaries dividends to i

interests - - - - - - - - - (10416) 0416)
Balance at December 31, 2022 s 6,001,104 123,637 6,124,741

See ing notes to i financial
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(English Tr ion of C

Originally Issued in Chinese)

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net income before tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit losses
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Share of profit of associates accounted for using the equity method
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of investments accounted for using equity method
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
Gain on lease modification
Total adjustments to reconcile profit and loss
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net changes in operating assets:
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable (including overdue receivables)
Other current assets
Total changes in operating assets, net
Net changes in operating liabilities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Total changes in operating liabilities, net
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities, net
Total adjustments
Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Proceeds from repayments of financial assets at amortised cost
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Acquisition of investments accounted for using the equity method
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using the equity method
Net cash flow from acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash obtained)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Acquisition of intangible assets
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets
Dividends received
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term borrowings
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Payment of lease liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Payments to acquire treasury shares
Subsidiaries distribute cash dividends to non-controlling interests
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
$ 2,836,179 2,726,036
249,709 227,124
3,447 277
13,582 37,188
- (610)
16,969 15,545
(23,084) (8.885)
(148) (130)
(56,478) (35,548)
(1,004) (1,160)
- 21
- 22,266
(12) (2.232)
202,981 253.856
9,193 (18,635)
1,756,599 (2,343,093)
66.088 (217.023)
1,831,880 (2.578.751)
(15,530) 12,008
(692.465) 1,267,387
138,823 75,887
(15,803) (4.426)
(2.291) (7.169)
(587.266) 1,343,687
1244614 (1.235.064)
1,447,595 (981.208)
483,774 1,744,828
23,084 8,885
- 130
(16,969) (15,545)
(504.092) (134.107)
3,785,797 1,604,191
(9.775) -
- (167,603)
- 168,216
- (2.148)
- 375
(22,807) -
(21,774) (27,243)
1,380 1,375
(28.144) (596)
(303) -
3,099 (21,025)
30.938 10365
(47.386) (38.284)
1,579,025 2,626,125
(1,825,617) (2,650,125)
(204,985) (190,402)
(14,339) 34,179
(1,373,046) (654,323)
(201,000) -
(10.416) (21,656)
(2.050.378) (856.202)
682,464 (126917)
2,370,497 582,788
3438978 2,856,190
s 5,809,475 3,438,978




(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION (DIMTW or the Company) (originally named Dimerco Express
(Taiwan) Corporation, changed in June 2012) was incorporated in August 1985 as a company limited by
shares under the laws of the Republic of China (ROC). The consolidated financial statements comprise
DIMTW and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group"). The Group is primarily engaged in the
business of air freight forwarding, ocean freight forwarding, customs brokerage service, and related
investing activities.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and issued on March 15,
2023.

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of adobting the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C.

The Group has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2022:

o Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment —Proceeds before Intended Use”
e Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts —Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”
e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

e Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”

(b) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Group assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual period
beginning on January 1, 2023, would not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements:

o Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
e Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

e Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”
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DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Group, have been issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Standards or Effective date per
Interpretations Content of amendment IASB
Amendments to IAS 1 Under existing IAS 1 requirements, January 1,2024
“Classification of Liabilities ~ companies classify a liability as current
as Current or Non-current” when they do not have an unconditional

right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the reporting date. The
amendments has removed the requirement
for a right to be unconditional and instead
now requires that a right to defer settlement
must exist at the reporting date and have
substance.

The amendments clarify how a company
classifies a liability that can be settled in its
own shares — e.g. convertible debt.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-  After reconsidering certain aspects of the January 1, 2024
current Liabilities with 2020  amendmentsl, new IAS 1
Covenants” amendments clarify that only covenants

with which a company must comply on or

before the reporting date affect the

classification of a liability as current or

non-current.

Covenants with which the company must
comply after the reporting date (i.e. future
covenants) do not affect a liability’ s
classification at that date. However, when
non-current liabilities are subject to future
covenants, companies will now need to
disclose information to help users
understand the risk that those liabilities
could become repayable within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The Group is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance. The
results thereof will be disclosed when the Group completes its evaluation.

The Group does not expect the other new and amended standards, which have yet to be endorsed by
the FSC, to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements:
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DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized as
follows. The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

(@)

(b)

(©

Statement of compliance

These consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
"Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers" (hereinafter
referred to as the Regulations) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect
by the Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C.

Basis of preparation

@

(i)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, unless
otherwise stated (Refer to the summary of the significant accounting policies).

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entity is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in New Taiwan dollars (NTD), which is the Company's functional currency. All financial
information presented in New Taiwan dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Basis of consolidation

@

Principles of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date on which control ceases. Intragroup balances and
transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intragroup transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The Group attributes the profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
will be recognized directly in equity and attributed to the shareholders of the parent.
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List of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Shareholdin
Name of December December
investor Name of Y Primary 31,2022 31,2021 Remarks

The Company  Dimerco International Logistic Corp. Holding company 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DIL)

The Company ~ Dimerco Express Holding Co., Ltd. Holding company 100.00 % 100.00 %
(Holding)

The Company  Dimerco Freight System Corporation Global logistics service 99.99 % 99.99 %
(DFSTW)

The Company  Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Global logistics service 100.00 % 86.11 % Note 6
(DIMSG)

The Company  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 20.00 % 20.00 %
(FSC)

The Company  Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 15.00 % 15.00 %
(FSC HK)

The Company  Diversified International Logistics Co., Ltd Global Logistics service 80.00 % 80.00 %
(DILTW)

The Company  Diversified Transportation (HK & China) Co., ~ Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note 4
Ltd.
(DTLHK)

The Company  Dimerco International Logistics Company Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note 5
(DILHK)

The Company  Diversified Freight System (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note7
(DFSSG)

The Company  Diversified International Logistics Pte. Ltd. Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note 8
(DILSG)

The Company  Dimerco Express (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note 9
(DIMMY)

DMCHK Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd. Global Logistics service 99.99 % - % Note 10
(DIMHK)

DMCHK Diversified Freight System Ltd. Global Logistics service 99.99 % - % Note 11
(DFSHK)

DIMPH Diversified Merchandise Company Limited Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note 12
(DMCHK)

DMHK Global SCM Company Limited Global Logistics service 100.00 % - % Note 13
(GSCHK)

DIMHK Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 35.00 % 35.00 %
(FSC HK)

DIMHK Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 60.00 % 60.00 %
(FSC)

DIMHK Dimerco International Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Global logistics service 99.99 % 99.99 %
Ltd.
(DILSHA)

DIMHK Dimerco International Transportation Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(DIMCN)

DIMHK Dimerco International Logistics (Shenzhen) Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
Co., Ltd.
(DILSZX)

DIMHK Dimerco Zhonging Int'l Express Co., Ltd. Global logistics service 75.00 % 75.00 %
(ZIDCN)

DIMHK Dimerco Vietfracht (JV) Co., Ltd. Global logistics service 75.00 % 75.00 %
(DIMVN)

DFSHK Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 35.00 % 35.00 %
(FSC HK)

(Continued)
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__ Sharcholding
Name of December December
investor Name of idiary Primary b 31,2022 31,2021 Remarks
DFSHK Diversified International Transportation Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(DFSCN)
DFSTW Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 15.00 % 15.00 %
(FSC HK)
DFSTW Diversified International Logistics Co., Ltd Global Logistics service 20.00 % 20.00 %
(DILTW)
DIMSG Dimerco Express (India) Pte Ltd. Global logistics service 60.00 % 60.00 %
(DIMIN)
DIMSG Foreign Settlement Co., Ltd. Settlement center 20.00 % 20.00 %
(FSC)
DIL Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd. Global logistics service - % 99.99 % Note 10
(DIMHK)
DIL Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte Ltd. Global logistics service - % 13.89 % Note 6
(DIMSG)
DIL Dimerco Express (UK) Ltd. Global logistics service 37.50 % 37.50 %
(DIMGB)
DIL Dimerco Express (U.S.A.) Corp. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DIMUS)
DIL Global Marketing System Co., Ltd. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(GMS)
FSCHK Dimerco Express (UK) Ltd Global logistics services 62.50 % 62.50 %
(DIMGB)
FSCHK Diversified (Shenzhen) International Logistics ~ Global logistics services 50.00 % 50.00 %
Service Co., Ltd. (DILYTN)
GMS Dimerco Express Phil. Inc Global logistics services 60.01 % 60.01 %
(DIMPH)
GMS Diversified International Logistics Service Global logistics services 100.00 %  100.00 %
Company Ltd.
GMS Diversified Freight System (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Global logistics services - % 100.00 % Note 7
(DFSSG)
GMS Dimerco International Logistics Company Global logistics services - % 100.00 % Note 5
(DILHK)
GMS Diversified (Shenzhen) International Logistics ~ Global logistics services 50.00 % 50.00 %
Service Co., Ltd. (DILYTN)
Holding Dimerco Express (Thailand) Corp. Ltd. Global logistics service 48.99 % 48.99 % Note 1
(DIMTH)
Holding Dimerco Express Phils. Inc. Global logistics service 39.99 % 39.99 %
(DIMPH)
Holding Dimerco Express (Australia) Pty Ltd. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DIMAU)
Holding Dimerco Express (Korea) Corp. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DIMKR)
Holding Dimerco Express (Canada) Corp. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DIMCA)
Holding Diversified International Service Logistics Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
System Corporation
(DSLUS)
Holding Dimerco Express (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Global logistics service - % 100.00 % Note9
(DIMMY)
Holding Dimerco Express Netherlands B.V. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DIMNL)
Holding Diversified Freight System Ltd. Global logistics service - % 99.99 % Note 11
(DFSHK)
(Continued)
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__ Sharcholding

Name of December December
investor Name of idiary Primary busi 31,2022 31,2021 Remarks

Holding Diversified Transportation (HK & China) Co.,  Global logistics service - % 100.00 % Note 4
Ltd.
(DTLHK)

DTLHK Diversified Transportation (China) Co., Ltd. Global logistics service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DTLCN)

DIMUS Dimerco Customs Brokerage Co. Ltd. Brokerage service 100.00 %  100.00 %
(DCBUS)

DIMUS B.C. Logistics, LLC Global logistics service 85.00 % - % Note2

DIMPH Peerless Express Forwarders Corp. Global logistics service 39.99 % 39.99 % Note 1

DIMPH Diversified Freight System Philippines Global logistics service 90.63 % - % Note 3
Corporation
(DFSPH)

DILHK Diversified International Logistics Pte Ltd Global logistics service - % 100.00 % Note 8
(DILSG)

DFSSG Diversified Freight System Philippines Global logistics service 9.37 % - % Note 3
Corporation
DFSPH)

Note 1:  The Group owns less than 50% of the subsidiaries' voting stock, but the Group has control over the subsidiaries' financial

Note 2:
Note 3:

Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:
Note 9:
Note 10:
Note 11:
Note 12:

Note 13:

and operating policies through agreement with other investors. Therefore, the Group includes the subsidiaries in the

o lidated financial statement:

The subsidiary has been acquired in 2022; Please refer to note 6(e).

DIMPH and DFSSG invested and established DFSPH in June 2022 and own 100% of DFSPH's shares, the capital
amount PHP 10,670 thousand had been paid in in August 2022 (DIMPH and DFSSG own DFSPH's shares 90.63% and
9.37%, respectively), and DFSPH has became a subsidiary of the Group.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by Holding to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by GMS to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 13.89% of the shares held by DIL to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by GMS to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by DILHK to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by Holding to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 99.99% of the shares held by DIL to the DMCHK.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 99.99% of the shares held by Holding to the DMCHK.
DIMPH established DMCHK in December 2022 and owns 100% shares, DMCHK became the Consolidated Subsidiary
of the Group.

DMCHK established GSCHK in December 2022 and owns 100% shares, GSCHK became the Consolidated Subsidiary
of the Group.

(d) Foreign currency

@

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, are translated into the presentation currency at
the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency at the average exchange rate. Exchange differences
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

(i) Itisexpected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
(ii) Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

(i)  Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments with high liquidity that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

Time deposits with maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date are listed in cash and
cash equivalents because they are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
instead of investment or other purposes. They are also readily convertible to fixed amount of cash,
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

208 - (Continued)



DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(g) Financial instruments

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

(@)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment; FVOCI — equity investment;
or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI )

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.
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Dividend income derived from equity investments is recognized on the date on which the
Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case in profit or loss of
quoted securities is normally the ex-dividend date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and trade
receivable, other receivable and guarantee deposit).

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
(ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. The Group recognizes the amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire, or when the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

D

2)

3)

4)

5)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

Treasury shares

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, is recognized as a deduction from equity.
Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and
the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is recognized in capital surplus or
retained earnings (if the capital surplus is not sufficient to be written down).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.
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6)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.

The equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in associates includes goodwill arising
from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which
significant influence ceases. The Group recognizes any changes of its proportionate share in the
investee within capital surplus, when an associate’s equity changes due to reasons other than profit
and loss or comprehensive income, which did not result in changes in actual significant influence.

Gains resulting from the transactions between the Group and an associate are recognized only to the
extent of unrelated Group's interest in the associate. Unrealized losses on transactions with
associates are eliminated in the same way, except to the extent that the underlying asset is impaired.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interests in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate

Property, plant and equipment
(i)  Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

(i)  Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.
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(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Buildings 4~56 years
Transportation equipment 3~5 years
Office equipment 1~16 years
Lease improvement 2~6 years
Other equipment 2~6 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a leasee, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at, or before, the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by using the impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be reliably determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

— there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it will
exercise an option to purchase, extension or the underlying asset, or

— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise a extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for lease
modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease.

The Group presents its right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and its lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for its short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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(k) Business combination

@

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method. The goodwill arising
from an acquisition is measured as the excess of (i) the consideration transferred (which is generally
measured at fair value) and (ii) the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree, both over the
identifiable net assets acquired at the acquisition date. If the amount calculated above is a deficit
balance, the Group recognized that amount as a gain on a bargain purchase in profit or loss
immediately after reassessing whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of
the liabilities assumed.

All acquisition-related transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except for the issuance of debt or
equity instruments.

For each business combination, the Group measures any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’ s proportionate share of the acquiree’ s
identifiable net assets, if the non-controlling interests are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquire’s net assets in the event of liquidation.

Intangible assets
(i)  Recognition and measurement

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost, less accumulated
impairment losses.

Other intangible assets, including customer relationships and trademarks, that are acquired by
the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Amortization

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, less its residual value, and is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets,
other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:

1)  Trademarks 10 years
2)  Customer relationships 5 years
3)  Software 2~3 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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(m) Impairment—non-financial assets

(n)

(0)

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

Non-financial assets an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Revenue and Cost recognition
(i)  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when
it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a
customer.

The Group provides air freight forwarding, ocean freight forwarding and custom brokerage
services. Revenue from providing services is recognized in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

(i) Contract Cost

Transportation cost which consists of air and ocean cost is accrued based on the invoice or
quote price provided by the vendor, upon the time of income recognization.

Employee benefits
(i)  Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service
is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.
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(i) Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Government grants and government assistance

The Group recognizes an unconditional government grant on profit or loss as other income when the
grant becomes receivable. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses or losses incurred are
recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the periods in which the expenses or losses are
recognized.

Income tax

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred income taxes. Except for expenses related to
business combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current
and deferred income taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
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Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Temporary difference
resulting from initial recognition of goodwill cannot be recognized as deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i)  the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and

(ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company's basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share are calculated as the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. Treasury stock should be deducted from outstanding shares. Stock dividends from
retained earnings and capital surplus are adjusted retroactively as outstanding shares.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary sharecholders of the
Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment
for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

Operating segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.
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Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

There are no critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Neither are the information about
assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year.

Explanation of significant accounts

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Cash on hand $ 4,232 4,260
Checking accounts and savings deposits 4,283,103 3,113,565
Time deposits 1,522,140 321,153
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated statement of cash
flows $ 5,809,475 3,438,978

Please refer to note 6(s) for the exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis of the
financial assets and liabilities of the Group.

(b) Financial assets measured at amortized cost — current

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Bank's time deposits $ 9,775 -
Interest rate 0.2~1.35% -

The Group has assessed that these financial assets are held to maturity to collect contractual cash
flows, which consist solely of payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.
Therefore, these investments were classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.
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(¢) Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Notes receivable $ 16,726 25919
Accounts receivable 2,945,645 4,692,243
Overdue receivable 5,485 4,678
Less: Loss allowance —accounts receivable 117,623 104,848
Loss allowance — overdue receivable 5,485 4,678

$ 2,844,748 4,613,314

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, as
well as incorporated forward looking information. The loss allowance provision was determined as

follows:
December 31, 2022
Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
Current $ 2,570,609 0% -
1 to 30 days past due 323,664 18% 57,858
31 to 60 days past due 43,860 81% 35,527
61 to 90 days past due 8,535 100% 8,535
91 to 365 days past due 6,359 100% 6,359
More than 365 days 14,829 100% 14,829
$ 2,967,856 123,108
December 31, 2021
Weighted-
average
Gross carrying  expected credit Loss allowance
amount loss rate provision
Current $ 4,247,744 0% -
1 to 30 days past due 403,687 12% 49,552
31 to 60 days past due 60,184 81% 48,749
61 to 90 days past due 6,633 100% 6,633
91 to 365 days past due 1,607 100% 1,607
More than 365 days 2,985 100% 2,985
$ 4,722,840 109,526
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The movement in the allowance for accounts receivable and notes receivables was as follows:

2022 2021
Balance at January 1 $ 109,526 72,338
Impairment losses recognized 13,582 37,188
Balance at December 31 $ 123,108 109,526

Investments accounted for using the equity method

A summary of the Group's investments accounted for using the equity method at the reporting date
was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Associates $ 269,209 236,889
(i)  Associates
1)  The details of significant associate were as follows:
Main
operating  Proportion of equity
location / and voting rights
Relationship country of December December
Name of associate with the Group registration 31,2022 31,2021
ITG Air & Sea GmbH Global air and Germany 25.00 %  25.00 %
ocean freight
forwarder

A summary of the financial information of the significant associate was as follows:

Summary of financial information of ITG Air & Sea GmbH

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Current assets $ 1,299,254 1,065,828
Non-current assets 83,643 88,923
Current liabilities (905,396) (778,586)
Non-current liabilities (29.582) (39.569)
Net assets $ 447,919 336,596
The Group's share of net assets $ 111,979 84,149

(Continued)
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2)

Revenue

Profit from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income

Profit and total comprehensive income

The Group's share of profit and total
comprehensive income

Beginning balance of the equity of the associate
attributable to the Group

Total comprehensive income (loss) of the
associate attributable to the Group

Dividends received from associates
Exchange difference

Share of net assets of associates as of December
31

Add : Goodwill

Ending balance of the equity of the associate
attributable to the Group

2022 2021
$ 4,657,240 4,283,299
$ 199,467 126,150
$ 199,467 126,150
$ 49,866 31,538
2022 2021
$ 84,149 68,321
49,866 31,538
(28,180) (7,769)
6,144 (7,941)
111,979 84,149
129,692 129,692
$ 241,671 213,841

The Group’s financial information for investments accounted for using the equity method

that are individually insignificant was as follows:

Carrying amount of individually insignificant
associates' equity

Attributable to the Group:
Profit from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

(ii) Collateral

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 27,538 23,048
2022 2021
$ 6,612 4,010
$ _ 6,612 ] 4,010

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group did not provide any investment accounted for
using the equity method as collaterals for its loans.

Acquisition of subsidiary and non-controlling interests
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On January 1, 2022, the Group acquired 85% shares and voting interests of B.C. Logistic, LLC (a
logistic service company located in United States), resulting in the Group to obtain control over it.
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The fair value of each major class of consideration transferred, amounts of assets acquired, liabilities
assumed and the goodwill recognized at the acquisition date were as follows:

(i) The following table summaraizes the acquisition-date fair value of each major class of
consideration transferred.

Cash $ 54,103

(ii) The following table summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,478
Accounts receivable 10,308
Property, plant and equipment (note 6(f)) 963
Other current assets 1,771
Trademarks (note 6(h)) 2,767
Customer relationships (note 6(h)) 13,837
Account payables (6,697)
Other current liabilities 420
Total identifiable net assets acquired $ 35,507

(iii) Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognized as follows:

Consideration transferred $ 54,103
Non-controlling interest in the acquiree (proportionate

share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets) 2,835
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets 35.507
Goodwill $ 21.431

The goodwill is attributable mainly to B.C. Logistic, LLC’s relationship in specific local city
work force and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the company into the
Group’s existing logistic business.
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(f)  Property, plant and equipment

The cost and depreciation of the property, plant and equipment of the Group were as follows:

Transportation Office Leasehold Other
Land Buildings equipment cquipment _improvements __equipment Total

Cost or deemed cost:
Balance at January 1, 2022 s 182,377 512,510 35226 140,175 58,123 51,628 980,039
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 1,986 1,193 - 12,780 15,959
Additions - - 3226 14,296 2,623 1,629 21,774
Disposals - - (6,973) (7,517) (267) (14,291) (29,048)
Effect of changes in exchange rates 2,903 42,557 2,850 4,683 4,143 5.256 62.392
Balance at December 31, 2022 B 185,280 555,067 36,315 152,830 64,622 57.002 1,051,116
Balance at January 1, 2021 s 182,787 520,506 31,619 141310 56,139 53,171 985,532
Additions - - 4258 13,294 8,440 1251 27,243
Disposals - E (2.037) (9.853) (5.396) (2.064) (19.350)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (410) (7.996) 1,386 (4,576) (1,060) (730) (13.386)
Balance at December 31,2021 B 182,377 512,510 35226 140,175 58,123 51,628 980,039

Depreciation and impairment loss:
Balance at January 1,2022 s - 200,636 25,648 117,063 45993 46,243 435,583
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 1,441 947 - 12,608 14,996
Depreciation - 14,951 4225 15,339 3,299 2341 40,155
Disposals - - (6,896) (7.225) (267) (14,284) (28,672)
Reclassification R R R 401 266 (667)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 15419 2,054 4,074 3,017 4,164 28,728
Balance at December 31, 2022 B - 231,006 26472 130,599 52,308 50,405 490,790
Balance at January 1, 2021 s - 188,659 22,949 120,819 44,670 46,664 423,761
Depreciation - 14,167 3,266 10,650 6,849 2,617 37,549
Disposals R - (2,037 (9.444) (5,555) (2.099) (19,135)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - (2,190) 1,470 (4.962) 29 (939) (6.592)
Balance at December 31,2021 s - 200,636 25,648 117,063 45,993 46,243

Carrying value:
December 31,2022 B 185,280 324,061 9.843 22,231 12314 6.597 560,326
December 31,2021 s 182,377 311,874 9,578 23,112 12,130 5385 544,456

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the property, plant and equipment of the Group had been
pledged as collateral for short-term borrowings; please refer to note 8.

(g) Right-of-use assets

The Group leases its assets including land, offices, warehouse, transportation equipment and other
equipment. Information about leases for which the Group as a lessee was presented below:

Transportation Other
Land Building i i Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2022 N 43,270 487,307 40,860 103,782 675,219
Additions - 232,410 13,091 32,701 278,202
Decreases (early termination) - (107,737) (4,656) (5,267) (117,660)
Effect of changes in exchange rates 4,778 38,206 2,491 11,832 57,307
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 48,048 650,186 51,786 143,048 893,068
Balance at January 1, 2021 S 43,947 509,221 34,728 77,113 665,009
Additions - 61,836 17,937 33,647 113,420
Decreases (early termination) - (50,084) (11,541) (26,365) (87,990)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (677) (33,666) (264) 19,387 (15,220)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 43,270 487,307 40,860 103,782 675,219
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Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses:
Balance at January 1, 2022

Depreciation

Decreases (early termination)

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at January 1, 2021

Depreciation

Decreases (early termination)

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Balance at December 31, 2021
Carrying amounts:

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Intangible assets

Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2022

Acq
Additions

ition of subsidiary

Effect of changes in exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2022
Balance at January 1, 2021
Depreciation

Disposal

Effect of changes in exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2021

Accumulated amortization and impairment losses *

Balance at January 1, 2022

Additions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at January 1, 2021

Depreciation

Disposal

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Balance at December 31, 2021
Carrying amounts:

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

The amortization recognized in porfit or loss were as follows:

Operating expenses

Transportation Other
Land Building i i Total

$ 7,222 289,674 21,582 58,186 376,664
(3,121) 166,381 14,044 32,250 209,554
- (107,507) (4,409) (5,110) (117,026)

1,245 23,371 1,582 7,408 33,606

$ 5,346 371,919 32,799 92,734 502,798
S 3.667 198,531 21,318 52,083 275,599
3,645 143,517 11,468 30,945 189,575
- (46,258) (11,294) (23.299) (80,851)

(90) (6.116) 90 (1,543) (7.659)

3, 7,222 289,674 21,582 58,186 376,664
$ 42,702 278,267 18,987 50,314 390,270
$ 36,048 197,633 19,278 45,596 298,555

Customer
Goodwill Trademarks T i i Software Total

$ 32,780 - - 2,742 35,522
21,431 2,767 13,837 - 38,035

- - - 303 303

4.042 306 1,528 19 5.895

$ 58,253 3,073 15,365 3,064 79,755
S 32,921 R R 2,753 35.674
- - - 34 34

- - - (15) (15)

(141) - - (30) (171)

8 32,780 - - 2,742 35,522
$ - - - 2,454 2,454
- 298 2,979 170 3,447

- 9 94 11 114

$ L 307 3,073 2,635 6,015
$ = - - 2215 2215
- - - 277 277
- - - a7 a7

- - - @1 @1

$ - - - 2,454 2,454
S, 58,253 2,766 12,292 429 73,740
$ 32,780 - - 288 33,068

2022 2021
$ 3,447 277
(Continued)
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(i)  Borrowings
The details, terms and clauses of the Group's short-term and long-term borrowings were as follows:

(i)  Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2022
Interest rate  Maturity
(%) year Amount
Unsecured bank loans 1.15~1.5 2023 $__ 430,000

December 31, 2021
Interest rate  Maturity

(%) year Amount
Unsecured bank loans 0.55~0.88 2022 $_ 676,592

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the unused credit facilities of the Group's short-term
borrowings amounted to $1,195,025 thousand and $722,925 thousand, respectively.

(ii) Long-term borrowings

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the unused credit facilities of the Group's long-term
borrowings all amounted to $150,000 thousand.

Please refer to note 6(s) for the information on the interest rate, foreign currency, and liquidity
risk.

The Group has pledged certain assets against the loans; please refer to note 8 for additional
information.

(j)  Lease liabilities
The Group's lease liabilities were as follow:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Current $ 191,023 136,893
Non-current 167,111 133,127
$ 358,134 270,020
For the maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(s).
The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:
2022 2021
Interests on lease liabilities $ 12,071 9,529
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding
short-term leases of low-value assets $ 42,588 43,028
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The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Group were as follows:

2022 2021

Total cash outflow for leases $ 259,644 242,959

Employee benefits

@

Defined benefit plans

The following table shows a reconciliation between the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation $ 61,344 66,653
Fair value of plan assets (54.026) (48.671)
Net accrued pension liabilities $ 7,318 17,982
Recorded under:

Accrued pension liabilities $ 8,492 18,904

Net defined benefit assets (recorded under other

non-current assets) $ 7,318 922

Domestic entities of the Group established the pension fund account for the defined benefit
plan in Bank of Taiwan. The plan, under the Labor Standards Law, provides benefits based on
an employee's length of service and average monthly salary for the six-month period prior to
retirement.

1) Composition of plan assets

The Group allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds
are managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the
utilization of the funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable
from two-year time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks. Foreign subsidiary
allocates pension funds in accordance with the local regulations.

The Group's Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to $53,777
thousand as of December 31, 2022. For information on the utilization of the labor
pension fund assets including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to
the website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.
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Movements in present value of defined benefit plan obligation

The movements in present value of the Group's defined benefit plan obligations for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

2022 2021

Defined benefit obligation at January 1 $ 66,653 66,670
Current service costs and interest 1,604 858
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability

(asset)

— Actuarial gains and losses arising from

changes in financial assumptions (5,346) 452

Benefits paid by the plan (1,778) -
Effect of movements in exchange rates 211 (1.327)
Defined benefit obligation at December 31 $ 61,344 66,653

Movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Group of years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

2022 2021
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 48,671 44,910
Interest income 240 484
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability
—Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest expense) 326 (368)
— Actuarial gains and losses arising from
changes in financial assumptions 2,449 (2,504)
Contributions paid by the employer 3,001 4,177
Benefits paid by the plan (1,778) -
Effect of movements in exchange rates 1,117 1,972
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 54,026 48,671

Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized on profit or loss for the Group for years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, were as follows:

2022 2021

Net interest on defined benefit liability (asset)
(recorded under operating expenses) $ 1,364 374
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Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Discount rate 1.750~2.000% 0.625~4.700%
Future salary increase rate 3.000~4.000% 3.000%

The Group expects to make contributions of $3,001 thousand to the defined benefit plans
in the year following the reporting date of 2022.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 11.12 to 17.59 years.
Sensitivity analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the Company uses
judgments and estimations to determine the actuarial assumptions, including discount
rates and future salary changes, as of the financial statement date. Any changes in the
actuarial assumptions may significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit
obligation.

If the actuarial assumptions had changed, the impact on the present value of the defined
benefit obligation shall be as follows:

Impact on defined benefit
obligation
Increase 0.25%  Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2022
Discount rate $ (859) 888
Future salary increase rate 855 (832)

December 31, 2021
Discount rate $ (1,183) 1,224
Future salary increase rate 1,179 (1,150)

The above sensitivity analysis is analyzed based on the effect of changes in a single
assumption under the condition that other assumptions remain constant. In practice, many
changes in assumptions may be linked together. The method used for sensitivity analysis
and calculation of net pension liability is the same.

The methods of measurement and the assumptions used for the sensitivity analysis are
the same as for the previous year.
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(i) Defined contribution plans

Domestic entities of the Group contribute 6% of each employee's monthly wages to the labor
pension personal account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions
of the Labor Pension Act. Under this defined contribution plan, the Group allocates a fixed
amount to the Bureau of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

Foreign subsidiaries of the Group adopted defined contribution pension plans and made
contributions based on the regulations set by the local authority and recognized the contributed
amount as current year's expenses.

The Group's pension costs under the defined contribution method were $39,797 thousand and
$36,053 thousand for 2022 and 2021, respectively. Payment was made to the Bureau of Labor
Insurance and the local authorities of the consolidated overseas subsidiaries.

(1)  Income tax
(i)  Income tax expenses

The components of income tax expense (benefit) in the years 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

2022 2021

Current income tax expense (benefit)

Current period $ 386,327 365,599

Adjustment for prior periods (56,045) (1,113)

330,282 364.486

Deferred tax expense (benefit)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (34.298) 3.919
Income tax expense from continuing operations $ 295,984 368,405

Reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) and profit before tax for 2022 and 2021 is as

follows:
2022 2021

Profit excluding income tax $ 2,836,179 2,726,036
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate $ 567,236 542,207
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction (264,983) (161,063)
Dividend income 5,607 1,528
Non-deductible expenses 4,261 2,094
Undistributed earnings additional tax 38,185 4,907
Tax-exempt income (1,867) (9,960)
Underestimate of prior year's income (56,045) (1,113)
Others 3,590 (10,195)
Total $ 295,984 368,405

(Continued)
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(ii) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
1) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

The consolidated entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022 and
2021. Also, management considers it probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Hence, such temporary differences are not recognized
under deferred tax liabilities. Details are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities $ 2,073,592 1,408,666

2)  Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in the amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Unrealized Allowance
Defined foreign for doubtful
benefit plans Tax losses exchange accounts Others Total
Balance at January 1, 2022 S 5423 1,639 (1,163) 21,027 894 27,820
Recognized in profit or loss (1,842) 38,678 1,334 2,080 475 40,725
54 276 21 1,025 1 1,377
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 3,635 40,593 192 24,132 1,370 69,922
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 7.299 8,056 47 14,066 2,531 31,999
Recognized in profit or loss (1,782) (6,393) (1,187) 7,119 (1,690) (3.933)
94) 24) (23) (158) 53 (246)
Balance at 31,2021 $ 5423 1,639 (1,163) 21,027 894 27,820

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Unrealized Allowance

Defined foreign for doubtful
benefit plans exchange accounts Others Total
Balance at January 1,

2022 $ (184) - - - (184)

Recognized in profit or loss (51) (5,329) (94) (953) (6,427)
- - 1) (34) (35)
Balance at December 31,

2022 N (235 (5.329) 95) (987) (6,646)
Balance at January 1,

2021 $ (198) - - - (198)
Recognized in profit or loss 14 - - - 14
Balance at December 31,

2021 S, (184) - - - (184)

(iii) Examination and approval

The tax returns of DIMTW have been examined by the tax authorities through 2020.
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(m) Capital and other equity

(O]

(i)

(iii)

Common stock

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total value of the authorized ordinary shares both
amounted to $1,680,000, with a par value of $10 per share, totaling 168,000 thousand shares.
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the issued ordinary shares were 136,080 thousand shares.
All issued shares were paid up upon issuance.

On July 8, 2021, the general meeting of shareholders approved a resolution to distribute the
retained earnings, wherein, 80 shares per thousand shares were to be distributed as stock
dividends. The application of the capital increase was approved by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, with September 4, 2021 as the date of capital increase. The relevant registration
procedures has been completed.

Capital surplus

The balances of capital surplus as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Share capital $ 15,000 15,000
Gain on disposal of assets 28 28
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries 4,334 4,334
$ 19,362 19,362

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exceed 10% of the total common stock outstanding.

Retained earnings

DIMTW's articles of incorporation stipulate that its net earnings from the current year shall
first be used to pay income tax, offset prior years' deficits (including adjustments to
unappropriated earnings) and provide 10% as legal reserve, unless the accumulated amount of
legal reserve is equal to or over the amount of common stock; then, accrue or reverse the
special reserve in accordance with the regulations or rules of authority. The remainder, along
with the beginning balance of unappropriated earnings (including the adjustments to
unappropriated earnings) is subject to the stockholders' approval for the distribution.
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In addition, to maintain the stockholders' return on investment, to accommodate the operating
cycles, and to strengthen the financial structure of the Company, the following factors were
taken into consideration for dividend distribution:

1)  the future expansion needs of the Company;
2)  maintaining a stable earnings per share level of the Company;
3)  the cash flows and operating results.

Furthermore, considering that the Company is in a constant growth stage in its business cycle,
there will be needs for expansion and working capital in the next few years. However, cash
dividends may not be less than 10%.

1)  Legal reserve

The ROC Company Act stipulates that companies must retain 10% of their annual net
earnings, as defined in the Act, until such retention equals the amount of issued share
capital. When a company has not incurred any loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution to be
adopted by the shareholders' meeting as required, distribute its legal reserve by issuing
new shares or cash. Only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of the issued
share capital may be distributed.

2)  Special reserve

In accordance with Ruling issued by the FSC, a portion of current-period earnings and
undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve
during earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified should equal the current-
period total net reduction of other shareholders' equity. Similarly, a portion of
undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve
(which does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for cumulative changes to
other shareholders' equity pertaining to prior periods. Amounts of subsequent reversals
pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders' equity shall qualify for additional
distributions.
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3)  Earnings distribution

On March 17, 2022, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to appropriate cash
dividends of the 2021 earnings. The amount of cash dividends of appropriations of
earnings for 2020 had been approved in the meeting of the board of directors on March
16, 2021. And the amount of shares dividends and other items of appropriations of
earnings for 2020 had been approved in the shareholders’ meeting on July 8, 2021. These
earnings were appropriated as follows:

2021 2020
Amount Amount
per share Total per share Total
(NTD) Amount (NTD) Amount
Dividends distributed to
ordinary stockholders:
Cash $ 10.20 1,388,016 5.20 655,200
Stock - - 0.80 100,800
Total $_ 1,388,016 756,000

The related information can be obtained from the Market Observation Post System.

On March 15, 2023, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to appropriate the 2022
earnings. These earnings were appropriated as follows:

2022
Amount
per share
(NT dollars) Total amount
Dividends distributed to common shareholders:
Cash $ 10.70 1,456,056
Stock 0.50 68,040

— O,U7Y

Total $ 1,524,096

(iv) Treasury stock

In order to motivate the employees and improve the operating performance, as well as to
maintain the Company's credit and shareholders' right, the Company's Board of Directors
approved a resolution to purchase its own common stock as treasury shares in accordance with
the requirements under section 28(2) of the Securities and Exchange Act on October 12, 2022.
The Company has purchased 3,000,000 shares from October 17, 2022 toe December 8, 2022,
and total cost amounted to $201,000 thousand.
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The information on stock bought back by DIMTW to reward employees is as follows:

Unit: thousand shares

2022
Balance at January 1 -
Purchase of stock 3.000
Balance at December 31 3.000

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act, the number of treasury shares purchased cannot
exceed 10% of the number of shares issued. The total purchase cost cannot exceed the sum of
retained earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par value, and realized capital surplus. The
maximum shares and the maximum total cost of the treasury stock hold by the Company in
2022 has complied with the foregoing regulations. Furthermore, treasury shares cannot be
pledged for debts, and treasury shares dose not carry any shareholder rights until it is
transferred.

(v)  Other equities (income after tax)
Foreign exchange

differences arising
from foreign

operations
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ (557,281)
Foreign exchange differences arising from foreign operations 734.870
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 177,589
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ (441,087)
Foreign exchange differences arising from foreign operations 116,194)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ (557,281)

(n) Earnings per share

The calculation of DIMTW's basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the years
2022 and 2021, was as follows:

(i)  Basic earnings per share

Share unit: thousand shares

2022 2021
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company $ 2,538,625 2,310477
Effect of treasury stock (429) -
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares 135,651 136,080
Basic earnings per share (in NT dollars) $ 18.71 16.98
(Continued)
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(i) Diluted earnings per share

2022 2021
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company $ 2,538,625 2,310,477
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares 135,651 136,080
Impact of dilutive potential common shares
Effect of employee stock bonus 2.410 1,671
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 138,061 137,751
Diluted earnings per share (in NT dollars) $ 18.39 16.77
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue
2022
Asia Americas Europe Total
Major products/services lines:
Air freight forwarding $ 17,136,908 5,063,077 221,843 22,421,828
Ocean freight forwarding 10,355,896 4,711,845 874,827 15,942,568
Others 2,373.449 400.477 36,488 _ 2.810.414

$_29.866,253 10,175,399 1,133,158 41,174,810

2021
Asia Americas Europe Total
Major products/services lines:
Air freight forwarding $ 17,049,457 2,943,986 254,118 20,247,561
Ocean freight forwarding 10,619,165 4,463,995 1,190,938 16,274,098
Others 1,833,521 586,200 45,536 _ 2.465.257

$.29.502,143 _ 7,994,181 1,490,592 _38,986.916

(ii) Contract balance

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2022 2021 2021
Notes receivable $ 16,726 25,919 7,284
Accounts receivable, net 2,945,645 4,692,243 2,351,327
Less: allowance for impairment 117,623 104,848 69,837
Total $ 2,844,748 4,613,314 2,288,774

Please refer to note 6(c) for the disclosure of accounts receivable and its impairment.
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Cost

The details of the Group's cost were as follows:

2022 2021
Air transportation cost $ 19,596,111 17,523,994
Ocean transportation cost 13,556,488 13,784,519
Other cost 2.081.230 1.856.078
$ 35,233,829 33,164,591

Employee compensation and directors' and supervisors' remuneration

In accordance with the Company's articles, DIMTW should contribute no less than 5% of the profit
as employee compensation and less than 5% as directors' and supervisors' remuneration when it has
realized profit for the year. The revision to the Company's articles has been approved by the
Company's shareholders’ meeting on June 8, 2022, and the directors' and supervisors' remuneration
was replaced by directors' remuneration. The recipients of shares and cash may include the
employees of the Company's affiliated companies who meet certain conditions. The payment for
director and supervisors' remuneration must be in the form of cash.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company estimated its employees'
compensation were $147,501 thousand and $145,689 thousand, respectively, and the estimated
amounts of directors' and supervisors' remuneration were $42,071 thousand and $41,625 thousand,
respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are calculated as the net profit before tax,
excluding employee compensation and directors' and supervisors' remuneration, of each period
multiplied by the percentage of employee compensation and directors' and supervisors' remuneration
as specified in the Company's articles. The estimations are recorded under operating expenses in
2022 and 2021. The information mentioned above can be accessed on the Market Observation Post
System. There were no differences between the actual amounts of remuneration to employees,
directors and supervisors distributed for the years 2022 and 2021, and the estimated amounts in the
financial statements.

Non-operating income and expenses
(i) Interest income
The details of the Group's interest income were as follows:

2022 2021
Interest income from bank deposits $ 23,084 8,885
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Other income

The details of the Group's other income were as follows:

2022 2021
Dividend income $ 148 130
Government grants 21,460 10,239
Other 4,119 10,604
Total other income $ 25,727 20,973
Other gains and losses
The details of the Group's other gain and losses were as follows:
2022 2021
Gains (losses) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment $ 1,004 1,160
Losses on disposal of investments - (21)
Gains on foreign exchange 177,178 9,900
Net gains on disposal of financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss - 610
Compensation losses - (24,317)
Others gains and losses (5,080) (2,128)
Other gains and losses, net $ 173,102 (14,796)
Finance costs
The details of the Group's finance costs were as follows:
2022 2021
Interest expense
Bank loan S 4,898 6,016
Lease liabilities 12,071 9.529
Net finance cost $ 16,969 15,545

Financial instruments

®

Credit risk

1) Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to
credit risk. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the maximum amount exposed to credit
risk amounted to $8,772,688 thousand and $8,132,831 thousand, respectively.
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2)  Concentration of credit risk
receivable.
Liquidity risk

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there was no concentration of credit risk in accounts

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including

estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual Within 6
amount cash flows months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 430,000 435,977 435,977 - -
Notes payable 26,780 26,780 26,780 -
Accounts payable 2815136 2815136 2815136 - - - -
Lease liabilities 358,134 368,161 98,186 98,186 114,357 57432
Dividend payable 20,665 20,665 20,665 - -
Other payables 437178 437178 437,178 - - -
S__ 4087.893 _ 4,103,897 _ 3833922 98,186 114,357 57,432 -
December 31, 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term loans S 676592 677464 677,464 -
Notes payable 42,310 42,310 42,310
Accounts payable 3,500,904 3,500,904 3.500.904 - - - -
Leas liabilities 270,020 277,581 70,363 70,363 89,855 47,000
Dividend payable 5,695 5,695 5,695 - -
Other payables 298,355 298,355 298,355 - - -
S__ 4793876 _ 4802309 _ 4,595,091 70,363 89.855 47,000 -
The Group does not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.
Currency risk
1) Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Group's significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:
Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD
December 31, 2022
Financial assets:
uUsD $ 34,647 30.730 1,064,707
HKD 6,196 4.053 24,407
EUR 835 32.814 27,409
GBP 323 37.005 11,951
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD 9,529 30.730 292,827
EUR 29 32.814 951
(Continued)
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Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD
December 31, 2021
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
USD $ 22,413 27.764 620,244
HKD 5,650 3.548 20,047
EUR 780 31.357 24,460

Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD $ 11,838 27.674 327,608
2)  Sensitivity analysis

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and other payables that are denominated in foreign currency. A weakening
(strengthening) of 3% of the NTD against USD, HKD and EUR of December 31, 2022
and 2021, would have increased or decreased the net income before tax by $25,041
thousand and $10,114 thousand, respectively. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for both periods.

3)  Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary items

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. In 2022 and 2021,
foreign exchange gain (including realized and unrealized portions) amounted to

$177,178 thousand and $9,900 thousand, respectively.
Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk management and interest rate exposure of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate risk of derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding assets with variable
interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of assets outstanding at
the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of change is expressed as the
interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to management internally, which
also represents the Group management's assessment of the reasonably possible interest rate
change.

If the interest rate had increased or decreased by 1%, the Group's net income before tax would
have decreased or increased by $4,300 thousand and $6,766 thousand for the years 2022 and
2021, respectively, with all other variable factors remaining constant. This was mainly due to
the Group's borrowing at variable rates.
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(v) Fair value

D

Categories and fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities,
including the information on fair value hierarchy, were as follows; however, except as
described in the following paragraphs, for financial instruments not measured at fair
value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the fair value, and lease liabilities,
disclosure of fair value information is not required:

December 31, 2022
Carrying Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Unlisted stocks (domestic and
overseas) $ 449 - - 449 449
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 5,809,475 - - - -
Notes and accounts

receivables 2,844,748 - - - -
Financial assets measured at

amortised cost - current 9,775 - - - -
Refundable deposits 104,581 - - - -

3.660 - - - -

Subtotal 8,772,239 - - - -

Total $_ 8,772,688 - - 449 449

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost

Short-term borrowings $ 430,000 - - - -
Notes and accounts payable 2,841,916 - - - -
Other payables 437,178 - - - -
Lease liabilities 358,134 - - - -
Dividend payable 20,665 - - - -
Total $__ 4,087,893 - - - -
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December 31, 2021
Carrying Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Unlisted stocks (domestic and
overseas) $ 442 - - 442 442
Financial assets measured at
amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 3,438,978 - - - -
Notes and accounts
receivables 4,613,314 - - - -
Refundable deposits 76,437 - - - -
3,660 - - - -
Subtotal 8,132,389 - - - -
Total $ 8,132,831 - - 442 442

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost

Short-term borrowings $ 676,592 - - - -
Notes and accounts payable 3,543,214 - - - -
Other payables 298,355 - - - -
Lease liabilities 270,020 - - - -
Dividend payable 5,695 - - - -
Total $_ 4.,793.876 - - - -

Valuation techniques and assumptions used in fair value determination — non-derivative
financial instruments

Financial instruments held by the Group constitute equity instruments that are not
publicly quoted in an active market. The fair value of those financial instruents is
estimated using the market comparables approach. The main assumptions of the market
comparables approach are based on the after-tax net profit or equity net worth of the
investee and the earnings or book value multipliers derived from market quotations of
comparable listed companies. This estimate has been adjusted for the discounting effect
of the lack of market liquidity of the equity securities. The amount of equity investment
estimated by the Group using the market comparable company method to estimate the
fair value is not significant, and thus there is no intention to disclose quantitative
information.
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3)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group used the fair value that can be observed in the market to measure the value of
assets and liabilities. Fair value levels are based on the degree in which the fair value can
be observed and grouped in to Levels 1 to 3 as follows:

a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or
liabilities.

b) Level 2: inputs, other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

¢)  Level 3: inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

There was no such situation that the Group reclassified the financial instruments from
one level to another during the reporting periods.

4)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Unquoted equity

instruments
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 442
Effect of changes in exchange rates 7
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 449
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 444
Effect of changes in exchange rates (2)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 442

Financial risk management

(O]

Overview

The Group is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
1) Credit risk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market risk

This note has information on risk exposure and the objectives, policies, and process of risk
measurement and management. For detailed information, please refer to the related note on
each risk.
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Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. The management is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Group's risk management policies and reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees how the management monitors whether risk is in compliance
with the Group's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board of
Directors is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the Board of Directors.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's
receivables from customers and investment securities.

1)  Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the Group's
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk, particularly during
deteriorating economic circumstances. The Group's receivables in 2022 and 2021 are
not concentrated on any group of customers.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms
and conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external ratings, when available,
and, in some cases, bank references. Purchase limits are established for each customer,
which represent the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the Board
of Directors; these limits are reviewed regularly. For those customers who fail to meet
the Group's benchmark creditworthiness, transactions can only be done on a prepayment
basis.
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2)  Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits and other financial instruments is measured
and monitored by the Group's finance department. Since the Group's contractually
obligated counterparties are banks and financial institutions with good credit, there are
no compliance issues, and therefore, there is no significant credit risk.

3)  Guarantees and endorsements

The policy allows the Group to provide a financial guarantee to its subsidiaries which
DIMTW holds over 50% of equity interest. Please refer to note 13 for detailed
information on the Group as of December 31, 2022.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always
has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of the expected cash flows on financial
liabilities (other than trade payables) over the succeeding 60 days. The Group also monitors
the level of expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. This excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, and equity prices, will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

1)  Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group’s
entities, primarily the New Taiwan Dollar (NTD), US Dollar (USD), Hong Kong Dollar
(HKD), Euro (EUR) and China Yuan (CNY). The currencies used in these transactions
are the NTD, USD, HKD, EUR and CNY.

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

2)  Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring borrowing interest rate is close to market interest
rate and reviewing interest rate interval with banks periodically.
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Due to the fluctuation in market interest rate is little, the radiance of interest rate will not
cause material cash flow risk.

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor, and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary
shares, capital surplus, retained earnings, and non-controlling interests of the Group. The Board of
Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

As of December 31, 2022, there were no changes in the Group's capital management approach.
Financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Group's reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities for the years 2022 and 2021
were as follows:

For right-of-use assets under leases, please refer to note 6 (g).

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash changes

Foreign
January 1, exchange Lease December
2022 Cash flows movement Additions Decreases modification 31, 2022
Short term borrowings $ 676,592 (246,592) - - 430,000
Lease liabilities 270,020 (204,985) 15,543 278,202 (634) (12) 358,134
Total liabilities from financing
activities $ 946,612 (451,577) 15,543 278,202 (634) 12) 788,134
Non-cash changes
Foreign
January 1, exchange Lease December
2021 Cash flows movement Additions Decreases modification 31, 2021
Short term borrowings $ 700,592 (24,000) - - - 676,592
Lease liabilities 361,736 (190,402) (5.363) 113,420 (7,139) (2.232) 270,020
Total liabilities from financing
activities $ 1,062,328 (214,402) (5,363) 113,420 (7,139) (2,232) 946,612

(7) Related-party transactions

(a)

(®)

Parent company and ultimate controlling party
The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
Names and relationship with related parties

In this consolidated financial report, the related parties having transactions with the Group are listed
as below:

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
ITG Air & Sea GmbH An associate
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(c) Significant transactions with related parties

(@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Operating revenue
The amounts of significant sales by the Group to related parties were as follows:

2022 2021
Associates $ 360,715 481,065

The Group recorded the above revenue deriving from providing air and ocean freight services
to the associates.

The conditions and terms to related parties are the same as those offered to other customers.

Collection and payment on behalf of other parties (recognized as deduction of operation
income)

2022 2021
Associates $ 142,560 169,265

The Group collects the above income deriving from imported freight and shipment on behalf of
the associates.

The conditions and terms on business transactions to related parties are the same as those
offered to other vendors.

Receivables from related parties
The details of the Group's receivables from related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Accounts Type of related parties 2022 2021
Accounts receivable Associates $ 9.099 9.599

As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, no allowance for loss is required for the above-
mentioned related parties.

Payables to related parties
The details of the Group's payables to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Accounts Type of related parties 2022 2021
Accounts payable Associates $ 4,265 8,193
(Continued)
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(d) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 68,673 57,894
Post-employment benefits 787 812
$ 69,460 58,706
Assets pledged as security
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security were as follows:
Liabilities secured by December 31, December 31,
Assets pledged as security pledged 2022 2021
Restricted certificates of Guarantee for the Group's
deposit (recorded under other logistics operations
current assets) $ 1,063 949
Restricted certificates of Guarantee for customs
deposit (recorded under other
non-current assets) 3,000 3,000
Restricted certificates of Guarantee for the Group's
deposit (recorded under other logistics operations
non-current assets) 660 660
Property, plant and equipment:
Land Guarantee for long-term and
short-term borrowings and
the Group's logistics
operations 41,792 41,792
Buildings " 15,416 15,961
$ 61,931 62,362

Commitments and contingencies

(a) The Group provided certificates of deposit, land, and buildings as collateral to the banks for the
performance of freight forwarding contracts in 2022 and 2021. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
the guarantees from the banks were $349,527 thousand and $176,232 thousand, respectively, and the

used amounts were $226,246 thousand and $161,812 thousand, respectively.

(b)  As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group had outstanding guaranteed notes deposited totaling
$142,127 thousand and $56,232 thousand, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
guarantees recorded for customs duty were $5,739 thousand and $5,032 thousand, respectively.
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In 2014, a customer of the consolidated subsidiary had an unclaimed shipment. After notifying the
customer and failing to obtain any response from it, resulting in the consolidated subsidiary unable
to collect the storage fee from the customer in April 2014, the consolidated subsidiary held an
auction and sold the shipment in June 2014. However, the customer filed a lawsuit against the
consolidated subsidiary in June 2016 for selling the shipment without the customer’s consent and
demanded the compensation of USD1,414 thousand. Shenzhen Qianhai Cooperation Zone People’s
Court held the first hearing in October 2016. On June 4, 2019, the Court ruled that the consolidated
subsidiary should compensate the customer the amount of CNY5,615 thousand. However, the
consolidated subsidiary disagreed with the ruling and filed an appeal to the court on June 19, 2019.
The court, on the other hand, rescinded the original judgement, and handed the case over to the
Guang zhou maritime court of PRC on March 15, 2021. The Guangzhou Maritime Court held a
hearing on November 10, 2021, and the final result has not yet been determined. The Group assessed
that the consolidated subsidiary is likely being liable for compensation, thus recognized the possible
loss in 2021.

Since 2021, the Group is defending a lawsuit filed by its former employees for her alleged wrongful
treatment during her tenure and the termination of employment. The case has been resolved through
mediation with total settlement USD1,000 thousand, among which USD637 thousand was paid by
insurance and USD363 thousand was paid by the Group which was recorded under administrative
expenses.

(10) Losses Due to Major Disasters: None

(11) Subsequent Events: None

(12) Other
The following is a summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses by
function:
By function| Year ended December 31, 2022 Year ended December 31, 2021
Operating | Operating Operating | Operating
By item costs exp Total costs expenses Total
[Employee benefits
Salary 42,067| 2,646,440 2,688,507 39,953 | 2,080,028 | 2,119,981
Labor and health insurance 1,446 217,879 219,325 1,086 169,445 170,531
Pension 1,104 40,057 41,161 1,089 35,338 36,427
Others 1,278 154,255 155,533 1,440 125,526 126,966
IDepreciation 18,018 231,691 249,709 4,742 222,382 227,124
IAmortization - 3,447 3,447 - 277 277
(Continued)
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(13) Other disclosures
(a) Information on significant transactions

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group:

(i)  Loans extended to other parties

Highest balance Range of | Purposes of | Transaction
of financing to Actual usage | interest  [fund financing] Maximum
ot amount rates for the Reasons for| Allowance] Individual | limit of fund
Nameof [ Name of Related| during the | Ending | during the |during the| ~borrower n | short-term | forbad | _Collateral | fundingloan | financing
No.| tender | borrower |Accountname| party period balance |period (Note 3)| period |  (Note 1) | two parties | financing | debt [Name | Value |timits (Note 2)|  (Note 2)
1 [HOLDING [The Company ~|Accounts Yes 28864 26,067 26,067 - @) - yperating - - 261,157 1,044,628
receivable from apital
elated parties
2 JFsC The Company ~ |Accounts Yes 50| 119,550 119,550 - ) - dperating. - - 136,954 547818
eceivable from capital
lated parties

Note I: Purpose of fund financing for the borrower.
(1) Business between the two parties.

(2) Funds required for operations

Note 2: Based on the Company's guidelines, the allowable aggregate amount of financing provided to others cannot exceed 40% of the Company's stockholders' equity, and the maximum financing provided to an individual
counterparty cannot exceed 10% of the Company's stockholders’ equity.

Note 3: The amounts were eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Guarantees and endorsements for other parties

Counter-party of | Limitation on
guarantee or amount of  [Highest balance| Balanee of Property accumulated | Maximum |Parent company| Subsidiary | Endorsements/
uarantees and | for guarantees | guarantees pledged on amountsof | amount for | endorsements/ | endorsements/ |~ guarantees to
fonshi and and guarantees | guaranteesand | guarantees | guarantees to | guarantees to | third parties on
with the | for a specific | endorsements | endorsements | Actual usage and |endorsements tonet] ~ and | third parties on |third partis on|  behalf of
Name of Company | enterprise ring the  [as of reportinglamount during| endorsements | worth of the latest behalfof  [behalf of parent| companies in
No. | Guarantees | Name | (Notel) (Note 2) period date the period | (Amount) |financial statements| (Note 2) subsidiary company | Mainland China
0 [The Company [DIMVN 2 272,160 6.678 4,456 4,456 4,456 007 % 544,320 Y N N
0 [The Company [DIMIN & 2 272,160 322 313 313 313 001 % 544,320 Y N N
IpIMTH
0 [rhe Company [DIMKR 272,160 24,129 - - - - % 544,320 Y N N
0 [rhe Company [pILTW 2 272,160 282 250 250 250 - % 544,320 Y N N

Note 1: Relationship with the Company are listed as below;
(1) A company with which it does business
(2) A company in which the public company directly and indirectly holds more than S0 percent of the voting shares.
(
)

A company that directly and indirectly holds more than 50 percent of the voting shares in the public company.

A company in which the public company holds, directly or indirectly, 90% or more of the voting shares.

(5) A company that fulfils its contractual obligations by providing mutual endorsements/guarantees for another company in the same industry or for joint builders for purposes of undertaking a construction project
(6) A company that all capital contributing shareholders make endorsements/ guarantees for their jointly invested company in proportion to their shareholding percentages.

@)

Companies in the same industry provide among themselves joint and several securities for a performance guarantee of a sales contract for pre-construction homes pursuant to the Consumer Protection Act for each
other.

Note 2: Based on the Company's guidelines, the allowable aggregate amount of guarantee and endorsement provided to others cannot exceed 40% of the Company's issued capital, while the guarantee and endorsement for an

individual counterparty cannot exceed 20% of the Company's issued capital

(iii) Information regarding securities held as of December 31, 2022 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures)
Relationship Ending balance Maximum
Name of | Category and name | with the security Number of | Carrying | Percentage of] investment in
holder of security issuer Recorded account shares amount ownership Fair value 2022 Note
[The Company |Global Sky Express - [Financial assets at fair value through other 10,000 100 1.00 % 100 100
[Taiwan Lid lcomprehensive income —non-current
[The Company [Evergreen Air Cargo - [Financial assets at fair value through other 29,000 290 0.02 % 290 290
IService Corporation lcomprehensive income —non-current
DIMSG [Burwill Holdings Ltd. = [Financial asscts at fair value through other 22,000 e 19 19
lcomprehensive income —non-current
DIMSG [Stamford Land = [Financial asscts at fair value through other 5,000 o[ - 0 a0
lcomprehensive income —non-current

(iv) Accumulated holding amount of a single security in excess of NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.
(v) Acquisition of real estate in excess of NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.

vi) Disposal of real estate in excess of NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.
P p P
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(vii) Sales to or purchases from related parties in excess of NT$100 million or 20% of DIMTW's issued share capital:

Transaction details Arm's-lengt i Account / note receivable (payable)
Name of Purchase Percentage of total | Credit Credit Percentage of total accounts /
company _|Counter-p: ionship | _(Sale) Amount | purchases (sales) | period | Unit price | period Balance | notes receivable (payable) |Remark

[DIMTW | IDIMUS ISub-Subsidiary [Freight (376.210] 1506 % Note | - 22,880 6 %

frevenue

DIMUS [DIMTW [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight 376,210 481 % Note | - (22.880) @ %

lexpense

DIMTW IDIMCN ISub-Subsidiary [Freight (155,344 6 Note | - 11.886 3 %

Irevenue

IDIMCN IDIMTW ISub-Subsidiary [Freight 155,344 3 % Note | - (11.886) @ %

lexpense

DIMCN DIMTW [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight (188,897 Note 2 Note | - 14,658 3 %

Irevenue

IDIMTW IDIMCN [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight 188,897 Note 2 Note | - (14.658) 8 %

lexpense

DIMKR IDIMTW [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight (171,843 Note 2 Note | - 8,147 7T %

frevenue

DIMTW IDIMKR ISub-Subsidiary [Freight 171,843 Note 2 Note 1 - (8.147) ) %

lexpense

IDIMUS IDIMTW [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight (172,121 Note 2 Note 1 B 14,588 2 %

Irevenue

DIMTW | pIMUS [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight 172,121 Note 2 Note | - (14,588) ®) %

lexpense

FSCHK. IDIMTW [Subsidiary [Freight (184,559 Note 2 Note 1 - 52,855 2 9

Irevenue

IDIMTW [FSCHK [Subsidiary [Freight 184,559 Note 2 Note 1 - (52.855) (30) %

lexpense

[ZIDCN IDIMTW [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight (105,621 Note 2 Note 1 - 9418 T %

Irevenue
DIMTW [zibeN [Sub-Subsidiary [Freight 105,621 Note 2 Note | - (9418
lexpense

[FSCHK [zipeN [Subsidiary and [Freight (153,802 1043 % Note | - 52443 21
[Sub-Subsidiary [revenue

[ZIDCN [FSCHK. [Subsidiary and [Freight 153,802 240 % Note | - (52.443) 13) %
ISub-Subsidiary [expense

[FSCHK. IDESCN [Subsidiary and [Freight (189.489) 1285 % Note 1 - 6.061 2 %
[Sub-Subsidiary [revenue

IDESCN [FSCHK. [Subsidiary and [Freight 189,489 417 % Note 1 - (6,061 @ %
ISub-Subsidiary [expense

[FSCHK IDIMCN [Subsidiary and [Freight (209,008 1418 % Note | - 9.375 4 %
[Sub-Subsidiary [revenue

DIMCN [FSCHK [Subsidiary and [Freight 209,008 Note | - (9.375) (3 %
[Sub-Subsidiary [expense

FSCHK [DIMUS| [Subsidiary and [Freight (184,612 1252 ¢ Note | - 6,610 3%
[Sub-Subsidiary [revenue

DIMUS [FSCHK [Subsidiary and [Freight 184,612 236 % Note | - (6.610) M %
[Sub-Subsidiary [expense

FSCHK IDIMSG [Subsidiary and [Freight (101,475 6.88 % Note 1 - 39334 6 %
[Sub-Subsidiary [revenue

DIMSG [FSCHK. [Subsidiary and [Freight 101475 737 % Note 1 - (39.334) 2 %
ISub-Subsidiary [expense

Note I: The freight was charged according to market price. No significant difference in terms and conditions from third-party vendors.
Note 2: The freight expenses were paid by DIMTW on behalf of its affiliates. Because the fieight expenses were not recognized as revenue nor cost, there was no calculation of the percentage of the
total purchases (sales).

(viii) Receivables from related parties in excess of NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital

Balance of Past-due recei from |S q ly received (A
Name of receivables from [ Turnover related party amount of receivable | for bad
Nature of
Company Counter-party | Relati ip [ related party (note 4)| rate Amount Action taken | from related party debts
[The Company [ZJDCN [Subsidiary 100,907 - % - - -
(Note 1)
IFSC [The Company  [Subsidiary 168,718 - % - - -
(Note 2)
FSC IDIL [Subsidiary 216,717 - % - - -
(Note 3)

Note 1:  Accounts receivable of $8,211 thousand and other receivables of $92,696 thousand.
Note 2: Loan from the subsidiary of $119,550 thousand and other receivables of $49,168 thousand.
Note 3:  Paid on behalf of DIMTW.
Note 4:  The amount was elimi d in the

d financial
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(ix) Financial derivative instrument transactions: None.

(x) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions

Existing Transaction details
relationship with Percentage of total
No. Name of Name of counter-party Amount Terms of | consolidated revenue
(Note1)| _company | counter-party (Note 2) Account name (Notes3and 4) | _tradin or total assets

0 [The Company |DIMCN 1 [Freight revenue — received on behalf 155,344 [Negotiated 038 %

0 [The Company |DIMUS 1 [Freight revenue—received on behalt 376,210 [Negotiated 091 %

0 [The Company |FSCHK 1 [Freight expense —deduction of freight revenue 184,559 [Negotiated 045 %

0 [The Company |DIMCN 1 [Freight expense—deduction of freight revenue 188,897 [Negotiated 046 %

0 [The Company [ZJDCN 1 [Freight expense— deduction of freight revenue 105,621 [Negotiated 026 %

0 [The Company _|DIMUS 1 [Freight expense— deduction of freight revenue 172,121 |Negotiated 042 %

0 [The Company |DIMKR 1 [Freight expense — deduction of freight revenue 171,843 [Negotiated 042 %

0 [The Company |FSCHK 1 126,124 [Negotiated 031 %

T [FsC [The Company 2 [Accounts receivable—related parties 168,718 [Negotiated 1.60 %

1 [The Company 2 [Prepayments —related parties 717,883 [Negotiated 682 %

1 pIC 3 [Accounts receivable—related partics 216,717 [Negotiated 2.06 %

3 [The Company 2 [Prepayments— related parties 2,789,421 [Negotiated 26.51%

3 DIMCN 3 [Sales revenue 209,008 [Negotiated 051 %

3 [DIMSG 3 [Sales revenue 101,475 [Negotiated 025 %

3 ZIDCN 3 [Sales revenue 153,802 [Negotiated 037 %

3 [DIMUS 3 [Sales revenue 184,612 [Negotiated 045 %

3 DFSCN 3 [Sales revenue 189,489 [Negotiated 046 %

Note 1:  Company numbering is as follows:
(1) Parent company is 0.
(2) Subsidiary starts from 1.
Note 2:  The number of the relationship with the transaction counterparty represents the following:
(1) 1 represents downstream transactions.
(2) 2 represents upstream transactions.
(3) 3 represents lateral transactions.
Note 3:  Only an transaction amount over $100,000 thousand and a balance amount over total consolidated assets 1% shall be disclosed.

Note 4: The amount was elimi d in the consolidated financial

(b) Information on investees

The following is the information on investees for the year 2022 (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

Tnitial investment (Amount) Ending balance Maximum | Netincome | Investment
Carrying, (losses) of
Name of the December 31, | December 31, Ratioof | amount |investment in |investee (Note | income (losses)
investor Name of investee Location Main businesses 2022 2021 Shares shares | (Note 12) 2022 12) (Note 12) | Notes
[The Company [DFSTW [Taiwan cean freight forwarding 15,444 15444 1,200000 Z 780.479 15.444 252,958 252,958
[The Company [HOLDING [Bermuda [Holding company 164,545 164845 3.089000( 1009 2611571 164,845 791,373 791,373
[The Company [DIMSG [singapore Slobal air and ocean freight 132,266 108362 5400000 100 % 595,797 132,266 53,630 53,630
[forwarder and logistics &
warchousing
The Company [DIL British Virgin Is.  [Holding company 472313 12313 Mo l) 100% 4169210 472,313 853.946 853.946
[The Company [Fsc [British Virginls.  [Settlement center 315 315 10,000 20 % 273,908 315 (3,569 14
The Company [FSCHK Hong Kong ettlement center 236 236 7,500 15 % 743,169 236] 1493168 223,975
[The Company [ITG GmbkH |Germany 3lobal air and ocean freight 183,547 183,547 6275 25 9% 241,671 183,547 199,467 49,866
forwarder
[The Company [pILTW [Taiwan [Logistics & warehousing 5,000 5,000 500,000 50 % 8,166 8,000 1329 1,064
[The Company [DFSSG [singapore [Logistics & warchousing 13452 - 600.000[ 100 %4 41085 13.482
The Company [DILHK Hong Kong [Logistics & warchousing - - - 100 % 51021 5,550
[The Company [DILSG [singapore [Logistics & warchousing 4215 - - 100 % 2,081 4215 (2,262
The Company [DIMMY I and ocean freight 65,516 - 250,000 100 % 200,614 65,516 57.541
forwarder
[The Company [DTLHK [Hong Kong [Trucking service 41,076 - 89.000| 100 % 51,239 41,076 1550
IDFSTW [FSCHK [Hong Kong ettlement center 235 235 7,500 676,816 235 1493168 223,975
IpFsTW IpiTw [raiwan [Logistics & warchousing 2,000 2000 (Note 1) 2042 2,000 1329 265
IpIL IDIMUS Jus.A. lobal air and ocean freight 238,686 238,686 4,961,000 975,186 238,686 206,947 206,947
forwarder
bt IpIMGB uk and ocean freight 12,589 12,589 300,000 379 (13,531 12,589 (8.908 (3,341
forwarder
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Initial investment (Amount) Ending balan Maximum | Netincome | Investment
(losses) of
Name of the December 31, | December 31, Ratio of investment in | investee (Note | income (losses)
investor Name of investee Location Main businesses 2022 2021 Shares shares | (Note 12) 2022 12) (Note12) | Notes
IpiL IMS [Hong Kong ILogistics & warchousing - - - 100% 3299467 - 48.470 48,470
IpIL IDIMSG [singapore lobal air and ocean freight - 23,904 - - - 23.904 62281 8651
[forwarder and logistics &
warchousing
IpIL IDIMHK [Hong Kong Slobal air and ocean freight - 427,348 - Y - 427,348 593219 593219
forwarder and logistics &
warehousing
IDMCHK IDIMHK [Hong Kong Slobal air and ocean fieight 427,348 - 300,000 9% 3392775 427,348 593.219 -
forwarder and logistics &
arehousing
IDMCHK [DFSHK [Hong Kong dcean freight forwarding - 71000 990 1989850 25393 572084 -
iMS [DivpH Philippines. Global air and ocean fieight 38,399 180,000 609 3321505 38,399 50,030 30,023
forwarder
iMS [piLuk Hong Kong [Logistics & warchousing - - - B B B 5550
3MS IDESSG. [singapore ILogistics & warchousing - 13,482 - - - 13,482 12,143 12,143
IDIMUS IDivuUs Us.A. [Brokerage service 13,532 13,532 1000|  100° 42,564 13,532 3,743 3,743
IDIMUS [B.C. Logistic, LLC  [US.A. 54,103 - - 85 % 20,320 54,103 2403 2,043
IDIMHK [FsC [British Virginls.  [Settlement center 954 954 30,000 60 % 897 954 (3,569 2,141
IDIMHK IDIMYN [Vietmam [Trucking service 2,090 2,090 - 39.423 2,090 19010 14257
IDIMHK [FSCHK [Hong Kong etlement center 550 550 17,500 35 % 1569856 ss0[ 1493168 522,609
[DIMPH 3SCHK [Hong Kong Settlement center - - - 100 % - - - -
IDIMSG = British VirginIs.~ [Settlement center 318 318 10,000 20 % 299 318 (714)
IDIMSG IDIMIN india Trucking service 5303 5,303 960,000 60 % 14,493 5303 7,840 4,704
HOLDING  [DIMTH [Thailand 3lobal air and ocean freight 7,642 7,642 735,000 499 71917 7,642 43850 21482
forwarder
HOLDING  [pIMPH [Philippines Slobal air and ocean freight 4,026 4,026 120,000 0% 2214340 4,026 50,030 20,007
forwarder
[HOLDING  [DIMAU |Australia Slobal air and ocean freight 16,460 16,460 60,000 100 % (30,170 16,460 6412 6412
forwarder
HOLDING  [DIMKR [Korea 3lobal air and ocean freight 19386 19,386 120000 100 % 118,770 19.386 39,114 39,114
forwarder
HOLDING ~ [piMCA |Canada ir freight forwarder 15,646 15,646 - 100 % 201,386 15.646 70,010 70,010
[HOLDING  [DIMNL etherlands Slobal air and ocean freight 11,644 11,644 Looo| 100 % 33,285 11,644 10,507 10,507
forwarder
HOLDING  [psLus Jusa [Logistics & warchousing 15,840 15,840 50000] 100 % 31443 15840 (
[HOLDING  [DTLHK [Hong Kong [Trucking service - 41,076 - - - - 1.550
HOLDING  [DIMMY [Malaysia Global air and ocean freight - 65,516 - B - - 57.541
forwarder
HOLDING  [DFSHK [Hong Kong cean freight forwarding - 25303 - B - - 572,084 572,007
[DIMPH [Peerless Express [Philippines [Trucking service 954 954 1,600,000 40 % - - 225 90
[Forwarders Corp.
IDIMPH [DFSPH [Philippines [Trucking service 5231 - 96.700 91 %) - - 9,649 §.745
[DIMPH [PMCHK [Hong Kong Settlement center - - - 100 % B - - -
IDFSSG. IDFSPH [Philippines [Trucking service 541 - 10,000 9% - - 904
IDILHK IDILSG [singapore. [Logistics & warchou - 215 - B - - (2,262
IDFSHK. [FSCHK [Hong Kong ettlement center 566 566 17,500 1,569,856 - 1,493,168 522,600
IFSCHK. IDIMGB UK lobal air and ocean freight 20,126 20,126 500,000 (6,692 - (8,908 (5.568
forwarder
Note I: The company was established as a limited company

Note 2: In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by Holding to the Company
of the s!

Note
Note

Note S: In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by GMS to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% s held by GMS to the Company.

In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 13.89% of the shares held by DIL to the Company.

Note 6:  In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100%
Note 7: InDe of the shares held by Holding to the Company.
Note 8:  In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100% of the shares held by DIL to DMCHK.

6 of the shares held by Holding to DMCHK.

of the shares held by DILHK to the Company

nber 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100

Note 9: In December 2022, the Group reorganized and transferred 100%
Note 10: Established in December 2022

Note 11: The amount was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements, except for ITG Air & Sea GmbH DIMPH.

Note 12: The carring amount and net income recognized were recognized based on audited financial statements of the subsidiary
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Information on investment in mainland China

(@

(i)

(iii)

The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information

Unit: thousand dollars
Beginning Ending
remittance remittance Direct/
balance- | Current remittance/ | balance- indircet Current
i i i i investment | Carrying |remittance of|
Method of | investment (amount) investment | Netincome or investments| Maximum | incomeand | amount | earnings in
Name of investee in Issued i (amount) from | Tnvested | Returned | (amount) from | (losses) of | (%)inthe |investmentin| losses current
Mainland China | Main businesses | capital | (Note 1) Taiwan amount | amount Taiwan investee | Company 2022 |Notes2and 3)] (Note2) | period
e Slobal air and ocean EXH P) 27718 - - 28| (14882 75 % 4119 ®6.161)] 156,963 B
feight forwarder USDI02) USDI02) )
IDILSHA [Cogisties & i E) 6.146 B B 6.146 B[ 9 % 5970 | (857
warchousing USD200) USD200) @
[pIvCN Slobal air and ocean 637 @ B B - B 97237 100 % 163377 97237 429905
freight forwarder 0]
IDITSZX [Cogisties & 09 @ - - B - @) 100 % T0.958 @s9| (1952
warchousing )
IDFSCN Siobal air and occan o777 @ - - - - 3930|100 % 0777 S3930|  338.487
freight forwarder )
IDiversified [Trucking service 2802 @) B B B B 26| 100 % 29,502 26| 22005
[Transportation (China) @
Co., Lid
Yuhang InfT Logistics_[Global air and ocean Wee6| @) - - - - 26395 B 9,667 Ge12| 2758
(Dalian) Co. Lid.  [freight forwarder @
[Diversified (Shangha) [Glabal air and ocean (RN ) B B B B T36| 100 % T3.654 3346 i
lintemational Logistics [freight forwarder @
Service Company Lid
[Diversified (Shenzhen) [Global air and ocean [EZE) ) - - - - @ 100 % B @821 Tass
linternational Logistics [reight forwarder 2)
Service Company Lid

Note I: The method of investment is divided into the following three methods
(1) Investing directly in Mainland China.
(2)  Through transferring the investment to third-region existing companies then investing in Mainland China. (through Bermuda and British Virgin Islands.),
(3)  Other methods

Note 2: Expeet for Yuhang Intl Logistics (Dalian) Co., Ltd. the amount was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
Note 3: The carring amount and net incor

cognized were recognized based on audited financial statements of the subsidiary

Limitation on investment in Mainland China

Unit: thousand dollars

Company Aggregate investment amount | Approved investment (amount) |Limitation on investment in Mainland|
remitted from Taiwan to by Ministry of Economic Affairs|China in accordance with regulations
name Mainland China at end of periol Investment Commission of Ministry of Economic Affairs
(Note2) (Note2) Investment C ission (Note 1)
IDIMTW 33,864 73,752 3,600,662
(USD1,102) (USD2,400)

Note 1: It represents 60% of the Company's net equity.
Note 2:  USD:NT$=1:30.730.
Significant transactions

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiaries in Mainland China, which were eliminated in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in “Information on significant transactions”.

Major shareholders:

Shares Percentage
Shareholder’s Name
IMEC ELECTRONICS CORPORATION 7,279,243 5.34 %

Shareholding
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DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(14) Segment information

(2)

(®)

General information

The Group has three reportable segments: Asia department, Americas department, and Europe
department.

The reportable department is a strategic business unit providing different products and services.
Because each strategic business unit requires different kinds of techniques and marketing tactics, it
should be separately managed. Segments adopt the same accounting policies as those listed in note
4. Segment income is evaluated based on income before tax and is used as the basis for performance
evaluation.

Information on income and loss, assets, liabilities, basis of measurement, and the reconciliation for
reportable segments

The Group uses the internal management report that the chief operating decision maker reviews as
the basis to determine resource allocation and make a performance evaluation. The internal
management report includes profit before taxation but does not include income tax expense and any
extraordinary activity. Because taxation and extraordinary activity are managed on a group basis,
they are not able to be allocated to each reportable segment. In addition, not all profit or loss from
reportable segments includes significant non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization. The
reportable amount is consistent with that of the report used by the chief operating decision maker.

The operating segment accounting policies are consistent with those described in note 4 "Significant
Accounting Policies".

The Group treated intersegment sales and transfers as third-party transactions. They are measured at
market price.

The Group’s operating segment information and reconciliation are as follows:

2022
Adjustments
and
Asia Americas Europe liminati Total
Revenue:
Revenue from external customers $ 29,866,253 10,175,399 1,133,158 - 41,174,810
Intersegment revenues 1,015,308 - - (1,015,308) -
Total revenue $__ 30,881,561 10,175,399 1,133,158 (1,015,308) 41,174,810
Reportable segment profit S 2,431,854 393,124 11,201 - 2,836,179
2021
Adjustments
and
Asia Americas Europe liminati Total
Revenue:
Revenue from external customers $ 29,502,143 7,994,181 1,490,592 - 38,986,916
Intersegment revenues 914,357 - - (914,357) -
Total revenue $ 30,416,500 7,994,181 1,490,592 (914,357) 38,986,916
Reportable segment profit S 2,413,782 295,261 16,993 - 2,726,036
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DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The material reconciling items of the above reportable segment are as below:

Total reportable segment revenue after deducting the intersegment revenue were $1,015,308
thousand and $914,357 thousand for the years 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Geographic information

The Group solely provides freight forwarding service. Please refer to the segment information for
the revenue. Non-current assets are classified by geographic location.

December 31, December 31,
Geographical information 2022 2021
Asia $ 740,804 726,554
Americas 276,871 144,018
Europe 9,568 11,765
Total $ 1,027,243 882,337

Non-current assets include property, plant and right-of-use assets and equipment, intangible assets,
and other assets. They do not include financial instruments, deferred income tax assets, and pension
plan assets.

Information about major customers

For the years 2022 and 2021, the Group had no major customer who constituted 10% or more of the
net sales.
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VII. Review of Financial Conditions, Operating Results, and Risk Management

7.1 Analysis of Financial Status

7.1.1 Analysis of Financial position

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Difference
2021 2022
Item Amount %
Current Assets 8,499,242 9,046,631 547,389 6.4
Property. Plant and Equipment 544,456 560,326 15,870 29
Intangible Assets 33,068 73,740 43,672 132.1
Other Assets 670,089 842,172 172,083 257
Total Assets 9,746,567 10,522,869 776,302 8.0
Current Liabilities 5,107,987 4,178,827 (929,160) -18.2
Non-current liabilities 203,606 219,301 15,695 77
Total Liabilities 5,311,593 4,398,128 913,465 -17.2
Capital stock 1,360,800 1,360,800 - -
Capital surplus 19,362 19,362 - -
Retained Earnings 3,485,623 4,644,353 1,158,730 33.2
Total Stockholders' Equity 4,434,974 6,124,741 1,689,767 38.1
7.1.2 Explanation for Material changes:
Other assets increased: due to the increase of accounts receivable
Non-current liabilities increased due to the increase of accounts payable
7.2 Analysis of Operating Results
7.2.1 Analysis of Financial performance
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year Difference
2021 2022
Item Amount %
Gross Sales 38,986,916 41,174,810 2,187,894 56.1
Less: Sales Returns - - - -
.Sales Allowances - - - -
Net Sales 38,986,916 41,174,810 2,187,894 56.1
Cost of Sales 33,164,591 35,233,829 2,068,938 6.2
Gross Profit 5,822,325 5,940,981 118,656 2.0
Operating Expenses 3,131,354 3,366,224 234,870 75
Operating Income 2,690,971 2,574,757 (116,214) -4.3
Non-operating Income and Expenses(net) 35,065 261,422 226,367 645.5
Income Before Tax 2,726,036 2,836,179 110,143 4.0
Tax Benefit (Expense) 368,405 295,984 (72,421) -19.7
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Net Income 2,357,631 2,540,195 182,564 7.7
Attributable to owners of the parent 2,310,477 2,538,625 228,148 9.9
Attributable to non-controlling interest 47,154 1,570 (45,584) -9.7

7.2.2 Analysis of change on the Gross Profit:

We do not calculate the volume-price differences because of our business characteristic.

7.2.3 Basis of the Sales volume forecast and Measures to be taken with regards to future finance
operation changes related to sales volume forecast:
The company does not provide public financial forecasts but establishes internal targets based on industry

conditions, market supply and demand, and the company's operational status.

7.3 Analysis of Cash Flow
Unit: NT$ thousand

Cash and Cash Net Cash Flow
Equivalents, from Operating Oiz’?:w Ca:(sSeSﬁLéirtp;lus Leverage of Cash Deficit
Beginning of Year Activities
3) (1*+(2)-(3)
() @) (
Investment Plans Financing Plans
3,438,978 3,785,797 1,415,300 | 5,809,475 - -

7.3.1 Cash Flow Analysis for the Current Year:

1. Operating activities: Net cash inflow from operating activities increased due to the decrease of Accounts
Receivable and increase of Accounts Payable from 2021.

2. Investment activities: Net cash outflow from Investment activities increased due to new acquisition in 2022.

3. Financial activities: Cash outflow from financial activities increased due to the distribution amount of cash
dividend increased this year.

7.3.2 Remedy for Cash Deficit and Liquidity Analysis: Not applicable.
7.3.3 Cash Flow Analysis for the Coming Year
Unit: NT$ thousand

Estimated )
Estimated Net
Cash and Cash Cash Flow from | Estimated Cash| Cash Surplus i
Equivalents, Py . I nf Defici Leverage of Cash Surplus (Deficit)
Beginning of pejrgtlmg Outflow (Inflow) (Deficit)
Y Activities 3) (1)+(2)-(3)
ear @)
M
Investment Plans Financing Plans

5,809,475 1,088,640 1,022,165 5,875,950 - -

7.4 Major Capital Expenditure Items

Dimerco is a lightweighted-assets company, capital expense to stockholders’ equity is below 35%, there’s no

effect on our operation.

7.5 Investment Policy in Last Year, Main Causes for Profits or Losses, Improvement Plans and the

Investment Plans for the Coming Year
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Dimerco’s investments are all long-term investments, due to global economic slowdown. In the
future, the company will continue expanding its China, Asia, Europe and USA market with a stable and long term
strategy.

7.6 Analysis of Risk Management
Risk Management is a necessary course for our company and affiliated company, all of the middle and senior
managers are the member of the Risk Management Organization. Risk management is centralized at

headquarter and expands to all affiliate companies in 17 countries. We expect to use effective risk management
to reduce strategy, operating and financial risks.

7.6.1 Risk management organization chart

‘ Executive Management Board ‘

‘ Risk Management Committee ‘

| Central Coordination Committee |

Air Freight || Ocean Freight H Contract Logistics

7.6.2 Organization explanation:

Risk Management Direct Committee:

*Reports to Board of Directors

*Composed of highest level managers

*Directs the improvement of risk control

*|dentifies and authorizes the priority sequence of risk

Work committee of Risk Management

*Assignment by Central service center

*Integrates organizations’ Enterprise Risk Management
*Improves and tracks the results of risk management

7.6.3 Effects of Changes in Interest Rates, Foreign Exchange Rates and Inflation on Corporate Finance,
and Future Response Measures

1.Income statement effect : Unit: NT$ thousand
Items Year 2022
Interest revenue/expense(net) 18,186
Exchange gain/loss(net) 177,178
Interest revenue/expense to net income rate 0.00%
Interest revenue/expense to net income rate(before tax) 0.64%
Exchange gain/loss(net) to net income rate 0.43%
Exchange gain/loss(net) to net income rate (before tax) 6.25%

(1) Interest rate

Our interest rate risk rises from the long-term debts related to operating activities.
(2) Foreign exchange rates

The company mainly engages in international air and ocean freight forward business. The company collects
payments in local currency or US dollar, while receivables and payables between stations and agents are dealt
through the central checkout system in US dollar, Euro or CNY. In order to reduce the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations, the exchange rate fluctuation factors are taken into account when collecting money from customers.
In addition, the company's central checkout system is received and paid in US dollars or Euros, and the accounts
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are reconciled and settled every half a month to a month, reducing the time factor on exchange rate fluctuations
influence.

(3) Inflation
The impact of inflation does not currently have a significant impact on the company’s profits and business
operations.

4. Measures for Future Response:

(1) Measures for Interest Rate Fluctuations:
The company's financial personnel hold meetings at least once a month to discuss trends in interest rates and
exchange rates, closely monitoring market fluctuations. In the future, we will continue to observe volatility in the
interest rate market and make prompt adjustments to our cash and debt positions.

(2) Measures for Exchange Rate Fluctuations:
The company relies on regional financial managers as the core team to track foreign currency positions of
subsidiaries on a bi-weekly basis. We engage in purchasing stronger currencies and utilize forward exchange
contracts to mitigate exchange rate risks arising from a ssets and liabilities.

(3)Measures for Inflationary Changes:
Currently, our business is not affected by inflationary changes.

7.6.4 Policies, Main Causes of Gain or Loss and Future Response Measures with Respect to High-risk,
High-leveraged Investments, Lending or Endorsement Guarantees, and Derivatives Transactions
1. The company did not engage in any high-risk or high-leveraged investments as of the publish of this manual.
2. The company did not engage in any lending activities.
3. The Company’s “Procedures of Endorsement Guarantee.” Rules that the limit amount of total endorsement
guarantee is 40% of capital and limit amount to single corporation is 20% of capital.

2023/3/31 Unit: NT$ thousands
Company in endorseme
Name of the guaranteed Limit |endorsement Ending nt Accumulated "
Number . . balance of limit amount of
endorsement Relationship | amount | guarantee guarantee endorsement
-~ _|endorsement endorsement
guarantee (father-son | tothe |balance-high balance(us | guarantee amount
Name guarantee guarantee
company -grandson |company| est amount balance e the to net assets rate
structure) assets)
0 Dimerco DIMVN 2 272,160 4,416 4,416 4,416 0.09% 544,320
0 Dimerco | oIMIN 2 272160| 308 308 308 0.01% 544,320
&DIMTH ! . ’
0 Dimerco DILTW 2 272,160 250 250 250 - 544,320

7.6.5 Future Research & Development Projects and Corresponding Budget
The company’s R & D expenditure proportion of the most recent two years is as below. The company
expects to invest R & D expenses of NT $ 103,300 thousand and improve self-developed ERP system in

Y2023.

R & D expenditure accounted for turnover ratio table: Unit: NT$ thousands
Year Research Expenditure Rate to Operating Income
2022 116,900 0.3%
2023 103,300 0.3%

Our development and research department includes system design and information integration, integration of
development and action techniques, big data, Al, Machine learning and Business Intelligence and will be
elevating cyber security safety measures. The main projects are as below:
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Name

Explanation

MyDimerco cooperative service platform

With a more optimized interactive interface
system or mobile version, the Company helps
the customer learn the whole transportation
management process. It includes the process
of sending the raw materials to the factory and
the process of sending finished products that
are processed and packaged to the market
distribution centers around the world. In
addition to cargo tracking, the Company also
provide customers with understanding of
shipment volume and price analysis, real-time
online reporting, and other services to quickly
and effectively analyze and achieve customer
critical performance indicators.

POMS, Purchase Order Management System

In 2017, Dimerco demonstrated its IT
capability by launching an intelligent
management platform POMS (Purchase
Order Management System), dedicated to
enhancing the overall efficiency of our supply
chain management focused on our customers’
orders. Not only does POMS connect with
customers’ purchase order management
systems, and synchronize with the Dimerco
Value Plus System® for online booking, but it
also enables customers to keep track of
real-time information on sales, shipping,
purchasing and warehousing.

Cross-Border eCommerce EDI Integration

Cross border e-commerce has advanced from
a stage of rapid rise to booming development
in recent years. Dimerco has reinforced its
organizational power to develop new business
by forming an action team, integrating sales
and customer services around the world, and
continued to win over a number of
multinational companies and cross border
e-commerce companies. Its self-developed
Dimerco Value Plus System® allies
customers, international logistics providers
(referring to Dimerco) and local couriers,
performing electronic data interchange (EDI)
to help customers synchronize all logistics
information with local couriers.Ultimately, the
Company successfully achieves the fastest
delivery of goods from warehouses to
customers within their required timeframe.

eCallFreight® System — an intelligent logistics
front end system

To integrate the door-to-door services of
international transportation and mobile
logistics system, Dimerco launched the
development of a truck dispatch management
system called the“eCallFreight® System” at
the beginning of 2015, strengthening the
connections between truck dispatch, pickup
and distribution services in the front-end and

-261-




back-end of international logistics. By
implementing this solution, the Company
cooperated with local logistics partners by
using loT (Internet of Things) to unify data
streams and information flows to achieve
digitalization. Meanwhile, the Company
established a substantial database to improve
the safety of cargo freight, and maximize
operational efficiency and quality of service.

Value+ Mobile Assistance APP(VMA)

Provide field personnel with more convenient,
faster, and easier access of import and export
goods shipment data at any time and any
place. Update relevant milestones and upload
photograph. In addition, it is also equipped
with the Vendor Mode, a real-time feedback
function for cargo Proof of Delivery information
developed specifically for field or outsourced
truck drivers by Dimerco, allowing customers
to receive more timely cargo information.

eWMS APP

Through the mobile phone APP coupled with a
handheld scanning device, warehouse
managers may engage in simpler and more
intuitive operations according to customers’
different needs. The actual operations and
system updates are integrated to accelerate
and ensure smoother operating processes
and reduce operational errors.

Miles Do APP

In order to prevent problems with air import
and export and enhance operational speed,
this APP all-in-one features, including data
cross-checking, printing label, and milestone |
order to provide service contents with higher
quality.

Dimerco MFA(Multi-Factor Authentication)

In order to ensure ERP system login security.
The Dimerco MFA has been self-developed.
Verification codes can be obtained via the
APP or e-mail in order to ensure the identity of
the user at login and reduce information
security risks.

DimBot

By integrating Machine Learning and Al, the
computer will be able to assist the primary
user in completing daily operations, obtain
correct flight information from Airline websites,
automatically update the ERP system, and
automatically send notifications in the event of
abnormal situations. In order to reducing
users’ usual work, the efficiency of information
acquisition can also be obtained, thereby
providing higher quality and faster services.

MyHome Plus App

To provide customers with better service,
Dimerco has developed the MyHome Plus
App for its employees, allowing them to easily
and quickly access important company
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information and communication through their
mobile phones. The app includes functions
such as important company activity
messages, internal news releases, Freight
Market Forecast, eAWB Monitor, contact
information for major branches, holiday and
attendance status inquiries, etc. Through
these functions, employees can quickly
understand the current market situation,
provide customers with a better pricing
foundation, and assist customers in making
more suitable arrangements for their cargo
and services.

RPA (Robotic Process Automation) Process | With years of cultivating digital capabilities,
Automation Dimerco has positioned 2023 as the year of
digital transformation and established an RPA
seed team to conduct in-depth research on
global logistics service processes. By utilizing
RPA software, the team has achieved unified
and digitalized information, enhancing
operational and management efficiency, as
well as service levels.

7.6.6 Effects of and Response to Changes in Policies and Regulations that affects Corporate Finance
Not applicable

7.6.7 Effects of and Response to Changes in Technology and in Industry Related to Corporate Finance
and Sales
Not applicable

7.6.8 The Impact of Changes in Corporate Image on Corporate Risk Management, and the Company’s
Response Measures
Not applicable

7.6.9 Expected Benefits from, Risks Related to and Response to Mergers and Acquisition Plans

Not applicable

7.6.10 Expected Benefits from, Risks Related to and Response to Factory Expansion Plans

Not applicable

7.6.11 Risks Related to and Response to Concentration of Purchasing Sources and Customer
Concentration
Not applicable

7.6.12 Effects of, Risks Related to and Response to Large Share Transfers or Changes in Shareholdings

by Directors, Supervisors, or Shareholders with Shareholdings of over 10%

Not applicable
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7.6.13 Effects of, Risks Related to and Response to Changes in Control of the Company

Not applicable

7.6.14 Litigation or Non-litigation Matters that may materially affect Stockholders’ Equity or Stock Price

Not applicable

7.6.15 Other Major Risks

Not applicable

7.7 Other Critical Matters

Not applicable

VIII. Special Disclosure

8.1 Summary of Affiliated Companies

1. Relevant information of affiliated companies
(1) Organization chart of affiliated companies, see page 272

(2) Information of Affiliated companies:
Corporate Name Code Establishment Address Paiq-in Main Operation
Date Capital
. . - Ocean and air freight
(E,)_"T(e)'clj rﬁ'{ezw""amers DIMHK 1977.05 g‘e’ﬁgeﬁf‘os' 1Ksé ., Tower 8, Billion 277,964forwarding, distribution
o } ’ 9 9 and warehousing
Dimerco : Ocean and air freight
Express( Singapore ) Pte. |DIMSG 1980.08 |80 Marine Parade Road, #10-02 Parkway 120,708|forwarding, distribution
Parade, Singapore .
Ltd and warehousing
Diversified Freight System 80 Marine Parade Road, #12-02 Parkway Distribution and
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. DFSSG 2018.12 Parade, Singapore 13,753 warehousing
Dimerco Express (UK) Office 224-226, The Mille, 1000 Great Ocean and air freight
Limited DIMGB 1980.04 West Road, United Kingdom 34,023 forwarding
Dimerco Express (U.S.A) |nyus 1992.01  |955 Dillon Drive, WoodDale, IL, USA 211,456|00€an and air freight
Corp. forwarding
Foreign Settlement P.0.Box 957, Offshore Incorporations Central account
9 L FSC 1999.10 Centre, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin 1,573
Company Limited settlement
Islands
Diversified Freight System DFSTW 1973.05 11l_=.-1, NL_).160, Sec. 6, Minquan E. Rd., 12,000 QOcean f_reight
Corp Neihu, Taiwan forwarding
" . . Rm. W1010, 1F., No. 107, Hangxiang Rd., P
Diversified International |py) 7y 2021.01.27 |Dayuan Dist., Taoyuan City, Taiwan 10,000| Pistribution and
Logistics Co., Ltd. warehousing
(R.O.C))
Dimerco Express Holding " 3rd Floor, Par-La-Ville Palace, 14, "
Co., Ltd. Holding 1995.11 Par-La-Ville Road, Hamilton, Bermuda 91,648|Holding company
Dimerco Logistics 30th Factory (A position) No.390, Aidu Distribution and
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. DILSHA 1998.06 Road, China 5970 warehousing
Dimerco Zhongjing Int'l 2205 floor A. Tower Wanda Plaza, No. 93 Global air and ocean
Express Co., Ltd. ZJDCN 1992.08 Jiang, China 54,928 freight forwarder
Diversified International " . .
Logistics (Shanghai) Co., |DILWGQ 2018.05 30th Factory(A position) No.390, Aidu 13,684 Global air and ocean

Ltd.

Road, China

freight forwarder
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Diversified Freight System

Room A & B, 18/F., Tower B, Billion

Ocean freight

Limited DFSHK 1984.08 Centre, Hong Kong 54,049 forwarding
Dimerco Express ( Phils.) 3F DPC Place, 2322 Chino Roces Avenue, Ocean and air freight
Inc. DIMPH 1994.07 Makati City, Philipines 8,163 forwarding
Dimerco Express No.14, Jalan Pjs 7/21, Bandar Sunway, Ocean and air freight
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. DIMMY 1984.04 Malaysia 3,073 forwarding
Dimerco Express DIMNL 1998.08  |Boeingavenue 213 - 215, Netherlands 17,982|0cean and air freight
Netherlands B. V. forwarding
Dimerco Express Suite 5, 15 Forest Road, Hurstville, Ocean and air freight
(Australia) Pty Ltd DIMAU 1994.02 Australia 49,182 forwarding
Dimerco Express Korea i Ocean and air freight
Corp. DIMKR 1999.03 Room 1501-1502, Building E, Korea 18,192 forwarding
82‘:;”“’ Express (Canada) | p 1990.11  |5100 Orbitor Dr., Suite 201, Canada 1,215|Air freight forwarding
Dimerco Express Unit 2003-3 & 2004, 20th Floor, Rasa Ocean and air freight
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. DIMTH 1991.09  I1ower 1, 555, Thailand 13,736t rwarding
Diversified Transportation Gridlines 13003E -13004E, 13 Floor, Hong .
(HK & China) Co., Ltd. DTLHK 2001.01 Kong 39,004 |Transportation
Diversified International .
'(r:ransté)rtalion (Shanghai) |DIMCN 2004.07 Sgg?1c1r?i1r\2104 No.1088, Pudong South 163,377 fGr(':gb;' g:ﬁa"ggea“
0., Ltd. ’
Dimerco International DILHK 2019.01 Gridlines 13003E -13004E, 13 Floor, Hong _|Distribution and
Logistics Corporation . Kong warehousing
Diversified International Distribution and
Service Logistics System |DSLUS 2005.02 455 Eccles Ave. USA 15,365 warehousin
Corporation 9
Diversified International .
'(I':ranstsnation (Shanghai) [DFSCN 2004.07 Eggg‘ 8}?:31 104 No.1088, Pudong South 59,777 %?::tl g;\;:sjgfea"
0., Ltd. !

Dimerco Vietfracht (JV) 07th Floor, V-COALIMEX Building, Distribution and
Co., Ltd. DIMVN 1995.03 No0.29-31, Vietnam 2,074 warehousing
Dimerco International - P
Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., |DILSZX 2006.09 RM901,Top AS(.:ent Logistics Bldg.,No.1-3 10,958 Dlslnbutloln and
Ltd Taohua Rd. China warehousing

Unit G, 2nd Floor, China Overseas
Diversified International Logistics Center, No. 15 Mingzhu Street, Global air and ocean
Logistics (Shenzhen) Co., [DILYTN 2004.07 Yantian Integrated Free Trade Zone, 1,293 freight forwarder

Donghai Community, Yantian Street, 9

Yantian District, Shenzhen, P.R.C.
Diversified Transportation Room A303, Building 1, No.21 Jinwen .
(China) Co., Ltd. DTLCN 2020.05 Road, China 29,802|Transportation

. ROOMS 3203A-3205 TOWER TWO P
Global Marketing & System GMS 2005.12 LIPPO CENTRE 89 QUEENSWAY Hong _ Dlslnbutloln and
Co., Ltd. Kong warehousing
Dimerco Express (India ) Hybrid Towers 2nd Floor, No. 5AC-101, . .
Pvt. Ltd. DIMIN 2005.12 2nd Main, India 6,061|Trucking service
Dimerco Customs
Brokerage Services Co., DCBUS 20121 955 Dillon Dr. Wood Dale, USA 13,532|Brokerage service
Ltd.
Foreign Settlement Room A & B, 18/F., Tower B, Billion Central account
Company Limited FSCHK 2012.01 Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon 1,586 settlement
pany Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Dimerco International P.0.Box957,0ffshore Incorporations
DIL 2015.12 Centre,Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin 472,313|Holding company

Logistics Corporation

Islands
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'Yuhang International X _— . Ocean and air freight
Logistics(Dalian) Co., Ltd YIL 2005.12 Rm.1503, Times Building, China 38,666 forwarding

Peerless Express PCPD Compound 2332 Chino Roces Ave. . .
Forwarders Corp. Peerless 2013.07 Ext., Bonifacio Taguig City, Philippines 954 Trucking service

BC Dimerco Logistics 4405 E BASELINE ROAD, SUITE 114, P—
Corporation DMCHK 2001.05 PHOENIX, AZ, 85042, USA 9,219|Distribution

(3) The names of the directors, supervisors, and general manager of each affiliate and the details of
their shareholding or capital contribution in such affiliate:

Job Title Holding, end of period(Remark 2) (Remark 3)
Name or
Company Name (Re:l;ark Representative Number of shares Percirf‘tage
ownership
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Dimerco Air Forwarders | Director |Chiou, Jiun-Rung -
(H.K.) Limited. Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Diversified Merchandise Company Limited 686,980 shares 100.00%
Director |Chiou, Jiun-Rung -
Dimerco LIU JY
Express( Singapore ) Director |SHYAN@JONO -
Pte. Ltd. LIU
Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
DIMERCO EXPRESS CORPORATION 5,400,000 shares 100.00%
Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Diversified Freight Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
System (Singapore) Pte. LU Jy
Ltd. Director [SHYAN@JONO -
LIU
Dimerco Express (India) Prt Ltd. 600,000 shares 100.00%
Director [Chien, Wen-Li
Diversified International | Director ‘éifg:g Sr'::ehng
Logistics Pte. Ltd. X X i
Director [Chua Siew Khim
Dimerco Express Corporation 1,000,000 shares 100.00%
Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Dimerco Express (UK) Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Limited Dimerco International Logistics Corporation 300,000 shares 37.50%
FOREIGN SETTLEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 500,000 shares 62.50%
. Director |Jeffrey Shih -
R}gé:?ggffss Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco Express Corporation 6,689,408 shares 66.89%
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Director |Chien, Wen-Li -
Foreign Settlement Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Company Limited Dimerco Air Forwarders (H.K.) Limited. 30,000 shares 60.00%
Dimerco Express Corporation 10,000 shares 20.00%
Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 10,000 shares 20.00%
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang 1 shares 0.00%
. . . Director |{Gao,Zhong-Yi 1 shares 0.00%
g;g;ﬂ?%igflght Director |Chien, Yao-Huai 1 shares 0.00%
Zhou,Xian-Long 1 shares 0.00%
Dimerco Express Corporation 1,199,996 shares 100.00%
Director [Chien, Wen-Li
Diversified International | Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang
Logistics Co., Ltd. Dimerco Express Corporation 800,000 shares 80%
Diversified Freight System Corp. 200,000 shares 20%
Dimerco Express Director |Robert Sio Lee -
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Holding Co., Ltd.

Director
Director
Director

Chien, Wen-Li
Debroah L. Devis
Arthur E.M. Jones

Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco Express Corporation 2,400,000 shares 100.00%
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Dimerco Logistics Director Eg;ﬁn,L\iltljen»Ll -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Y
Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd. 1 shares 100.00%
Director [Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Director |He,Zhen-Yu -
Dimerco Zhongjing Intl | Director |Gao,Zhong-Yi -
Express Co., Ltd. Director |Chen,Chun-Sheng -
DIMERCO AIR FORWARDERS (H.K.) LIMITED 1,380,000 shares 75.00%
XIN MAO CONGLOMERATE 460,000 shares 25.00%
Diversified International . Chien, Wen-Li
Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Director :
Ltd.
GLOBAL MARKETING & SYSTEM COMPANY 1 shares 100.00%
LIMITED
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Diversified Freight Director |Gao,Zhong-Yi R
System Limited Director |Chien, Yao-Huai
Diversified Merchandise Company Limited 136,862 shares 100.00%
Director [Shi,Zhen-Sheng -
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -

. Director |Chen, Jah Yang 1 shares 0.00%
Dlmgrco Express Director [Robert S. Lee 8 shares 0.00%
( Phils.) ,Inc.

Helbert C. Chua 1 shares 0.00%
Dimerco Express Holding Co., Ltd. 399,920 shares 39.99%
Global Marketing & System Co., Ltd. 600,070 shares 60.01%
Director |Goh Ling Yen -
. Lin Jy Shyan
. Director Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Dimerco Express Chien. Yao-Huai
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Director |Roslan -
Director Dimerco Express Corporation 250,000 shares 100.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco Express . .
Netherlands B. V. Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Dimerco Express Holding Company Limited 338,000 shares 100.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco Express Director [Shi,Zhen-Sheng -
(Australia) Pty Ltd Director |Mary Mak Tu Ting -
Dimerco Express Holding Company Limited 1,710,000 shares 100.00%
Director |{Gao,Zhong-Yi -
Dimerco Express Korea | Director |Chiou, Jiun-Rung -
Corp. Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Dimerco Express Holding Company Limited 143,200 shares 100.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco Express .
(Canada) Corp. Director [Roy Chen -
Dimerco Express Holding Company Limited 100 shares 100.00%
Director [Shi,Zhen-Sheng -
Direct Ms.Laksana
Dimerco Express IFeCtOr | oo rkthin -
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. Direct Ms.Ancharee
irector |Sansopa -
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
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Mr.Panow Tamprateep 100 shares 0.01%
Mr.Dhira Yoonaidharma 764,900 shares 50.99%
Dimerco Express Holding Co., Ltd. 735,000 shares 49.00%
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
DIVERSIFIED Director |CMien, Wen-Li _
TRANSPORTATION
(H.K. & CHINA) Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
COMPANY LIMITED 100.00%
Dimerco Express Corporation 98,550 shares :
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Diversified I_nternatlonal Director |Chiou, Jiun-Rung -
Transportation X X .
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco Air Forwarders (HK) Ltd. 1 shares 100.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco International Director (Zhang,Yue-Shan -
Logistics Company X Chien, Wen-Li
Limited Director ! -
Dimerco Express Corporation 1,200,000 shares 100.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Diversified International .
Service Logistics System| Director |Cathy Chou N
Corporation Dimerco Express Holding Company 50,000 shansa 100.00%
Diversified International | Director Mr.Johnny Kao -
Transportation . . X share
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Diversified Freight System Ltd. 1 s 100.00%
Director |Chiou, Jiun-Rung -
Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Director ‘I’\"rhan Thi Tuyet -
Dimerco Vietfracht (JV) ung
Co., Ltd. Director [Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Director |Tran Binh Phu -
Vietfracht Hanoi One Member Co., Ltd. 397,650,000 shares 25.00%
Dimerco Air Forwarders (H.K) Limited 1,192,950,000 shares 75.00%
Dimerco International Director |Tracy Hui -
Logistics (Shenzh
o (Shenzhen) Dimerco Air Forwarders (H.K.) Ltd. 2,850,000 shares|  100.00%
Director Chien, Wen-Li
Diversified International
Logistics (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. Global Marketing & System Co., Ltd. 50.00%
FOREIGN SETTLEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 50.00%
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Diversified Director |Chien, Wen-Li _
Transportation (China)
Co., Ltd. Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Diversified Transportation (H.K.& China) Co., Ltd. 1 shares 100.00%
Global Marketing & Director |Chien, Yao-Huai - shares
System Co., Ltd. Director |LEE Sio Robert |Dimerco International Logistics Corporation 1 shares|  100.00%
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Director [Shi,Zhen-Sheng -
Director Chien, Wen-Li ~
Dimerco Express (India )
Pvt. Ltd. -
MNC Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. 640,000 shares 32.00%
Dimerco Express (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 960,000 shares 48.00%
Dimerco Customs Director |Jeffrey Shih -
Brokerage Services Co., | Director |Cathy Chou -
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Ltd. Dimerco Express (U.S.A.) Corp. 250,000 shares | 100.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Director |Lee Sio Robert -
Foreign Settlement Diversified Freight System Limited 17,500 shares 35.00%
Company Limited Diversified Freight System Corporation 7,500 shares 15.00%
Dimerco Air Forwarders (H.K.) Limited 17,500 shares 35.00%
Dimerco Express Corporation 7,500 shares 15.00%
Director |Chien, Yao-Huai -
Dimerco International Director |Lee Sio Robert -
Logistics Corporation
Dimerco Express Corporation 1 shares 100.00%
Director |He,Zhen-Yu -
Director |{Gao,Zhong-Yi -
Director [lang,Yan -
Yuhang International Director |Dong,Si-Chuan -
Logistics(Dalian) Co., Ltd Director |Yan,Xiao-Wen ~
Yuhang International Logistics(Dalian) Co., Ltd 6,000,000 shares 75.00%
Diversified International Transportation o
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2,000,000 shares 25.00%
Director CHEN, -
JAH-YANG
Director |Ruan, Yao-Chang -
Director [ROBERT LEE 22,000 55.00%
Peerless Express . SAMUEL C shares o
Forwarders Corp. Director [CELESTINO 1,000 2.50%
Krimalyn Y Chua
1,000 shares 2.50%
Dimerco Express ( Phils.) ,Inc 16,000 shares 40.00%
(4) Operational Overview of Affiliated Companies:
Capital Total Total Total Operating |Operating Net Earnings per
Company Name Amount Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit Income | Share (EPS)
Dimereo Alr Forwarders (H.K.) 277,964| 2,197,035| 1,098,688 1,098,347| 8,050,885 159,273| 593,219 1,977.4
g{;“el_';" Express( Singapore ) 120,708| 859,496|  529,241|  330,255| 1,665547| 65514| 53,630 115
Diversified Frieight System 13,753| 74,875 33,792 41,084  1551148| 12479 12,143 202
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Diversified International
Logistics Pte. Ltd. 9,168 19,685 17,604 2,081 19,907 (1,677) (2,262) (0.0)
Dimerco Express (UK) Limited 34,023 16,200 26,134 (9,934) 128,257|  (7,805)  (8,908) (29.7)
gg‘r‘;m" Express (U.SA) 211,456| 2420,845| 1,392,237| 1,028,607| 8894,300| 293495 206,947 417
Eﬁ;ﬁfg Settlement Company 1,586 4,777,624|  265517| 4,512,107 - -| 1,498,736 29.97
giovr‘;'smed Freight System 12,000 217,111|  110059|  107.052|  918,776| 47,708| 252,958 210.8
Diversified International 10,000 38,253 28,047 10,206 75,124 739 1,329 1.7
Logistics Co., Ltd.
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Dimerco Express Holding Co.,

o 91,648| 4,176,741 1,314,502 2,862,239 | 320047 791,373 256.2
8'{:‘“6&; Logistics (Shanghai) 5970 2,026 60,565|  (58,539) 8,593 535 643 Note 1
Dimerco Zhongjing Int' 54,028| 1,120,157  993,504| 126,653 6,934,847| (156,714)| (114,882) Note 1
Express Co., Ltd.

Diversified International

Logistics (Shanghal) Go., Ltd. 13684 20,757 16,984 3773 37,746 3,096 3,346 Note 1
Eiir‘]’qirjéﬁed Freight System 54,049| 2,538,458| 548950 1,989499| 5413494 11,683 572,084 8,057.5
Dimerco Express ( Phils.) Inc. 8,163| 276998  122412|  154,586| 593213 51,616] 50,030 277.9
imerco Express (Malaysia) 3073| 289,234 88,895 200,330 1,059523| 77,230 57,541 230.2
g"{}em" Express Netherlands 17,982 100,363 65,007 35,356| 1,006,895 12,140 10,507 10,507.0
E{’y‘“f{? Express (Australia) 49,182 10,304 35242  (24938) 100,769  7.408| 6412 106.9
Dimerco Express Korea Corp. 18,192| 211,635 93226|  118410| 1,315272| 43666 39,114 326.0
gg‘:;m Express (Canada) 1,215 275811 74768|  201,043| 1,216407| 82105 70,010 Note 1
ggnel_'f; Express (Thailand) 13,736 206,363 73,083 133280  947,638| 47,067| 43,850 59.7
DIVERSIFIED

TRANSPORTATION (H.K. & 39,004 88,424 40,277 48147| 230,483 (631) 1,550 17.4
CHINA) COMPANY LIMITED

Diversified International

Transportation (Shanghai) Co., 163,377| 1,175,260 745486\  429,774| 796,129  13,120| 429,905 Note 1
Ltd.

Dimerco International Logistics

Corporation - 138,750 85,456 53294 252,630 5,375 5,550 Note 1
Diversified International

Service Logistics System 15,365 101,322 69,963 31,359 66,062| (2,609) (2,530) (50.6)
Corporation

Diversified International

Transportation (Shanghai) Co., 50,777| 848,616|  510,188|  338428| 5093525 19,692| 53,930 Note 1
Ltd.

B‘g"e'c" Vietfracht (JV) Co., 2,074| 77,089 24,144 52,045  832,833| 20,754 19,010 Note 1
Dimerco International Logistics

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 10,958 5,327 24773 (19,446) o (2148) (2189 Note 1
Diversified International

Logistics (Shenzhan) Go., Ltd. - 5,896 4,413 1,483 22913 (2,953) #NIA Note 1
Diversified Transportation

(Ching) Co., Lid, 20,802 35,959 13,958 22,001 39,686 161 246 Note 1
g']"bﬁ't dMarke“”g & System | 361655 289,306 72,349 || 19283 48470 Note 1
Dinerco Express (india ) Pvt. 6061 44,813 22,838 21,975 105212|  8388]  7.840 8.2
Dimerco Customs Brokerage

Sondcas Co. L1, 13532| 89,007 52,768 36,239 26,475 4,636 3743 3,743.0
Foreign Settlement Company 1,586 4,777,624 265,517| 4,512,107 1,474,184 1,420,863| 1,493,168 29,863.4

Limited
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gon:sg?;:lilc?r:emaﬁonal Logisties | 472,313 - - - 853,946 17,0789
Z;‘g;:gs'(”;jl’;‘;‘;"gi' L 38666 222,907| 143476 79431 1080210 34478 26,395 Note 1
Ei?;'.e“ Express Forwarders 954/ 21,340 12,021 9,319 148,865 929 457 03
B.C. Logistics 9.219| 26,105 1,927 24177 100569| 2822 2,043 Note 1

Note 1: Non-stock Corporation

5. Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Companies: Not required for preparation.

6. Consolidated business report of affiliated companies: Not required for preparation.

8.2 Status of handling private equity portfolio and utilization of private funds and its progress on

implementation of the project

Not applicable

8.3 Status of stock holdings or disposition of the Company stocks by subsidiaries for the most recent
year and as of the publication date of year book

Not applicable

8.4 Other Supplementary Explanations:

Not applicable

VIIII. Issues of significant impacts on shareholders equity or securities prices stipulated under 2nd

paragraph of 2nd item of Securities Exchange Act article no. 36.: Not applicable
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Dimerco Express Corporation

Chairman: Mr. Chien, Yao-Huai

18" May 2023
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DIMERCO

Connecting Asia with the world





